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SECTION I – GENERAL 

 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

 

This Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when 

reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Letter of 

Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.  

 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined, and abbreviations expanded below shall have the same 

meaning as stated in this chapter. References to statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines and policies will be 

deemed to include all amendments, modifications or re-enactment notified thereto. In this Letter of Offer, unless 

otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to ‘the/our Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or 

similar terms are to Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited as the context requires, and references to ‘you’ are 

to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in this Rights Issue of Equity Shares. 

 

The words and expressions used but not defined herein shall have the same meaning as is assigned to such terms 

under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and 

regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in the chapters titled “Statement of 

Special Tax Benefits” “Financial Information”, “Outstanding Litigations and Other Defaults” and “Terms of  

the Issue” on pages 53, 86, 97 and 107 respectively, shall have the meaning assigned to the terms in the 

respective chapters. 

 

Conventional or General Terms  

 

Terms Description 

“Scoobee Day Garments 

(India) Limited” or “the 

Company” or “our 

Company” or “the Issuer” or 

“SDGIL” 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited, a public limited company, bearing 

CIN. L27100KL1994PLC008083, incorporated under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and having its Registered Office at 666/12, Anna 

Aluminium Building Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, Aluva, Kerala, India, 

683562. 

 “We” or “Us” or “Our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies or unless otherwise specified, 

refers to “Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited”. 

 

Company Related Terms 

 

Terms Description 

Articles/Articles of 

Association/AoA 

The Articles of Association of our Company as amended from time to time. 

Audit Committee The committee of our Board of Directors duly constituted as the audit 

committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Audited Financial Statements/ 

Audited Standalone Financial 

Statements  

The audited standalone financial statements of our Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025 which comprises of the standalone balance sheet 

as at March 31, 2025, the standalone statement of profit and loss including 

other comprehensive income, the standalone cash flow statement, the 

standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 

and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details, 

see “Financial Information” on page 86 of this Letter of Offer. 

Auditors/Statutory Auditors The Statutory Auditors of our Company being M/s Varma & Varma, 

Chartered Accountant having office at Daiwik Arcade, Thiruvambady Road, 

Punkunnam- 6800002,Thrissur, Kerala, India. 

Board/Board of Directors  The Board of Directors of our Company. 

Director(s) Any or all the director(s) of our Board, as may be appointed from time to time. 

Equity Shareholders Holders of Equity Share(s), from time to time 
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Terms Description 

Equity Shares / Shares Equity Shares of face value ₹10/- each of our Company.  

Executive Director(s) Whole-time Directors/ Executive Directors on our Board 

Financial Statements Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial Results. 

Independent Director Independent Directors on the Board, who are eligible to be appointed as 

Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, please 

refer to “Our Management and Organization Structure” beginning on page 

81 this Letter of Offer. 

ISIN International Securities Identification Number being INE962E01015. 

Key Managerial Personnel(s) 

/ KMP(s)  

Key Managerial Personnel(s) of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations being Kalpathy Lekshmi 

Venkitanarayanan Narayanan, Managing Director; Thottathikudiyil Fareed 

Zaphia, Chief Financial Officer and Alphonsa Jose, Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer, collectively referred as Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company. 

Materiality Policy Policy on determination of materiality of events adopted by our Company in 

accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Memorandum of Association The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to 

time. 

Non-Executive Director(s) The Non-executive Director(s) on the Board. 

Promoter(s) Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob, Minni Boby Jacob and Anna Aluminium 

Company (P) Limited 

Promoter Group  Persons and entities forming part of the promoter group of our Company as 

determined in terms of Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

and as disclosed by our Company in the filings made with the Stock Exchange 

under the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Registered Office Registered office of our Company situated 666/12, Anna Aluminium Building 

Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, Aluva, Kerala, India, 683562. 

Registrar of 

Companies / ROC 

Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam, Kerala, located at BMC Road, 

Thrikkakara, Kochi-682021, Kerala. 

Senior Management 

Personnel 

Senior management personnel of our Company determined in accordance with 

Regulation 2(1) (bbbb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as described in 

“Our Management and Organisation Structure” beginning on page 81 of this 

Letter of Offer. 

Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee 

The stakeholders' relationship committee of our Board as described in “Our 

Management and Organisation Structure” beginning on page 81 of this Letter 

of Offer. 

Unaudited Financial Results / 

Unaudited Standalone 

Financial Results / Unaudited 

Financial Results 

The unaudited standalone financial results of our Company for the three 

months period ended June 30, 2025 prepared in accordance with the 

Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, including the notes thereto. For 

details, see “Financial Information” on page 86 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Issue Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

Abridged Letter of Offer 

/ALOF 

The Abridged letter of offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders as 

on the Record Date with respect to the Issue in accordance with the provisions 

of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act. 

Additional Rights Equity 

Shares / Additional Equity 

Shares 

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to 

the Rights Entitlement. 

Allotment / Allot / Allotted 

/Allotment of Rights Equity 

Shares 

The Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue. 

Allotment Account(s) The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which amounts 

blocked by Application Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA 
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Term Description 

Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be transferred on the 

Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act. 

Allotment Account Bank Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to 

an issue and with whom the Allotment Account(s) will be opened, in this case 

being, The Federal Bank Ltd. 

Allotment Advice The note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Investors, who have 

been or are to be allotted the Rights Equity Shares after the basis of allotment 

has been approved by the BSE. 

Allotment Date / Date of 

Allotment 

The date on which Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue. 

Allottee(s) Persons to whom Rights Equity Shares of our Company are Allotted pursuant 

to this Issue. 

Applicant(s) /Investor(s) Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and / or Renounce(s) who are entitled to make 

an application for the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue in 

terms of this Letter of Offer. 

Application Application made through submission of the Application Form or plain paper 

Application to the Designated Branch(es) of the SCSBs or online /electronic 

application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such 

SCSBs)under the ASBA process, to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares at 

the Issue Price. 

Application Form / Common 

Application Form 

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online 

application form available for submission of application through the website 

of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process) 

used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of the Rights 

Equity Shares in the Issue. 

Application Money Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for 

in the Issue at the Issue Price. 

Application Supported by 

Blocked Amount / ASBA 

The application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor 

to make an application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money 

in an ASBA account maintained with SCSB. 

ASBA Account An account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the Application Form 

or plain paper application, as the case may be by the Applicant for blocking 

the amount mentioned in the Application Form or in the plain paper 

application. 

ASBA Applicants / ASBA 

Investors 

Applicants / Investors who make Application in this Issue using the ASBA 

Process  

Banker to our Company The Federal Bank Limited and Axis Bank Ltd. 

Banker to the Issue Agreement Agreement to be entered into by and amongst our Company, the Registrar 

to the Issue and the Banker to the Issue for receipt of the Application 

Money from Applicant/Investors making an application for the Rights 

Equity Shares. 

Bankers to the Issue / Escrow 

Collection Bank 

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Bank to the Issue, 

in this case being The Federal Bank Ltd.  

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful 

Applicants in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this 

Issue, as described in “Terms of the Issue” on page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 

Controlling Branches / 

Controlling Branches 

of the SCSBs 

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue 

and the Stock Exchange, a list of which is available 

onhttps://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi

=yes&intmId=34and/or such other website(s) as may be prescribed by the 

SEBI from time to time. 

Demographic Details Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, name of the Investor’s 

father/husband, investor status, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, occupation and bank 

account details, where applicable. 

Depository NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the 

SEBI (Depository and Participant) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Term Description 

to time, read with the Depositories Act, 1996.  

Designated Branches Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form 

submitted by ASBA Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of 

SEBI at 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=y

es&intmId=34, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may 

be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

Designated Stock Exchange BSE Limited 

Draft Letter of Offer / DLOF The draft letter of offer dated May 08, 2025 filed with the Stock Exchange 

prepared in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Eligible Equity Shareholders / 

Eligible Shareholders/  

Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date i.e., Tuesday, September 02, 

2025. Please note that the investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude 

certain overseas shareholders, including any shareholder located in the 

United States. For further details, see “Notice to Investors” on page 10 of 

this Letter of Offer. 

Entitlement Letter/ Rights 

Entitlement Letter 

A letter to be dispatched by the Registrar to all Eligible Equity Shareholders 

as on the Record Date which will contain details of their Rights Entitlements 

based on their shareholdings as on the Record Date i.e., Tuesday, September 

02, 2025. The Rights Entitlements are also accessible on the website of our 

Company and Registrar. 

Equity Shareholder(s) / 

Shareholder(s) 

The holders of Equity Shares of our Company. 

General Corporate Purposes General corporate purposes shall have the meaning as determined in 

Regulation 2(1)(r) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

Issue / the Issue / this Issue / 

Rights Issue 

Issue of up to 45,00,000 Rights Equity Shares of face value of ₹10 each of 

our Company for cash at a price of ₹ 90/- per Rights Equity Share (including 

a share premium of ₹ 80 per Rights Equity Share) aggregating up to ₹4,050 

lakhs* on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company 

in the ratio of 1 Rights Equity Share for every 3 fully paid-up Equity Shares 

held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders on the Record Date i.e. Tuesday, 

September 02, 2025 . 

Issue Closing Date Friday, September 19, 2025 

Issue Material  Collectively, the Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged 

Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and any 

other material relating to the Issue. 

Issue Opening Date Friday, September 12, 2025 

Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, 

inclusive of both days, during which Applicants can submit their 

Applications, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Issue Price 
₹90 per Rights Equity Share (including a share premium of ₹80 per Rights 

Equity Share). 

Issue Proceeds The gross proceeds raised through the Issue. 

Issue Size The amount aggregating up to ₹4,050 Lakhs.  

Letter of Offer / LOF This Letter of Offer dated August 26, 2025 filed with the Stock Exchange. 

Listing Agreement The listing agreement entered into between our Company and the Stock 

Exchange in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Multiple Application Forms Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder / 

Renouncee in respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat 

account. However supplementary applications in relation to further Equity 

Shares with / without using additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated 

as multiple application. 

Net Proceeds The Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, please 

see to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 48. 

Net Worth Net worth as defined under Section 2(57) of the Companies Act. 

Non-Institutional Bidders / 

NIIs 

An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional 

Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Term Description 

Off Market Renunciation The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by 

transferring them through off market transfer through a depository participant 

in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular and the circulars issued by 

the Depositories, from time to time, and other applicable laws. 

On Market Renunciation The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by 

trading on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through a 

registered stock broker in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular 

and the circulars issued by the Stock Exchange, from time to time, and other 

applicable laws, on or before Tuesday, September 16, 2025. 

QIBs / Qualified Institutional 

Buyers 

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Record Date A record date fixed by our Company for the purposes of determining the 

names of the Equity Shareholders who are eligible for the issue of Rights 

Equity Shares to be decided prior to filing of the Letter of Offer being 

Tuesday, September 02, 2025. 

Refund Bank The Banker to the Issue with whom the Refund Account will be opened, in 

this case being The Federal Bank Ltd. 

Registrar Agreement Agreement dated May 06, 2025, entered into among our Company and the 

Registrar in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to 

the Issue pertaining to the Issue. 

Registrar to the Issue / 

Registrar and Transfer Agent / 

RTA 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 

Renouncee(s) Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders on renunciation either through On Market Renunciation 

or through Off Market Renunciation in accordance with the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the Companies Act and any 

other applicable law as amended from time to time. 

Renunciation Period The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights 

Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date i.e. Friday, 

September 12, 2025. Such period shall close on Tuesday, September 16, 2025 

in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are 

requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is 

completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the 

demat account of the Renounce on or prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e., 

Friday, September 19, 2025. 

Retail Individual Bidders(s) / 

Retail Individual Investor(s) 

/RII(s) / RIB(s) 

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through karta) who has 

applied for Rights Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more 

than ₹200,000 in the Issue as defined under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations. 

Rights Entitlements / REs Number of the Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled 

to in proportion to the number of the Equity Shares held by the Eligible 

Equity Shareholder on the Record Date, in this case being 1 Rights Equity 

Shares for every 3 Equity Shares held by an Eligible Equity Shareholder. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI 

Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN shall be 

credited in dematerialised form in respective demat accounts of the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date, against the Equity Shares 

held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date. 

Rights Equity Shares / Rights 

Shares 

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue, on fully 

paid-up basis on Allotment. 

SEBI Rights Issue Circular SEBI master circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD- 

1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024 and any other circular or 

notifications subsequently issued by SEBI in this regard. 
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Term Description 

Self-Certified Syndicate Bank 

/ SCSBs 

Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which offers the facility 

of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available on 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=y

es&intmId=34, updated from time to time or at or such other website(s) as 

maybe prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

Stock Exchange BSE Limited, where the Equity Shares of our Company are presently listed. 

Transfer Date The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will 

be transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful 

Applications, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation 

with the Designated Stock Exchange. 

Wilful Defaulter / Fraudulent 

Borrower 

An entity or person categorised as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower 

by any bank or financial institution (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) 

or consortium thereof, in terms of Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations and in accordance with the master circular on wilful defaulters 

issued by RBI. 

Working Days In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day 

means all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. 

Further, in respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in 

Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the time period between the 

Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange, 

working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding 

Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI. 

 

Business related Terms 

 

Term Description 

BOM Bill of Materials 

BOO Build-Own-Operate 

BOOT Build-Own-Operate-Transfer 

BOLT Build-Own-Lease-Transfer 

BOT Build-Operate-Transfer 

FCR Forward Cargo Receipt 

FRI Final Random Inspection 

GI Galvanized Iron 

LC Letter of Credit 

LDD Legal Due Diligence 

MRP Material Requirements Planning 

PPGL Pre-Painted Galvalume 

SI Shipping Instruction 

 

Industry related Terms 

 

Term Description 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

IBEF India Brand Equity Foundation 

IMF International Monetary Fund 

NPV Net Present Value 

PFCE Private Final Consumption Expenditure 

SEZ Special Economic Zone 

SPV Special Purpose Vehicle 

TUFS Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme 

 

 

 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Conventional Terms and Abbreviations 

 

Term Description 

“₹” / “Rs.” / “Rupees” / “INR” Indian Rupees 

A/c Account 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the 

SEBI AIF Regulations 

AY Assessment Year 

BSE BSE Limited 

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate 

CARO Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 

CCIT Chief Commissioner of Income Tax 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

Central Government The Central Government of India 

CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CIN Corporate Identity Number 

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax 

Companies Act / Companies 

Act, 2013 

Companies Act, 2013and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time 

to time  

COVID-19 The coronavirus disease 2019 

CTS Cheque Truncation System 

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time 

DIN Director Identification Number 

DP Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act 

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identity 

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting 

EPS Earnings per Share 

FBIL Financial Benchmarks India Private Limited 

FCNR Account / FCNR Foreign Currency Non Resident Account 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

FEMA Act / FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations 

promulgated there under and any amendments thereto. 

FEMA Rules  Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 

Fiscal /Fiscal Year/ Financial 

Year/FY 

12 month period commencing from April 1 and ending on March 31 of the 

immediately succeeding year. 

FPI Foreign Portfolio Investor 

Fugitive Economic Offender An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 

of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 

FVCIs Foreign venture capital investors as defined in and registered with SEBI under 

the SEBI FVCI Regulations 

GCP General Corporate Purpose 

GIR General Index Registrar 

Government/GoI Government of India 

GST Goods and Service Tax 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family 

IBC Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

IEPF Investor Education and Protection Fund  

IFRS International Financing Reporting Standards 

Ind AS Indian Accounting Standards 

Indian GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles followed in India. 

Insider Trading Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time  



 

8 
 

Term Description 

ISIN International Securities Identification Number 

ISRO Indian Space Research Organisation 

I.T. Act / IT Act Income Tax Act, 1961 

I. T. Rules Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended from time to time. 

KMP Key Managerial Personnel 

Lakh One hundred thousand 

LM Lead Manager 

LLP Limited Liability Partnership 

MAT Minimum Alternate Tax 

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India 

MICR Magnetic Ink Character Recognition 

N.A. Not Applicable 

NACH National Automated Clearing House which is a consolidated system of ECS. 

NAV Net Asset Value calculated as Net Worth divided by number of fully paid-up 

Equity Shares. 

NCLAT National Company Law Appellate Tribunal 

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal 

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer 

NI Act Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 

NR Non Resident 

NRE Non Resident External Account 

NRI Non Resident Indian 

NSDL National Securities Depositories Limited 

OCB Overseas Corporate Body means and includes an entity defined in clause (xi) 

of Regulation 2 of the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 

2000 and which was in existence on the date of the commencement of Foreign 

Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas 

Corporate Bodies (OCB’s)) Regulations, 2003 and immediately prior to such 

commencement was eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the general 

permission granted under the regulations.  

p.a. Per Annum 

PAN Permanent Account Number 

QIB Qualified Institutional Buyer 

RBI Reserve Bank of India 

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement 

SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System 

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time 

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to time 

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the SEBI Act, 1992 

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended from time to 

time 

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) 

Regulations, 2012, as amended from time to time 

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) 

Regulations, 2019, as amended from time to time 

SEBI FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) 

Regulations, 2000, as amended from time to time 

SEBI ICDR Regulations / 

ICDR Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time 

SEBI Listing Regulations/ 

SEBI LODR Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time 

SEBI SBEB Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time 

SEBI SAST Regulations /  

SEBI Takeover Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time 
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Term Description 

SEBI VCF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 

1996, as amended from time to time 

STT Securities Transaction Tax 

TDS Tax Deducted at Source 

U.S/United States The United States of America 

UPI Unified Payments Interface 

US GAAP United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

USD / US$ United States Dollars 

US Securities Act The United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time 

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the 

SEBI VCF Regulations or the SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be 
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS 

 

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement 

Letter and any other material relating to the Issue (collectively “Issue Materials”) to persons in certain 

jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into 

whose possession the Issue Materials may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such 

restrictions.  

 

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will electronically 

dispatch through email or physical dispatch through registered post /speed post Issue Materials only to Eligible 

Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our 

Company. Further, the Issue Materials will be provided, through email or by registered post / speed post, by the 

Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses 

to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is 

permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. Investors can also 

access the Issue Materials from the websites of the Registrar, our Company and the Stock Exchange. 

 

Investors can also access the Issue Materials from the websites of the Stock Exchange, Registrar and our 

Company. 

 

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that 

purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or 

indirectly and Issue Materials or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be 

distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with the legal requirements applicable in 

such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Materials will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would 

be illegal to make such an offer, and, in those circumstances, Issue Materials must be treated as sent for 

information purposes only and should not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should 

not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue Materials should not, in 

connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Issue 

Materials to any person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or 

regulations. If the Issue Materials or Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by 

their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares, or the Rights Entitlements 

referred to in the Issue Materials. 

 

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in 

the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to 

acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations 

prevailing in his jurisdiction and in India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates to make any 

filing or registration (other than in India). In addition, each purchaser of Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity 

Shares will be deemed to make the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and agreements set forth in 

“Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosure” on page 100. Our Company, the Registrar, or any other person 

acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe 

that Application Form is incomplete, or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or 

regulatory requirements, and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement 

in respect of any such Application Form.  

 

Neither the delivery of the Issue Materials nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any 

implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such 

information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Letter 

of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date of 

such information. 

 

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX 

OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE 

FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE ISSUE 

OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR 

SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE 

LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE ISSUE OF RIGHTS 
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EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR COMPANY IS NOT MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO 

ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN 

INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY 

APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 

 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 

 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL 

NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY 

STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN THE UNITED 

STATES OF AMERICA OR THE TERRITORIES OR POSSESSIONS THEREOF (“UNITED 

STATES”), EXCEPT IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, OR EXEMPT FROM, THE 

REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE 

SECURITIES LAWS. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT 

AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS 

EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A 

SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR 

RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT. THERE IS NO INTENTION TO REGISTER ANY PORTION OF THE 

ISSUE OR ANY OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO 

CONDUCT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN THE UNITED STATES. ACCORDINGLY, 

THE ISSUE MATERIALS SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO 

THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME. IN ADDITION, UNTIL THE EXPIRY OF 40 DAYS AFTER 

THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE ISSUE, AN OFFER OR SALE OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR 

RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES WITHIN THE UNITED STATES BY A DEALER (WHETHER OR NOT IT 

IS PARTICIPATING IN THE ISSUE) MAY VIOLATE THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF 

THE SECURITIES ACT. 

 

Neither our Company nor any person acting on the Company’s behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation 

from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who, our Company or any person acting on 

our behalf has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an 

Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise 

dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer and all 

persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form 

must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a 

rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Issue Materials will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity 

Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of 

subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States and (ii) 

it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable 

laws and regulations. 

 

Our Company, the Registrar any other person acting on behalf of us, reserves  the right to treat any Application 

Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the 

subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all 

applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the 

United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that 

Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or 

regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights 

Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.  

 

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.  

 

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and 

Exchange Commission (the “US SEC”), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US 

regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering 

of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer. Any 

representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.  
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The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any 

amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this 

Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of 

Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.  

 

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR 

COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE 

REPRODUCED OR REDISTRIBUTED OR PASSED ON, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, TO ANY 

OTHER PERSON OR PUBLISHED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY PURPOSE.  
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 

 

Certain Conventions  

 

All references to “India” contained in this Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and 

possessions and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “GoI”, Central Government” 

or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable. 

 

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the “US” or 

“U.S.” or the “United States” are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.  

 

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”). Unless 

indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.  

 

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever 

applicable.  

 

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this 

Letter of Offer. 

 

Financial Data  

 

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this 

Letter of Offer have been derived from our Audited Financial Statements of our Company for the financial years 

ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and Unaudited Financial Statement for the three 

months period ended June 30, 2025. For details, please refer to “Financial Information” on page 86 of this Letter 

of Offer. Our Company’s financial year commences on April 01 and ends on March 31 of the next calendar year. 

Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year, unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month 

period ended on March 31 of that year.  

 

The GoI has adopted the Indian accounting standards (“Ind AS”), which are converged with the International 

Financial Reporting Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”) and notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended (the “Ind AS Rules”).  

 

The financial information for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 and 

Unaudited Financial Results for the three months period ended June 30, 2025 of our Company have been prepared 

in accordance with Ind AS, as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS Rules and 

other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (revised) 2019, issued by the ICAI. Our Company 

publishes its financial statements in Rupees. 

 

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due 

to rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Our 

Company has presented all numerical information in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” units or in whole numbers 

where the numbers have been too small to represent in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million 

represents 10,00,000.  

 

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of 

the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has also not attempted to explain those differences 

or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer and you are urged to consult your 

own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which 

the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent 

on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations 

on our financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further 

information, see “Financial Information” on page 86 of this Letter of Offer.  
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Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded off 

adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. 

However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other 

than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off to such 

number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or percentage 

change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a 

column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any 

such discrepancies are due to rounding off.  

 

Currency and Units of Presentations 
 

All references to:  

• “Rupees”, “₹”, “INR”, “Rs.” and “Indian Rupees” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the 

Republic of India; and  

• “US$”, “USD”, “$” and “U.S. dollars” are to the legal currency of the United States of America. 

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” or “Lac” units. One 

lakh represents 1,00,000. All the numbers in the document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where 

the numbers have been too small to present in lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our 

Business”, “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation” beginning 

on pages 20, 69 and 89 and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated 

based on our Restated Financial Information.  

 

Exchange Rate  

 

This Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been 

presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a 

representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any 

particular rate or at all. 

 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between 

the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:                    (in ₹) 

Currency As on June 30, 

2025(1) 

As on March 31, 

2025 (1) 

As on March 31, 

2024 (1) 

As on March 31, 

2023(1) 

1 United States Dollar 85.54 85.58 83.37 82.22 
Source: www.fbil.org.in and  rbi.org.in. 
(1) In the event that any of the abovementioned dates of any of the respective financial year or periods is a public holiday, the previous Working 

Day not being a public holiday has been considered. 

 

Industry and Market Data 

 

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from 

publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources. 

 

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from 

publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable, but their accuracy, adequacy, 

completeness, reliability or underlying assumptions are not guaranteed. Similarly, internal surveys, industry 

forecasts, market research and industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer, while believed to be reliable, 

have not been independently verified by our Company and our Company did not make any representation as to 

the accuracy of such information. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes 

of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and 

numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in “Risk 

Factors” on page 20, of this Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such 

information. 

 

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the 

reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are 

no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is 

conducted and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. 

https://www.fbil.org.in/#/home
https://rbi.org.in/scripts/ReferenceRateArchive.aspx
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 

 

This Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear throughout 

this Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and 

“Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Industry 

Overview”. Forward-looking statements may include statements concerning our Company’s plans, objectives, 

goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, 

plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our Company’s competitive strengths and weaknesses, our Company’s 

business strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, 

and geographical locations, in which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical 

information. These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, 

“anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, “can”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, 

“plan”, “potential”, “project”, “pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “forecast”, 

“target”, or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies, objectives, 

plans or goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means 

of identifying forward-looking statements. 

 

Forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party), 

are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may 

cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future 

results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other 

projections. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about our 

Company that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-

looking statement. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s 

expectations include, among others: 

 

1. Disruption in our manufacturing facility.  

2. Our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion.  

3. Fail to attract, retain and manage the transition of our management team and other skilled and unskilled 

employees;  

4. Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights and not infringing intellectual property rights of 

other parties;  

5. Ability to respond to technological changes;  

6. Failure to comply with regulations prescribed by authorities of the jurisdictions in which we operate;  

7. General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional 

and national economies;  

8. Our ability to effectively manage a variety of business, legal, regulatory, economic, social and political 

risks associated with our operations;  

9. Recession in the market;  

10. Changes in laws and regulations relating to the industries in which we operate;  

11. Effect of lack of infrastructure facilities on our business;  

12. Our ability to meet our capital expenditure requirements;  

13. Failure to adapt to the changing technology in our industry of operation may adversely affect our business 

and financial condition;  

14. Failure to obtain any approvals, licenses, registrations and permits in a timely manner;  

15. Occurrence of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations;  

16. Conflicts of interest with affiliated companies, the promoter group and other related parties;  

17. The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;  

18. Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved;  

19. Our ability to expand our geographical area of operation;  

20. Concentration of ownership among our Promoters. 

 

For further discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ, see the chapters titled “Risk Factors”; 

“Our Business” and “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” 

beginning on page 20, 69 and 89 respectively of this Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain market risk 

disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a 

result, actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.  
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There can be no assurance to investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will 

prove to be correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such 

forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of our future performance.  

 

Neither our Company, our Directors, our Officers, nor our Promoters have any obligation to update or otherwise 

revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of 

underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.  

 

In accordance with the SEBI requirements, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material 

developments from the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of listing and trading permission from 

the Stock Exchange. 
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SECTION II – SUMMARY OF LETTER OF OFFER 

 

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Letter of Offer and is not exhaustive, 

nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Letter of Offer or all details relevant to 

prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the 

more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, including the chapters, “Risk Factors”, 

“Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business”, and “Outstanding Litigation and Other Defaults” Beginning on pages 

20, 48, 69 and 97 of this Letter of Offer, respectively.  

  

1. Primary Business of our Company 

 

The company is engaged in the business of producing kids apparels and readymade kids garments and 

aluminium /galvanised iron roofing sheets. Scoobee Day India Garments Limited is a diversified 

company engaged in multiple business sectors. The object clause of MOA of the Company allows 

Company to manufactures, deals, exports, imports, purchases, and sells various grades and types of pulp, 

paper, and paper boards, along with the necessary raw materials, chemicals, and accessories for their 

production; manufacturing, trading, and distribution of aluminum, steel, and other ferrous and non-

ferrous metals, including products like roofing sheets, tubes, pipes, coils, wires, appliances, utensils, and 

building materials; generating, producing, transmitting, supplying, and distributing electricity from 

various sources such as nuclear, steam, hydro, tidal, wind, solar, and hydrocarbon fuels; establish and 

maintain electric power transmission systems and networks, utilizing different models like BOT, BOO, 

BOLT, and BOOT; dealing in textiles, garments, bags, dressing materials, and hosiery items made from 

various materials like cotton, polyester, nylon, wool, jute, silk, and linen; process yarn and fabric through 

warping, sizing, bleaching, calendaring, dyeing, and printing; promote and manage industrial parks, 

clusters, and special economic zones, providing infrastructure facilities such as factory sheds, godowns, 

marketing facilities, warehouses, communication systems, power generation and distribution, water 

drainage, townships, housing, hospitals, and educational institutions to support industrial and commercial 

growth in Kerala and other parts of India. 

 

2. Object of the Issue 

 

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized in accordance with the details set forth in the following 

table: 

(₹in lakhs) 

Sr. No. Particulars Estimated Amount  

1 Adjustment of unsecured loans of the Promoters and group 

Company against the Entitlement of the Promoters 
3037.04 

2 General corporate purposes* 970.96 

 Net Proceeds 4008.00 
*The amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 48 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

3. Intention and extent of participation by the Promoters and Promoter Group  

 

Our Promoters vide their respective letters dated April 11, 2025, have confirmed that they intend to 

subscribe to the Issue, to the full extent of their Rights Entitlements and have also confirmed that they 

shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements (except to the extent of renunciation by any of them in favour 

of the Promoter or member of the Promoter Group) 

 

Further, they reserve the right to apply for and subscribe to, the additional Rights Equity Shares, including 

subscribing to the unsubscribed portion (if any), subject to compliance with the minimum public 

shareholding requirement prescribed under the SCRR and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above their 

Rights Entitlements shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company and shall 

be in compliance with the SEBI SAST Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 
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of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding 

requirements under the Applicable Law. 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 45 of this Letter 

of Offer.  

 

4. Summary of Financial Information 

 

The following table sets forth the summary of the financial information derived from the Audited 

Financial Statements for the Financial Years ended on March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, March 31,2023. 

 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Financial Year Ended at 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Equity Share capital 1,350.00 1,350.00 1,350.00 

Net Worth 493.10 303.82 (65.35) 

Total Income 4,710.70 4,099.13 5,279.43 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 190.98 366.53 770.61 

Basic and Diluted EPS 1.41 2.73 5.71 

Net Asset Value per Equity Share 3.65 2.25 (0.48) 

Total borrowings 5,803.60 5,245.86 6,088.77 

 

For further details, please refer the section titled “Financial Information” on page 86 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

 

5. Summary of outstanding litigations 

 

A summary of outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, our Directors and our Promoter as 

on the date of this Letter of Offer is provided below:  
 

(₹ in Lakhs) 
Nature 

of Entity 

Criminal 

Proceedings 

Civil 

Proceedings 

Tax 

Proceedings 

Statutory 

regulatory 

proceedings 

Disciplinary 

actions by 

SEBI or BSE 

Aggregate 

amount 

involved  

Company 

By the 

Company 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Against 

the 

Company 

Nil  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Directors 

By the 

Directors 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Against 

the 

Directors 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Promoter 

By the 

Promoter 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Against 

the 

Promoter 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Other Defaults” beginning on 

page 97 of this Letter of Offer. 
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6. Risk Factors 

 

For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in 

Equity Shares of the Company and other economic factors please see “Risk Factors” on page 20 of this 

Letter of Offer. 

 

7. Contingent liabilities 

 

For details of contingent liabilities for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, please see the chapter 

titled “Financial Information” beginning on page 86 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

8. Related party transactions 

 

For details of related party transactions for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, please see the chapter 

titled “Financial Information” beginning on page 86 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

9. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in last one year 

 

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash during the last one year 

immediately preceding the date of this Letter of Offer. 
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SECTION III - RISK FACTORS 

 

An investment in the equity shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all information 

in this Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below and “Financial Statements” on page 

86 of this Letter of Offer, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. Additionally, the risks set out in this 

chapter may not be exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, or which we 

currently deem to be immaterial, may arise or may become material in the future which may impair our business, 

cash flows, prospects, result of operations and financial condition. In order to obtain a complete understanding 

about us, investors should read this chapter in conjunction with “Industry Overview”, “Our Business” and 

“Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page 59, 69 and 

89 respectively, included in this Letter of Offer. If any or a combination of the following risks or other risks that 

are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial actually occur, our business, cash flows, prospects, results 

of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of the Equity Shares could 

decline, and investors may lose all or part of their investment. Unless specified in the relevant risk factor below, 

we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication of any of the risks mentioned below. In making an 

investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examinations and the terms of the Issue, 

including the merits and the risks involved. Prospective investors should consult their tax, financial and legal 

advisors about the particular consequences of investing in the Issue. 

 

However, there are certain risk factors where the financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, cannot be 

disclosed in such risk factors. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the consequences 

to you of an investment in this Issue. The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality: 

(1) some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively; (2) some events may 

have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and (3) some events may not be material at present 

but may have material impact in future. 

 

This Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements which involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual 

results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain 

factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer. For further details, 

please see the chapter titled “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning on page 15 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 

1. A significant portion of the Issue proceeds will be utilised towards adjustment of unsecured loans 

availed from our Promoter and a Group Company, and consequently, our Company will not receive 

any fresh proceeds to that extent. 

 

A key object of this Issue is to adjust outstanding unsecured loans extended to our Company by Anna 

Aluminium Company Private Limited, the Promoter of our Company, and Kitex Limited, a Group 

Company. These loans were availed by our company to meet its funding requirements for setting up a 

new unit at Karur, Tamil Nadu and to support general corporate purposes. The outstanding unsecured 

loan as on March 31, 2025, stands at ₹2,117.42 lakhs from Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 

and ₹2,105.61 lakhs from Kitex Limited. 

  

Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited, vide its letter dated April 11, 2025, has requested that its 

outstanding unsecured loan be adjusted against the application money payable pursuant to its 

subscription of Rights Entitlements or any additional Rights Equity Shares allotted to it, including those 

renounced in its favour by any member of the Promoter Group.  

  

Similarly, Kitex Limited, vide its letter dated April 30, 2025, has expressed its confirmation to subscribe 

to the Rights Equity Shares renounced in its favour by the Promoters and has also requested that the 

corresponding application amount be adjusted against its outstanding loan. 

  

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on May 08, 2025, approved the requests received from Anna 

Aluminium Company Private Limited and Kitex Limited, thereby permitting conversion of their 

respective unsecured loans into Equity Shares under this Issue. As a result, to the extent of such loan 

adjustments, no fresh proceeds will be received by our Company. This could impact our ability to deploy 

fresh capital for other purposes and reduce our overall financial flexibility. 
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For further information, please refer to the section titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 48 of this Letter 

of Offer. 

 

2. Our Group Entities are engaged in similar line of business. Any conflict of interest in future may 

occur between the business of our group entities and us which may adversely affect our business, 

prospects, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, certain of our Group entities are engaged in similar line of business, 

which inter alia includes Kitex Limited. We have not entered into any non-compete agreements with any 

of our group entities. We will endeavour to take adequate steps to address any conflict of interest by 

adopting the necessary procedures and practices as permitted by applicable law, to address any conflict 

which may arise in the future. However, we cannot assure you that our Promoters will not favour the 

interests of our promoter group entities over our interests in future, or that we will be able to resolve any 

such conflicts without adversely affecting  our business or operations. 

 

Although our line of business is similar to that of our other group companies, such as Kitex Limited, we 

take careful measures to ensure that each company operates independently and does not serve the same 

clients. This deliberate separation helps us avoid any potential conflicts of interest and maintain the 

integrity of our business operations. 

 

3. Our Company has availed certain unsecured loans that may be recalled by the lenders at any time.  

 

Our Company has currently availed unsecured loans which may be recalled by the lenders at any time. 

As on June 30, 2025, our Company had availed unsecured loans amounting to ₹ 4565.92 lakhs, 

comprising 77.73% of the total borrowings of our Company.  

 

In the event that any lender seeks repayment of any such loan on shorter notice, our Company would 

need to find alternative sources of financing, which may not be available on commercially reasonable 

terms. We may not have adequate working capital to undertake new assignments and complete orders 

for our customers. As a result, any such demand may affect our business, cash flows, financial condition, 

and results of operations.  

 

4. We have entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future. 

 

Our Company in the past has entered into Related Party Transactions and may continue to do so in the 

future, which may affect our competitive edge. Our Company has entered into various transactions with 

our Promoters, Directors and their Relatives and Group Companies and related entities. These 

transactions, inter alia includes salary, remuneration, loans and advances, commission, interest and 

purchase and sales etc.  

 

Our Company entered into such transactions at arm’s length price due to easy proximity and quick 

execution. Also the transactions are in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable 

provisions. While we believe that all our related party transactions have been conducted on an arm’s 

length basis, we cannot assure you that we may not have achieved more favourable terms had such 

transactions been entered into with unrelated parties. There can be no assurance that such transactions, 

individually or collectively, will not have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of 

operations and financial condition, including potential conflicts of interest or otherwise. In addition, our 

business and growth prospects may decline if we cannot benefit from our relationships with them in the 

future. 

 

For details regarding the Related Party Transactions of our Company, see “Financial Statements” 

beginning on page 86 of this letter of Offer. 

 

5. We have experienced negative cash flows in the past. Any such negative cash flows in the future could 

affect our business, results of operations and prospects. 
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Our Company has reported certain negative cash flows from our operating, investing activities and 

financing activities in the previous years as per the Audited Financial Statements and the same are 

summarized as under: 

 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 

2025 2024 2023 

Cash flow from Operating Activities (419.49) 1,062.25 1,789.35 

Cash flow from Investing Activities 196.86 (35.82) (80.67) 

Cash flow from Financing Activities 293.91 (1,129.07) (1662.37) 

 

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet 

capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from 

external resources. If our Company is not able to generate sufficient cash flows, it may affect our business 

and financial operations. 

 

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Financial Information” beginning on page 86 of this 

Letter of Offer. 

 

6. The property used by the Company for the purpose of its operations is not owned by us. Any 

termination of the relevant rent agreement in connection with such property or failure on our part to 

renew the same could adversely affect our operations. 

 

Our registered office is located at 666/12, Anna Aluminium Building Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, 

Aluva, Kerala, India, 683562, and the same is not owned by us. We have obtained this property from our 

promoter group company i.e., Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited through a Lease Deed dated 

March 27, 2021. Any termination of the lease in connection with this property or any dispute between 

our company and promoter group entity or our failure to renew the same, in a timely manner or at all 

could adversely affect our operations.  

 

If we are required to vacate the current premises, we would be required to make alternative arrangements 

for our business activities and we cannot assure that the new arrangements will be on commercially 

acceptable/favourable terms. If we are required to relocate our business operations during this period, we 

may suffer a disruption in our operations or have to pay higher charges, which could have an adverse 

effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.  

 

For details regarding properties taken on lease refer to the chapter titled, “Our Business” beginning on 

page 69 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

7. Our business is vulnerable to fluctuations in demand for apparel products and rapidly changing 

fashion trends, which could adversely affect our operations and financial performance. 

 

Our Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of apparel products, catering to the 

needs of the fashion and clothing industry. The demand for our products is influenced by multiple factors, 

including market competition, evolving consumer preferences, pricing pressures, and fluctuations in raw 

material costs. The apparel industry is highly dynamic, with trends shifting rapidly based on fashion 

cycles, seasonal demand, and customer inclinations. 

 

Our ability to attract and retain customers depends on accurately forecasting and adapting to these 

changing consumer preferences, ensuring that our product designs remain aligned with market trends. 

Any miscalculation on our part in identifying consumer demands or a decline in preference for our 

product offerings may result in reduced sales, increased inventory levels, and lower profit margins. 

Additionally, increased competition from existing players or the emergence of new entrants with better 

adaptability to market trends could lead to the substitution of our products, negatively impacting our 

revenues, cash flows, and overall financial health. 
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For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 69 of this letter of 

Offer. 

 

8. Our Company is required to comply with certain restrictive covenants under our financing 

agreements. Any non-compliance may lead to, amongst others, an accelerated repayment schedule 

and suspension of further drawdowns, which may adversely affect our business, cash flows, results of 

operations and financial conditions. 

 

Some of the financing arrangements entered into by our Company include conditions that restrict us to 

carry out certain activities and entering into certain transactions. Failure to meet these conditions could 

have significant consequences on our business and operations. These covenants vary depending on the 

requirements of the financial institution extending such a loan and the conditions negotiated under each 

financing agreement. 

 

While all necessary conditions for the Issue have been fulfilled, a failure to observe the covenants under 

our financing arrangements or to obtain necessary waivers may lead to the termination of our credit 

facilities, acceleration of amounts due under such facilities and suspension of further access/ 

withdrawals, either in whole or in part, for the use of the facility. 

 

9. Our success depends substantially on the continuing services of our Promoters, senior executives and 

other key personnels. If we are unable to attract and retain senior executives, we may not be able to 

maintain client relationships and grow effectively, which may adversely affect our business, cash flow, 

results of operations and financial condition. 

 

Our future success heavily depends upon the continued services of our Promoters, senior executives and 

other key personnel. If one or more of our senior executives or key personnels are unable or unwilling to 

continue in their present positions, it could disrupt our business operations and we may not be able to 

replace them easily or at all. In addition, there is extensive competition within the Indian textile market, 

owing to an increasing number of players, we may be unable to retain our senior executives and key 

personnels or attract and retain new senior executives and key personnels in the future, in which case our 

business may be severely disrupted, which could materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, 

financial condition and results of operations. 

 

If any of our senior executives or key personnels joins a competitor or forms a competing company, we 

may lose customers, suppliers, know-how and key professionals and staff members to them which may 

materially adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations. Also, 

if any of our business development managers, who generally keep a close relationship with our 

customers, join a competitor or form a competing company, we may lose customers and our revenues 

may be materially adversely affected. Additionally, there could be unauthorised disclosure or use of our 

technical knowledge, practices or procedures by such personnels. If any dispute arises between our senior 

executives or key personnels and us, any non-competition, non-solicitation and non-disclosure provisions 

in our employment agreements we have with our senior executives or key personnels might not provide 

effective protection to us. 

 

10. The loss, shutdown or slowdown of operations of our facility or the under-utilization of any such 

facility may have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

 

Our business and results of operations are dependent on our ability to effectively plan our manufacturing 

processes. Any disruption to our manufacturing process or the operation of our production facilities may 

result from various factors beyond our control, including, utility supply disturbances, particularly power 

supply; forced close down or suspension of our manufacturing facilities due to factors such as breakdown 

or failure of equipment, performance below expected levels of output or efficiency, facility obsolescence 

or disrepair, labour disputes such as strikes and work stoppages, natural disasters and industrial accidents; 

severe weather condition; interruption of our information technology systems that facilitate the 

management of our manufacturing facilities and other production or distribution problems, including 

limitations to production capacity due to regulatory requirements, changes in the types of products 

produced or physical limitations that could impact continuous supply.  
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Although our production facilities have not experienced any material disruption in the past, there can be 

no assurance that there will not be any material disruption to our operations in the future. If we fail to 

take adequate steps to mitigate the likelihood or potential impact of these events, or to effectively respond 

to these events if they occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be 

materially affected, further we will not able to achieve our sales as compared to previous years due to 

any disruption in our facilities and process.  

 

For Further details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 69 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

 

11. We have significant power requirements for continuous running of our factories. Any disruption to 

our operations on account of interruption in power supply or any irregular or significant hike in power 

tariffs may have an effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.  

 

Our factory has significant electricity requirements and any interruption in power supply may disrupt our 

operations. Our business and financial results may be affected by any disruption of operations. We 

depend on third parties for all of our power requirements.  

 

Since we have significant power consumption, any unexpected or significant increase in its tariff can 

increase the operating cost of factories and production cost which we may not be able to pass on to our 

customers. There are limited number of electricity providers in area from where we operate due to which 

in case of a price hike we may not be able to find a cost-effective substitute, which may negatively affect 

our business, financial condition and results of operations.  

 

For Further details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 69 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

 

12. Our business is manpower intensive and any unavailability of our employees or shortage of labour or 

any strikes, work stoppages, increased wage demands by workmen or changes in regulations 

governing hiring of labour may have an adverse impact on our cash flows and results of operations.  

 

Our business is manpower intensive and we are dependent on the availability of our permanent 

employees and the supply of a sufficient pool of labourers at our factories. Unavailability or shortage of 

such a pool of workmen or any strikes, work stoppages, increased wage demands by workmen or changes 

in regulations governing hiring of labour may have an adverse impact on our cash flows and results of 

operations.  

 

We are subject to laws and regulations relating to employee welfare and benefits such as minimum wage, 

working conditions, employee insurance, and other such employee benefits and any changes to existing 

labour legislations, including upward revision of wages required by such state governments to be paid to 

such labourers, limitations on the number of hours of work or provision of improved facilities, such as 

food or safety equipment, may adversely affect our business and results of our operations.  

 

Further, there can be no assurance that disruptions in our business will not be experienced if there are 

strikes, work stoppages, disputes or other problems with labourers at our manufacturing units. This may 

adversely affect our business and cash flows and results of operations.  

 

For Further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 69 of this Letter 

of Offer. 

 

13. Our inability to obtain, renew, or maintain statutory and regulatory approvals, licenses, and permits 

required for our business operations may adversely affect our business and financial condition. 

 

Our Company is required to obtain and maintain various statutory and regulatory approvals, licenses, 

registrations, and permits at both the central and state government levels for conducting its business 

operations. Many of these approvals are subject to periodic renewals, modifications, or updates, and any 

failure or delay in obtaining or renewing such approvals may result in legal or regulatory actions, 

financial penalties, or operational disruptions. 
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While we endeavor to comply with all applicable regulatory requirements, the legal framework 

governing our business is evolving and may become increasingly stringent, leading to additional 

compliance costs and obligations. Further, the approvals we obtain may be subject to conditions, some 

of which could be onerous, and any failure to meet such conditions could result in their suspension, 

revocation, or non-renewal. Additionally, any delay in obtaining necessary permits, including those 

related to labor laws, environmental clearances, or manufacturing operations, may result in time and cost 

overruns, affecting our production and supply chain. 

 

Furthermore, we cannot assure that the relevant authorities will issue or renew approvals in a timely 

manner, or at all. Any adverse regulatory action, failure to secure necessary approvals, or changes in the 

legal framework affecting our industry could materially impact our business, financial condition, results 

of operations, and future growth prospects.  

 

For further details regarding regulatory approvals and compliance requirements, please refer to the 

chapter titled “Government and Other Statutory Approvals” on page 99 of this letter of Offer. 

 

14. Our success significantly depends upon the services of our Promoters and other Key Managerial 

Personnel and our ability to retain them. Our inability to attract, hire, train and retain key managerial 

personnel may adversely affect the operations of our Company 

 

Our success significantly depends on the leadership, expertise, and strategic vision of our Promoters and 

Key Managerial Personnel. The continued guidance, industry knowledge and key leadership of our 

Promoters, Mr. Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob and Mrs. Minni Boby Jacob, have been instrumental in 

driving our growth, expanding our business operations, and strengthening our market position. With 

extensive experience in the textile industry, their contributions play a crucial role in ensuring operational 

efficiency, business development, and long-term sustainability. 

 

The loss of services of any of our Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel, or senior management members 

could have a material adverse effect on our business, operations, and growth trajectory. Finding and 

retaining suitable replacements with comparable industry expertise may be challenging, leading to 

potential disruptions in strategic execution and operational continuity. 

 

Furthermore, our ability to expand and sustain growth depends on attracting, training, motivating, and 

retaining skilled professionals across various levels. The textile industry is highly competitive, and we 

may face challenges in retaining talent due to competitive compensation structures and career 

opportunities offered by larger market players. Any inability to retain or attract experienced professionals 

may adversely affect our business operations, financial condition, and future prospects. 

 

15. We face competition in our business from organized and unorganized players, which may adversely 

affect our business operation and financial condition. 

 

The market in which our Company is doing business is highly competitive on account of both the 

organized and unorganized players. Players in this industry generally compete with each other on key 

attributes. Some of our competitors may have longer industry experience and greater financial, technical 

and other resources, which may enable them to react faster in changing market scenario and remain 

competitive. Moreover, the unorganized sector offers their products at highly competitive prices which 

may not be matched by us and consequently affect our volume of sales and growth prospects. Growing 

competition may result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins which may adversely 

affect our business operations and our financial condition. 

 

16. Our Company’s logo   is not registered as on date of this Letter of Offer. We may be 

unable to adequately protect our intellectual property. Furthermore, we may be subject to claims 

alleging breach of third-party intellectual property rights which could have a material adverse effect 

on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 
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As on date of letter of Offer, we have not made an application for registration of our logo  

under the Trade Marks Act, 1999, hence, we do not enjoy the statutory protections accorded to a 

registered logo. Further, there can be no assurance that third parties will not infringe our intellectual 

property, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill. We may not be able to 

detect any unauthorized use or our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not be adequately 

safeguarded and may lead to erosion of our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. 

We may need to litigate in order to determine the validity of such claims and the scope of the proprietary 

rights of others. Any such litigation could be time consuming and costly and the outcome cannot be 

guaranteed. 

  

For further details on our trademark, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 69 

of this Letter of Offer. 

 

17. We are dependent on external suppliers for fabric, which constitutes the largest component of our 

material, and our Company may not be able to obtain sufficient quantities or required quality of raw 

materials at the desired prices, in a timely manner and could have a material adverse effect on our 

business, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

Our business and operations are dependent on the timely availability of the desired quality of raw 

materials like cotton, specialized yarn, yarn and fabric at a reasonable cost. Our primary raw material is 

cotton fabric. We are dependent on external suppliers for our raw materials including cotton fabric, which 

constitutes the main component of our raw material. Any delays or non-conformance to quality 

requirements by our suppliers may impact our ability to meet our customer’s requirements and thus 

impact our business in the long term. 

 

Further we have not entered into any long term agreements with suppliers of raw material and typically 

procure goods pursuant to purchase orders placed with identified suppliers. In absence of such long-term 

contracts, we have limited control on pricing of raw material. Further, non-availability of any raw 

material, textile or any other item of production in appropriate quantity and quality may affect our 

operations, which in turn can impact our affect our business and financial. Prices of fabric in India 

fluctuate based on the demand and supply in the market and there can be no assurance that the price 

levels of fabric will remain where they currently are or not significantly increase. Any fluctuation in 

fabric prices is passed on to the customer and therefore may not have any impact on business, financial 

condition, and results of operations. 

 

Although we rely on external suppliers for our raw materials, the majority of these suppliers are 

nominated by our buyers. As such, it is the responsibility of these nominated suppliers to deliver the 

required materials within the agreed timelines and at the specified rates. This arrangement helps mitigate 

our exposure to supplier-related risks to a certain extent. 

 

18. If we are not successful in managing our growth, our business may be disrupted and our profitability 

may be reduced. 

 

We expect our businesses to continue to grow significantly. Our future growth is subject to risks arising 

from a rapid increase in volume, and inability to retain and recruit skilled staff. We may not grow at a 

rate comparable to our growth rate in the past, either in terms of income or profit.  

 

Our future growth may place significant demands on our management and operations and require us to 

continuously evolve and improve our financial, operational and other internal controls within our 

Company. In particular, continued expansion may pose challenges in:  

➢ maintaining high levels of quality control and cost effective manufacturing, and customer 

satisfaction; 

➢ recruiting, training and retaining sufficient skilled management and technical personnel for our 

manufacturing process;  

➢ developing and improving our internal administrative infrastructure, particularly our financial, 

operational, communications, internal control and other internal systems;  
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➢ making accurate assessments of the resources;  

➢ adhering to the standards of health, safety and environment and quality and process execution 

to meet clients’ expectations;  

➢ strengthening internal control and ensuring compliance with legal and contractual obligations;  

➢ Managing relationships with customers, suppliers and lenders.  

 

If we are not successful in managing our growth, our business may be disrupted and profitability may be 

reduced. Our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected. 

 

19. Any failure in our quality control processes may have an adverse effect on our business, results of 

operations and financial condition. 

 

Our products may contain quality issues or undetected errors or defects. We experience sales returns and 

quality compensation in our normal course of business. We have implemented quality checks and tests 

and regularly conduct inspections of raw materials sourced from suppliers and finished products 

manufactured by us on the basis of our internal quality standards. However, we cannot assure you that 

our quality control processes will not fail or the quality tests and inspections conducted by us will be 

accurate at all times. Any shortcoming in the raw materials procured by us or in the production of our 

products due to failure of our quality assurance procedures, negligence, human error or otherwise, may 

damage our products and result in deficient products. We also face the risk of legal proceedings and 

product liability claims being brought against us by our customers for defective products sold. We cannot 

assure you that we will not experience any material product liability losses in the future or that we will 

not incur significant costs to defend any such claims. A product liability claim may adversely affect our 

reputation and brand image, as well as entail significant costs in defending such claims. 

 

20. Any failure on our part to effectively manage our inventory may result in an adverse effect on our 

business, revenue from manufacturing operations and financial condition. 

 

We are a manufacturing company, and, at all points of time, a certain portion of our assets comprises of 

an inventory of raw materials, work in progress and finished goods. Maintaining sufficient inventory of 

raw materials is critical for our operations including as a buffer against any supply disruptions. Any 

failure on our part to effectively manage our inventory of raw materials and finished products in response 

to changing market scenario may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and may even lead to 

loss of business and increase the costs of our operations.  

 

In the event we overestimate our requirements for raw materials as compared to the demand for our 

products, it may lead to situations that require us to block more capital and increase our operating costs 

in connection with inventories and further expose us to variations in raw materials risk. Equally, if we 

underestimate our requirements for raw materials, it may adversely affect our ability to manufacture the 

required quantity of products for our customers’ requirements in a timely and cost-efficient manner 

which may lead to loss of business and / or the opportunity to service customers which could adversely 

affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Further, we may also lose opportunities 

to acquire raw materials in a cost-effective manner, thereby increasing costs of operations and adversely 

affecting our working capital requirements.  

 

Additionally, if our inventory of finished products is not dispatched on time or if there is any 

unanticipated delay in the delivery of our finished products or if the finished products are not properly 

maintained or are damaged or destroyed, we could lose such inventory which could have an adverse 

impact on our production cycle, results of operation and financial condition. 

 

21. Under-utilization of our manufacturing capacities and an inability to effectively utilize our existing 

manufacturing capacities could have an adverse effect on our business, future prospects and future 

financial performance. 

 

Our capacity utilization levels are dependent on our ability to carry out uninterrupted operations at 

manufacturing facility as well as on the market demand of the products sold by us. Among others, the 

capacity utilization also depends upon the availability of raw materials, labour, industry/ market 

conditions and procurement practice followed by our customers. In the event we are unable to achieve 
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considerable capacity utilization of our current manufacturing facility, it would result in operational 

inefficiencies which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results, financial condition and 

future prospects. Under-utilization of our manufacturing capabilities over extended periods, or 

significant under-utilization in the short-term, could materially and adversely impact our business, 

growth prospects and future financial performance. 

 

For details on our capacity installed and capacity utilisation, kindly refer to “Our Business” on page 69 

of this Letter of Offer. 

 

22. Information relating to our production capacities and the historical capacity utilization of our 

production facilities included in this Letter of Offer is based on certain assumptions and our future 

production and capacity utilization may vary. 

 

Information relating to our production capacities and the historical capacity utilization of our production 

facilities included in this Letter of Offer is based on various assumptions and estimates of our 

management, including proposed operations, assumptions relating to availability and quality of raw 

materials and assumptions relating to operational efficiencies. Actual production levels and utilization 

rates may differ significantly from the estimated production capacities or historical estimated capacity 

utilization information of our facilities. Undue reliance should therefore not be placed on our production 

capacity or historical estimated capacity utilization information for our existing facilities included in this 

Letter of Offer.  

 

For further information, see the chapter titled “Our Business” on page 69 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

23. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against certain operating hazards and this 

may have a material adverse effect on our business. 

 

Our operations are subject to risks inherent in manufacturing facilities such as risk of equipment failure, 

work accidents, fire, earthquakes, flood and other force majeure events, acts of terrorism and explosions 

including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and the destruction of property 

and equipment and environmental damage. Our significant insurance policies consist of, Fire Policy, 

Fidility Insurance, Burglary Insurance, Machinery Breakdown, Marine Insurance, Electronic Equipment 

Policy, among others. While we believe that we maintain insurance coverage in adequate amounts 

consistent with size of our business, our insurance policies do not cover all risks, specifically risks such 

as cash in transit, keyman insurance, workmen compensation, group personal accident or mediclaim 

policy. Failure to effectively cover ourselves against the associated risks may potentially lead to material 

losses. There can be no assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses/ 

damages suffered or that such insurance coverage will continue to be available on reasonable terms or 

will be available in sufficient amounts to cover one or more large claims, or that the insurer will not 

disclaim coverage as to any future claim. If we suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance claim 

in respect of the subject matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly 

exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be 

materially and adversely affected. 

 

24. Our business operations are majorly concentrated in a particular geographical region and any adverse 

developments affecting our operations in this region could have a significant impact on our revenue 

and results of operations. 

 

We carry our entire manufacturing operations from our unit located in karur, Tamilnadu. Due to the 

geographical concentration of our manufacturing operations primarily in Karur, our operations are 

susceptible to local, regional and environmental factors, such as social and civil unrest, regional conflicts, 

civil disturbances, economic and weather conditions, natural disasters, demographic and population 

changes, and other unforeseen events and circumstances. Such disruptions could result in the damage or 

destruction of a significant portion of our manufacturing abilities, significant delays in the transport of 

our products and raw materials, loss of key managerial personnel, and/or otherwise adversely affect our 

business, financial condition and results of operations.  
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In addition, we generate almost 100% of our revenue through our customers situated in Tamilnadu and 

kerala. Further, our most of the suppliers are also located in Tamilnadu. Such geographical concentration 

of our business in the Southern region heightens our exposure to adverse developments related to 

competition, as well as economic and demographic changes in this region, which may adversely affect 

our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations.  

 

Further, as we enter into new markets and geographical areas, we are likely to compete with not only 

national players, but also the local players, who might have an established local presence, and are more 

familiar with local business practices and have stronger relationships with local distributors, dealers, 

relevant government authorities, suppliers or are in a stronger financial position than us, all of which may 

give them a competitive advantage over us. Our inability to expand into other areas may adversely affect 

our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. While our management believes 

that the Company has requisite expertise and vision to grow and mark its presence in other markets going 

forward, investors should consider our business and prospects in light of the risks, losses and challenges 

that we face and should not rely on our results of operations for any prior periods as an indication of our 

future performance. 

 

25. Our Company has not entered into any long-term contracts with any of its customers and we typically 

operate on the basis of purchase orders. Inability to maintain regular order flow would adversely 

impact our revenues and profitability. 

 

Our Company has had long standing business relationships with certain customers and has been 

supplying our products to such customers. However, we have not entered into any long term contracts 

with these customers and we cater to them on purchase order basis. We are bound to comply with 

different terms and conditions stipulated in the purchase orders failing which, may led to termination or 

cancellation of the purchase orders by our customers. Our customers may also terminate their 

relationships with us without any notice which could materially and adversely impact our business. 

Consequently, our revenue may be subject to variability because of fluctuations in demand for our 

products. Our Company’s customers have no obligation to place order with us and may either cancel, 

reduce or delay orders. Failure to deliver products on time could lead to customers delaying or refusing 

to pay the amount, in part or full, which may adversely affect our business. In addition, even where a 

delivery proceeds as scheduled, it is possible that the contracting parties may default or otherwise fail to 

pay amounts owed. The orders placed by our Company's customers are dependent on factors such as the 

customer satisfaction with the level of service that our Company provides, fluctuation in demand for our 

Company’s products and customer’s inventory management. Although we place a strong emphasis on 

quality, timely delivery of our products, etc., in the absence of contracts, any sudden change in the buying 

pattern of customers could adversely affect the business and the profitability of our Company. 

 

26. Our basic raw materials are cotton products, which are inflammable. Any unforeseen accidents may 

result in loss of property or life in the facilities and/or disruption in the manufacturing processes 

which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows and financial 

condition. 

 

Cotton products and fabric are the basic raw material for apparel manufacturing. Such materials are 

highly inflammable, which may be due to failure of electrical equipment, sparks from foreign matter in 

cotton stock or any reason whatsoever. While there have been no accidents in the past resulting in 

material loss of property or life in the facilities and/or material disruption in the manufacturing processes 

in the past, and while we undertake routine safety measures, any fire or unforeseen accidents due to any 

reason beyond our control, may result in loss of property, loss of human life and/or disruption in the 

manufacturing processes. We may incur high costs and take time to repair our properties, replenish 

stocks, which may in turn result in us being unable to meet our business commitments and we may be 

held liable for the loss of life. 

 

27. We are subject to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which could have a material and 

adverse effect on our results of operations and financial conditions. 

 

We receive in foreign currencies during the normal course of business for selling products to our global 

customers at mutually agreed prices. Changes in value of currencies with respect to the Rupee may cause 
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fluctuations in our operating results expressed in Rupees. The exchange rate between the Rupee and other 

currencies is variable and may continue to fluctuate in future. Fluctuations in the exchange rates may 

affect our Company to the extent of cost of goods and sales in foreign currency terms. Although we 

generally hedge our foreign exposure, any adverse or unforeseen fluctuations with respect to the 

unhedged exchange rate of any foreign currency for Indian Rupees may affect our Company’s results of 

operations. 

 

28. Our director and Promoters and Group Company have provided personal guarantees and personal 

property for loans availed by our Company. Our business, financial condition, results of operations, 

cash flows and prospects may be adversely affected by the invocation of all or any personal guarantees 

and personal property. 

 

Our director, promoters and group company have provided personal guarantees and personal property to 

secure our existing borrowings and may continue to provide such guarantees and other security. In case 

of  default under our loan agreements, any of the personal guarantees provided by our director and their 

relative may be invoked, which could negatively impact the reputation of our Company. Also, we may 

face certain impediments in taking decisions in relation to our Company, which in turn would result in a 

material adverse effect on our financial condition, business, results of operations and prospects and would 

negatively impact our reputation. Also if our Directors and promoters revoke their personal guarantees 

and property and we may not be successful in procuring alternate guarantees and property to the lenders, 

as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional sources of 

capital, which could affect our financial condition and cash flows.  

 

For further details regarding loans availed by our Company, please refer “Financial Information” on 

page no. 86 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

29. We depend on third parties for a major portion of our transportation needs. Any disruptions may affect 

our operations, business and financial condition. 

 

We rely on third party transportation and other logistic facilities at every stage of our business activity 

including for procurement of raw material from our suppliers, sending and receiving back the product 

from job work and for transportation from our finish products to our customers. For this purpose, we hire 

services of transportation companies. However, we have not entered into any definitive agreements with 

any transport service providers and engage them on a need basis. Additionally, the availability of 

transport solutions in the market we operate in is typically fragmented. We do not enter into written 

documentation in relation to the transportation services we hire which poses various additional risks 

including our inability to claim insurance. Further, the cost of our goods carried by such third-party 

transporters is typically much higher than the consideration paid for transportation, due to which it may 

be difficult for us to recover compensation for damaged, delayed or lost goods.  

 

Our operations and profitability are dependent upon the availability of transportation and other logistic 

facilities in a time and cost-effective manner. Accordingly, our business is vulnerable to increased 

transportation costs including as a result of an increase in fuel costs, transportation strikes, delays, 

damage or losses of goods in transit and disruption of transportation services because of weather-related 

problems, strikes, lock-outs, accidents, inadequacies in road infrastructure or other events.  

 

Although we have not experienced any disruptions in the past, any prolonged disruption or unavailability 

of such facilities in a timely manner could result in delays or non-supply or may require us to look for 

alternative sources which may be cost inefficient, thereby affecting our operations and profitability. 

 

30. Our Company's manufacturing activities are labour intensive and depend on availability of skilled 

and unskilled labourers in large numbers. In case of unavailability of such labourers and / or inability 

to retain such personnel, our business operations could be affected. 

 

Our Company employed 664 employees as on June 30, 2025 on our payroll. The above includes 

employees in the top and middle management (including the Executive Director), and also employees 

who are part of the manufacturing unit and office staff. Our operations and performance are labour 

intensive and depends on our ability to identify, attract and retain both skilled and unskilled labour. In 
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case such labour is unavailable or we are unable to identify and retain such labourers, our business could 

be adversely affected. Further, there might be instances where we will need to hire additional contract 

labour, either for specialized jobs or during periods of high customer orders. We have not entered into 

any agreement for hiring additional labourers and thus availability of appropriately skilled labour cannot 

be guaranteed. Any failure to hire the appropriate labour may impact the operations and impair our client 

relations. 

 

31. Our Promoter and Directors have interest in us other than reimbursement of expenses incurred and 

normal remuneration or benefits.  

 

Our Promoters and Directors may be deemed to be interested in our business other than reimbursement 

of expenses incurred or normal remuneration or benefits owing to their shareholding in our Company, 

any guarantees extended by them, or other transactions they may separately enter into with our Company. 

We cannot assure you that conflicts of interest will not arise owing to such interest in our Company, or 

that any conflict will be resolved in our shareholders’ best interests. For further details, see “Capital 

Structure” and “Financial Statements” on pages 45 and 86, respectively, of this Letter of Offer. 

 

32. Employee misconduct, errors or fraud could expose us to business risks or losses that could adversely 

affect our business prospects, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

Employee misconduct, errors or frauds could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory 

sanctions, penalties and serious harm to our reputation. Such employee misconduct includes breach in 

security requirements, misappropriation of funds, hiding unauthorized activities, failure to observe our 

operational standards and processes, and improper use of confidential information. It is not always 

possible to detect or deter such misconduct, and the precautions we take to prevent and detect such 

misconduct may not be effective. In addition, losses caused on account of employee misconduct or 

misappropriation of petty cash expenses and advances may not be recoverable, which we may result in 

write-off of such amounts and thereby adversely affecting our results of operations. Our employees may 

also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as 

regulatory actions in which case, our reputation, business prospects, results of operations and financial 

condition could be adversely affected. 

 

33. We are subject to the risk of failure of, or a material weakness in our internal control systems.  

 

We are exposed to risks arising from the inadequacy or failure of internal systems or processes and any 

actions we may take to mitigate these risks may not be sufficient to ensure an effective internal control 

environment. Given our high volume of transactions, errors may be repeated or compounded before they 

are discovered and rectified. Our management information systems and internal control procedures may 

not be able to identify non-compliance or suspicious transactions in a timely manner, or at all. Where 

internal control weaknesses are identified, our actions may not be sufficient to fully correct such 

weaknesses. In addition, several of our collection related processes are yet to be fully automated, which 

may increase the risk that human error, tampering or manipulation will result in losses that may be 

difficult to detect. As a result, we may incur expenses or suffer monetary losses, which may not be 

covered by our insurance policies and may result in a material effect on our business, financial condition 

and results of operations. 

 

34. Our failure to adapt to technological developments or industry trends could adversely affect the quality 

of our products and reduce our attractiveness to our customers. 

 

As our operations grow in scope and size, whether through offering of new products or expansion into 

new markets, we must continuously improve, upgrade, adapt and expand our systems and infrastructure 

to offer our customers quality and enhanced products ahead of rapidly evolving customer demands, while 

maintaining the reliability and integrity of our systems and infrastructure in a cost-efficient and 

competitive manner. The systems, infrastructure and technologies we currently employ may become 

obsolete or be unable to support our increased size and scale. Even if we are able to maintain, upgrade 

or replace our existing systems or innovate or customize and develop new technologies and systems, we 

may not be as quick or efficient as our competitors in upgrading or replacing our systems. We may be 

unable to devote adequate financial resources or obtain sufficient financing on commercially acceptable 
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terms in time, or at all, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of 

operation and financial condition.  

 

For further details regarding our business, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on 

page 69 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

35. We may face product liability claims and legal proceedings if the quality of our products does not meet 

our customers’ expectations.  

 

We are exposed to legal proceedings and product liability claims being brought against us by our 

customers for any defective products. Any shortcoming in the raw materials procured by us or in the 

production of our products due to failure of our quality assurance procedures, negligence, human error 

or otherwise, may result in product no complying with necessary standards. While there have been no 

such instances in last three fiscals years, where any legal proceedings or product liability claims have 

been brought against us for defective products sold resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, 

profitability, cash flows, reputation and financial condition. We cannot assure you that we will not 

experience any such material product liability in the future or that, we will not incur significant costs to 

defend any such claims. A product liability claim may adversely affect our reputation and brand image, 

as well as entail significant costs in defending such claims will result in an adverse impact on our business 

and operations.  

 

36. Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future 

earnings, financial condition or cash flows. 

 

Our ability to pay dividends in future will depend on our earnings, financial condition and capital 

requirements. We may be unable to pay dividends in the near or medium term, and our future dividend 

policy will depend on our capital requirements and financing arrangements in respect of our operations, 

financial condition and results of operations. Our Company has not declared dividends in the past, and 

there can be no assurance that our Company will declare dividends in the future also.  

 

37. Industry information included in this DLOF has been derived from a publicly available information. 

There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information 

is complete, reliable or accurate.  

 

Our Company has not independently verified the data obtained from various websites, industry 

publications and publicly available documents from various industry sources referred to in this Letter of 

Offer and therefore, while we believe them to be accurate, complete and reliable, we cannot assure you 

that they are accurate, complete, or reliable. Such data may also be produced on different bases. Industry 

publications generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from 

sources believed to be reliable, but their accuracy, adequacy or completeness and underlying assumptions 

are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry and government sources and 

publications are also prepared on the basis of information as of specific dates and may no longer be 

current or reflect current trends. Industry and government sources and publications may also base their 

information on estimates, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, no 

investment decision should be made on the basis of such information. 

 

38. Any Penalty or demand raise by statutory authorities in future will affect the financial position of the 

Company. 

 

Our Company is mainly engaged in business of manufacturing of readymade garments which attracts tax 

liability such as Income tax and Goods and Service Tax and other applicable provision of the Acts. 

However, the Company has been depositing the return under above applicable acts but any demand or 

penalty raise by concerned authority in future for any previous year and current year will affect the 

financial position of the Company. Any such penalty arising in future may result in financial loss to our 

Company. For details, please refer to the “Outstanding Litigations and Other Defaults” beginning on 

page 97 of this Letter of Offer.  
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RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES AND THIS ISSUE 

 

39. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form 

(“Physical Shareholder”) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to 

the Registrar. 

 

In accordance with the circular SEBI Master Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of 

Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the 

Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat account opened by our Company 

during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat 

account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the 

credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. 

The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat 

account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. 

Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 

1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in 

dematerialized form. For details, please refer chapter “Terms of the Issue” on page 107 of this Letter of 

Offer. 

 

40. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without 

compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding. 

 

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and 

become null and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The 

proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail 

(or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your 

unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully 

compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company 

that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in 

completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are 

credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the 

Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will 

not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Terms of the 

Issue” on page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

41. Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain compliance 

requirements, including prior shareholder’s approval 

 

Our Company proposes to utilise the Net Proceeds for acquisitions and investments purposes. For further 

details of the proposed objects of the Issue, please refer chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning 

on page 48 of this Letter of Offer. In case of any exigencies arising out of business conditions, economic 

conditions, competition or other factors beyond our control which adversely affect our business, we may 

require to use the Net Proceeds to meet any other expenditure which cannot be determined with certainty 

as on the date of this Letter of Offer. In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act, 

2013, we cannot undertake any variation in the utilization of the Net Proceeds or in the terms of any 

contract as disclosed in this Letter of Offer without obtaining the shareholders’ approval through a special 

resolution. In the event of any such circumstances requiring us to undertake variation in the utilisation of 

the Net Proceeds disclosed in this Letter of Offer, we cannot assure that we will be able to obtain the 

shareholders’ approval in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in obtaining such 

shareholders’ approval may adversely affect our business.  

 

In light of these factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of objects of the Issue to use any 

unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in the Letter of Offer, 

even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our Company’s ability to 

respond to any change in our business or financial condition by re-deploying the unutilised portion of 

Net Proceeds, if any, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations. 
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42. The deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to monitoring by any 

monitoring agency and shall be purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our 

Company. 

 

Since the size of the Issue is less than ₹10,000 lakhs, no monitoring agency is required to be appointed 

by our Company to oversee the deployment of funds raised through this Issue. The deployment of funds 

raised through this Issue is at the discretion of the management and the Board of Directors of our 

Company and will not be subject to monitoring by any independent agency. The Board of Directors of 

our Company through Audit Committee will monitor the utilization of the Issue Proceeds. Any inability 

on our part to effectively utilize the Issue Proceeds could adversely affect our business and financial 

condition. 

 

43. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our 

Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members 

of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. 

 

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares 

by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the 

Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception 

by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity 

Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity 

Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may 

significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter and 

Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. 

 

44. Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares. 

 

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity 

shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment 

of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares 

held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on 

which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a 

period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising 

from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases 

where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a 

resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a 

result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on 

gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares. 

 

45. Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their 

Applications after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity 

Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with its depository participant shall be completed within such 

period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse 

changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other 

events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation, cash 

flows or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the Equity 

Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue. 

Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our 

Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any 

such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below 

the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after 

the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be 

higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder 

will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events 

may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of 

our Equity Shares to decline. 
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46. Investors will be subject to market risks until the Equity Shares credited to the investors demat account 

are listed and permitted to trade. 

 

Investors can start trading the Equity Shares allotted to them only after they have been credited to an 

investor’s demat account, are listed and permitted to trade. Since the Equity Shares are currently traded 

on the Stock Exchange, investors will be subject to market risk from the date they pay for the Equity 

Shares to the date when trading approval is granted for the same. Further, there can be no assurance that 

the Equity Shares allocated to an investor will be credited to the investor’s demat account or that trading 

in the Equity Shares will commence in a timely manner. 

 

47. You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date 

on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk. 

 

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the 

depository participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading 

such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be 

no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that 

trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market 

risk for such period. 

 

48. The Rights Equity Shares may experience price and volume fluctuations  

 

The market price of the Rights Equity Shares can be volatile as a result of several factors beyond our 

control, including volatility in the Indian and global securities markets, our results of operations, the 

performance of our competitors, developments in the Indian finance and lending sector, changing 

perceptions in the market about investments in this sector in India, investor perceptions of our future 

performance, adverse media reports about us or our sector, changes in the estimates of our performance 

or recommendations by financial analysts, significant developments in India’s economic liberalization 

and deregulation policies, and significant developments in India’s fiscal regulations. In addition, the 

Stock Exchange may experience significant price and volume fluctuations, which may have a material 

adverse effect on the market price of the Rights Equity Shares. 

 

General or industry specific market conditions or stock performance or domestic or international 

macroeconomic and geopolitical factors unrelated to our performance also affect the price of the Rights 

Equity Shares. In particular, the stock market as a whole recently experienced extreme price and volume 

fluctuations that have affected the market price of many companies in ways that may have been unrelated 

to the companies’ operating performances. For these reasons, investors should not rely on recent trends 

to predict future share prices, results of operations or cash flow and financial condition. 

 

49. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares shall be issued only in dematerialized 

form. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. 

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow 

demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested 

to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the 

Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least one 

day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not 

furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the 

Issue Closing Date, shall lapse.  

 

50. There is no public market for the Rights Equity Shares or Equity Shares outside India. 

 

After this Issue, there will continue to be no public market for our Equity Shares in the United States or 

any country other than India. In addition, the holders of the partly paid-up Rights Shares will not be able 

to trade in these Equity Shares till they are credited to the holders’ account as fully paid-up, and thereafter 

there will also be no public market for the Rights Shares outside of India. We cannot assure you that the 
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face value of the Rights Shares will correspond to the price at which the Rights Shares will trade 

subsequent to this Issue. This may also affect the liquidity of our Rights Shares and Equity Shares and 

restrict your ability to sell them. 

 

51. Our Company will not distribute the Letter of Offer and other Issue-related materials to overseas 

shareholders who have not provided an address in India for the service of documents. 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and other applicable laws, the Rights 

Entitlements will be credited to the demat account of the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are Equity 

Shareholders as on the Record Date, however, the Issue Materials will be sent/ dispatched only to such 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company and only such 

Eligible Equity Shareholders are permitted to participate in the Issue. The Equity Shareholders who have 

not provided an Indian address to our Company will not be eligible to participate in the Issue and 

accordingly, their shareholding as a percentage of the paid-up capital of our Company post Issue will 

stand reduced to the extent of non-participation. 

 

Further, in the case that Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address and have also 

provided their valid e-mail address, this Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and 

in the case that such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then this Letter 

of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. 

 

However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at any address which may 

be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack of clarity under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder with respect to distribution of Issue Material in overseas 

jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable laws of such jurisdiction. 

While our Company has requested its shareholders to provide an address in India for the purposes of 

distribution of Issue Material, our Company cannot assure that the regulator would not adopt a different 

view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may subject our Company to fines 

or penalties. 

 

52. Overseas shareholders may not be able to participate in our Company’s future rights offerings or 

certain other equity issues. 

 

If our Company offers or causes to be offered to holders of its Equity Shares rights to subscribe for 

additional Equity Shares or any right of any other nature, our Company will have discretion as to the 

procedure to be followed in making such rights available to overseas holders of the Equity Shares or in 

disposing of such rights for the benefit of such holders and making the Net Proceeds available to such 

holders. For instance, our Company may not offer such rights to the holders of Equity Shares who have 

a registered address in the United States unless: (i) a registration statement is in effect, if a registration 

statement under the U.S. Securities Act is required in order for our Company to offer such rights to 

holders and sell the securities represented by such rights; or (ii) the offering and sale of such rights or the 

underlying securities to such holders are exempt from registration under the provisions of the U.S. 

Securities Act. Our Company has no obligation to prepare or file any registration statement. Accordingly, 

shareholders who have a registered address in the United States may be unable to participate in future 

rights offerings and may experience a dilution in their holdings as a result. 

 

53. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed, or continue to be listed, on the Indian 

stock exchanges in a timely manner, or at all, and prospective investors will not be able to immediately 

sell their Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. 

 

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of our Equity Shares 

will not be applied for or granted until after our Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Such 

approval will require the submission of all other relevant documents authorizing the issuance of our 

Equity Shares. Accordingly, there could be a failure or delay in listing our Equity Shares on the Stock 

Exchange, which would adversely affect your ability to sell our Equity Shares. 

 

54. Investors may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and thereby 

may suffer future dilution of their ownership position. 
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Under the Companies Act, a company having share capital and incorporated in India must offer its 

holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to 

maintain their existing ownership percentages before the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the 

pre-emptive rights have been waived by adoption of a special resolution by the company. However, if 

the law of the jurisdiction the investors are in, does not permit them to exercise their pre-emptive rights 

without our Company filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority 

in such jurisdiction, the investors will be unable to exercise their pre-emptive rights unless our Company 

makes such a filing. If we elect not to file a registration statement, the new securities may be issued to a 

custodian, who may sell the securities for the investor’s benefit. The value such custodian receives on 

the sale of such securities and the related transaction costs cannot be predicted. In addition, to the extent 

that the investors are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares held 

by them, their proportional interest in our Company would be reduced. 

 

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

 

55. The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, 

cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence 

could adversely affect the financial markets and our business. 

 

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, 

fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military 

actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist 

attacks and other acts of violence or war in India or globally may adversely affect the Indian securities 

markets. In addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its 

neighbouring countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely 

affect the price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent 

years and it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events 

in India could have an adverse effect on our business. Such incidents could also create a greater 

perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an 

adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity Shares. 

 

56. Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have an adverse effect on our 

business, results of operations and cash flows. 

 

We currently operate only in India and are dependent on domestic, regional and market conditions. Our 

performance, growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent on the Textile 

industry of the Indian economy. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. 

If such condition prevails for longer time the Demand for our products and services may be adversely 

affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional and global economies. India’s economic growth 

is also affected by various other factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade 

movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and 

liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates. Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian 

economy could harm our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. Also, a 

change in the Government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could affect economic 

conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high 

rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and 

as such decrease our operating margins. 

 

57. Financial instability, economic developments and volatility in securities markets in other countries 

may also cause the price of the Equity Shares to decline. 

 

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other 

countries, particularly emerging Asian market countries. Financial turmoil in Europe and elsewhere in 

the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. In recent times, the Indian financial markets 

had been negatively affected by the volatility in global financial market, including on account of certain 

European nations’ debt troubles and move to break away by the United Kingdom from the European 

Union. Although, economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to 
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developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries, 

including India. Currencies of a few Asian countries have in the past suffered depreciation against the 

U.S. Dollar owing to, amongst other, the announcements by the U.S. government that it may consider 

reducing its quantitative easing measures. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other 

emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian 

economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian 

economy. Financial disruptions may occur and could harm our business, future financial performance 

and the prices of the Equity Shares.  

 

The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity disruptions and 

market corrections in recent years. Liquidity and credit concerns and volatility in the global credit and 

financial markets have increased significantly with the bankruptcy or acquisition of, and government 

assistance extended to, several major U.S. and European financial institutions. These and other related 

events, such as the European sovereign debt crisis, have had a significant impact on the global credit and 

financial markets as a whole, including reduced liquidity, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads 

and a lack of price transparency in global credit and financial markets. In response to such developments, 

legislators and financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have 

implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets.  

 

However, the overall impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial 

markets is uncertain, and they may not have the intended stabilizing effects. In the event that the current 

difficult conditions in the global credit markets continue or if there is any significant financial disruption, 

such conditions could have an adverse effect on our business, future financial performance and the 

trading price of the Equity Shares. 

 

58. A significant change in the Government of India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies 

could adversely affect our business and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

The Government of India has traditionally exercised, and continues to exercise, a dominant influence 

over many aspects of the economy. Unfavorable government policies including those relating to the 

internet and e-commerce, consumer protection and data-privacy, could adversely affect business and 

economic conditions in India, and could also affect our ability to implement our strategy and our future 

financial performance. Since 1991, successive governments, including coalition governments, have 

pursued policies of economic liberalization, including significantly relaxing restrictions on the private 

sector and encouraging the development of the Indian financial sector. However, the members of the 

Government of India and the composition of the coalition in power are subject to change. As a result, it 

is difficult to predict the economic policies that will be pursued by the Government of India. For example, 

there may be an increasing number of laws and regulations pertaining to the internet and ecommerce, 

which may relate to liability for information retrieved from or transmitted over the internet or mobile 

networks, user privacy, content restrictions and the quality of services and products sold or provided 

through the internet. The rate of economic liberalization could change and specific laws and policies 

affecting the financial services industry, foreign investment, currency exchange and other matters 

affecting investment in our securities could change as well.  

 

Any significant change in India's economic liberalization and deregulation policies could adversely affect 

business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular. 

 

59. If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a 

proportional rate in order to pass costs on to our customers and our profits might decline. 

 

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in the recent years, and such volatility may continue in the 

future. India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an 

increase in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of transportation, 

wages, raw materials and other expenses relevant to our business.  

 

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our 

costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on 

to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our business, cash flows and 
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financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase the amount of 

commission to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of 

operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.  

 

Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation 

rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian 

inflation levels will not worsen in the future. 

 

60. A downgrade in ratings of India, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.  

 

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on the credit ratings 

of India. Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by 

international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing and the 

interest rates and other commercial terms at which such financing is available, including raising any 

overseas additional financing. A downgrading of India’s credit ratings may occur, for example, upon a 

change of government tax or fiscal policy, which are outside our control. This could have an adverse 

effect on our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all and consequently adversely affect 

our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares. 

 

61. A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer. 

 

We are incorporated in India and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are 

highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are 

significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy 

could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets and 

our ability to implement our strategy. 

 

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy and hence our results of operations, may include: 

• any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation; 

• any scarcity of credit or other financing in India; 

• prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations; 

• changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies; 

• political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or 

globally, including in India’s various neighboring countries; 

• prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and 

• other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India 

 

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility 

in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in 

turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares. 
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SECTION IV – INTRODUCTION 

 

THE ISSUE 

  

This Issue has been authorised through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, 

pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act. The terms and conditions of the Issue including the Rights 

Entitlements, Issue Price, Record Date, timing of the Issue and other related matters, have been approved by a 

resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 26, 2025. 

 

The following is a summary of the Issue, and it should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified entirely by, 

the information set out in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 107 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Rights Equity Shares to be Issued Up to 45,00,000 Rights Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- each. 

Rights Entitlements 1 Rights Equity Shares for every 3 fully paid-up Equity Shares held 

on the Record Date i.e. Tuesday, September 02, 2025. 

Fractional Entitlement For further details in relation to fractional entitlements, please refer 

“Terms of the Issue” on page 107 of this Letter of Offer.  

Record Date Tuesday, September 02, 2025. 

Face value per Equity Share ₹10/- each 

Issue Price per Rights Equity 

Share 

₹90 per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of ₹ 80 per Equity 

Share) 

Issue Size Up to ₹4,050.00 Lakhs (Assuming full subscription) 

Equity Shares, subscribed, paid-up 

and outstanding prior to the Issue 

1,35,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- each. 

For details, please refer to “Capital Structure” beginning on page 45 

of this Letter of Offer. 

Equity Shares outstanding after the 

Issue (assuming full subscription 

for and Allotment of the Rights 

Entitlements) 

1,80,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- each 

Voting Rights and Dividend The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari passu 

in all respects with the Equity Shares of our Company. 

Scrip details ISIN: INE962E01015 

BSE scrip code: 531234 

BSE scrip symbol: SCOOBEEDAY 

ISIN of Rights Entitlements: INE962E20015 

Terms of the Issue For more information, please see the chapter titled “Terms of the 

Issue” beginning on page 107. 

Use of Issue Proceeds For more information, please see the chapter titled “Objects of the 

Issue” beginning on page 48. 

Terms of Payment The full amount of the Issue Price being ₹ 90 will be payable on 

application. 

 

Please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited’’ as a public limited 

company under the Companies Act, 1956 and was granted the certificate of incorporation on August 09, 1994. 

Thereafter, our Company was granted the certificate of commencement of business dated December 16, 1994. 

Subsequently, pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders dated September 06, 2021 passed in the 27th 

AGM of the Company, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited’ 

pursuant to which a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name dated September 30, 2021 

was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam, Kerala. 

 

Registered Office of our Company 

 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited 

666/12, Anna Aluminium Building, Kizhakkambalam,  

Ernakulam, Aluva, Kerala, India, 683562. 

Telephone: 0484 2680701 

E-mail: cs@annagroup.net 

Website: www.scoobeedaygarments.com 

CIN: L27100KL1994PLC008083 

Registration Number: 008083 

 

Change in Registered Office of our Company 

 

There has been no change in the Registered Office of the Company since its incorporation. 

 

Address of the ROC 

 

Our Company is registered with the ROC, Kerala which is situated at the following address: 

 

Registrar of Companies, Ernakulam 

Registrar Of Companies,  

Corporate Bhawan, BMC Road,  

Thrikkakara, Kochi - 682021, Kerala 

Telephone: 0484-2421626/2421310 

Email id: roc.ernakulam@mca.gov.in 

 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

 

Alphonsa Jose 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited 

666/12, Anna Aluminium Building, Kizhakkambalam,  

Aluva, Ernakulam, Kerala, India - 683562 

Telephone: 0484 2680701 

Mobile: +91 9656587491 

E-mail: cs@annagroup.net 

Website: www.scoobeedaygarments.com 

 

Statutory Auditors of our Company 

 

M/s Varma & Varma 

Chartered Accountants 

Daiwik Arcade, Thiruvambady Road,  

Punkunnam- 6800002, 

Thrissur 

Telephone: 0487 2385347, 2385397 

Email: thrissur@varmaandvarma.com 

Contact Person: CA P Harikrishnanunny 

mailto:cs@annagroup.net
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
mailto:cs@annagroup.net
https://sgligis.com/
mailto:thrissur@varmaandvarma.com
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Firm Registration Number: 004532S 

Peer Review Certificate Number: 014223 

 

Expert 

 

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinion: 

 

Our Company has received a written consent dated August 25, 2025 from our Statutory Auditors, M/s Varma & 

Varma, Chartered Accountants to include their name in this Letter of Offer as an “expert”, as defined under 

applicable laws, to the extent and in their capacity as a statutory auditor, and in respect of (i) Unaudited Financial 

Results along with their Limited Review Report issued thereon dated August 12, 2025; (ii) Audited Financial 

Results  dated June 21, 2025; and (iii) the statement of possible special tax benefits dated August 25, 2025, 

included in this Letter of Offer. Such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Further, our Company has received written consent dated April 30, 2025 from Mr. Anil K Nayar, Chartered 

Accountants, Previous Statutory Auditor to include their name as required under Section 26 (1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations, in this Letter of Offer in their capacity as our Previous Statutory 

Auditor, and in respect of the Audited Financial Statement along with reports issued thereon dated May 05, 2024, 

included in this Letter of Offer and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Except as stated above, our Company has not obtained any expert opinion. 

 

Registrar to the Issue 

 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 

Subramanian Building, No. 1, Club House Road,  

Mount Road, Chennai 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India. 

Tel. No.: +91 44 4002 0700 / 2846 0390 

Email: rights@cameoindia.com  

Website:www.cameoindia.com / https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday 

Investor grievance email: investor@cameoindia.com  

Contact person: Ms. K. Sreepriya – Executive Vice President & Company Secretary 

Sebi Reg. No.: INR000003753 

CIN: U67120TN1998PLC041613 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre- 

Issue or post-Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar 

to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), 

e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, 

amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application Forms, 

or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the 

acknowledgement slip. For details on the ASBA process, please see the section titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 

107 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Legal Advisor to the Issue 

 

Rajani Associates 

Advocates and Solicitors  

204-207, Krishna Chambers  

59, New Marine Lines  

Mumbai 400 020 

Telephone: +91 22 4096 1002  

E-mail: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net  

Contact Person: Sangeeta Lakhi   

 

  

mailto:rights@cameoindia.com
http://www.cameoindia.com/
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
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Bankers to the Issue and Refund Bank 

 

The Federal Bank Ltd 

Parackal Towers  

Parur Junction,  

Thottakkatukara, Aluva,  

Kerala, 683102.  

Telephone: 0484 2752251 

Contact Person: Belson P Kurian 

Email: belsonpkurian@federalbank.co.in  

Website: https://www.federalbank.co.in/ 

CIN: L65191KL1931PLC000368 

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks 

 

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the ASBA process is provided on the website 

of SEBI at http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34and as 

updated from time to time.  For a list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive the 

ASBA Forms from the Designated Intermediaries, please refer to the above-mentioned link. 

 

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities among Lead Managers 

 

Since the size of the Issue is less than ₹5,000 Lakhs, our Company is not required to mandatorily appoint a Lead 

Manager to this Issue. 

 

Credit rating 

 

As the proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of a credit rating agency is not required.  

 

Debenture Trustee 

 

As the proposed Issue is of Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required. 

 

Monitoring Agency 

 

Since the size of the Issue is less than ₹10,000 Lakhs, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency 

in relation to this Issue. 

 

Appraising Agency   

 

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any bank or 

financial institution or any other independent agency. 

 

Underwriting 

 

This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement. 

 

Minimum Subscription 

 

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum 

subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 

4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in accordance with SEBI circular bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, read with SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 

dated November 11, 2024. If there is any delay in the refund of the subscription amount beyond such period as 

prescribed by applicable laws, our Company and Directors who are “officers in defaults” shall pay interest for the 

delayed period, at such rates as prescribed under the applicable laws. 

mailto:belsonpkurian@federalbank.co.in
https://www.federalbank.co.in/
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Filing  

 

The copy of this Letter of Offer is filed with BSE as per the provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

 

Further, in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will simultaneously do an online filing with SEBI 

through the SEBI intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in terms of the circular (No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) dated January 19, 2018 issued by the SEBI for record purposes only. 

 

Issue Schedule  

 

Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements (on or before) Thursday, September 11, 2025 

Issue Opening Date Friday, September 12, 2025 

Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Entitlements* Tuesday, September 16, 2025 

Issue Closing Date# Friday, September 19, 2025 

Finalisation of Basis of Allotment (on or about) Friday, September 26, 2025 

Date of Allotment (on or about) Monday, September 29, 2025 

Date of credit (on or about)  Friday, October 03, 2025 

Date of listing (on or about) Wednesday, October 08, 2025 
*Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the 

Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
#Our Board  will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open 

in excess of 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).Further, no withdrawal of Application shall 

be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Please note that if the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date 

have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to 

provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the 

Issue Closing Date, i.e., Wednesday, September 17, 2025 to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way 

of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the 

Issue Closing Date, i.e., Thursday, September 18, 2025. 

 

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our 

Company, or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Applications 

on or before the Issue Closing Date. Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are submitted well in 

advance before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, see “Terms of the Issue” 

beginning on page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Equity Shares on or 

before Issue Closing Date, the Rights Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall get lapsed and shall 

be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Rights Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will 

be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from the market and purchaser will lose the amount 

paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an 

Application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered 

under Issue. 

 

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such 

respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at 

https://cambridge.cameoindia.com/Module/Right_Status.aspx  after keying in their respective details along with 

other security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see “Terms of the Issue - Credit of Rights 

Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders” beginning on page 110 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

  

https://siportal.sebi.gov.in/
https://cambridge.cameoindia.com/Module/Right_Status.aspx
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

 

The share capital of our Company as on the date of this Letter of Offer is set forth below: 

 

(₹ in Lakhs, except the shares data) 

 Particulars Aggregate value at 

face value 

Aggregate value at 

Issue Price 

A.  AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

 1,80,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each 1,800.00 - 

    

B.  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL BEFORE THE ISSUE 

 1,35,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each 1,350.00 - 

    

C.  
PRESENT ISSUE BEING OFFERED TO THE EXISTING EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 

THROUGH THIS LETTER OF OFFER(1) 

 

Up to 45,00,000 Rights Equity Shares, each at a 

premium of ₹80 per Rights Equity Share. i.e. at an 

Issue Price of ₹ 90 Rights Equity Share 

450.00 4,050.00 

    

D.  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE(2) 

 18,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each  1,80,00,000 - 

    

E.  SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT 

 Before the Issue Nil 

 After the Issue(2) 900.41 
(1)The Issue has been authorised by a resolution of our Board passed at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions. 
(2)Assuming full subscription by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of the Rights Equity Shares. Further, a key object of this Issue is to adjust 

outstanding unsecured loans extended to our Company. As a result, to the extent of such loan 

adjustments, no fresh proceeds will be received by our Company. For further details kindly refer to the Risk factor "A significant portion of 

the Issue proceeds will be utilised towards adjustment of unsecured loans availed from our Promoter and a Group Company, and consequently, 

our Company will not receive any fresh proceeds to that extent" on page no. 19 of LOF. 

 
Notes to the Capital Structure: 

 

1. The Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on 

the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

2. At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company. 

 

3. Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI 

from time to time. 

 

4. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any special voting Rights Shares and 

there are no outstanding Equity Shares having special voting rights. 

 

5. The ex-rights price arrived in accordance with the formula prescribed Regulation 10 (4) (b) of the SEBI 

(SAST) Regulations, in connection with the Issue is ₹ 103.25 (Rupees One Hundred and Three and 

Twenty-Five Paisa only). 

 

6. Our Company does not have any employee stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme. 

 

7. Our Company does not have any outstanding warrants, options, convertible loans, debentures or any 

other securities convertible at a later date into Equity Shares, as on the date of this Letter of Offer, which 

would entitle the holders to acquire further Equity Shares 
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8. Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group:  

 

The details of Equity Shares held by the Promoter and Promoter Group including the details of lock-in, 

pledge and encumbrance on such Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer are set forth below: 
Sr. 

No. 

Name of the 

Promoter 

and 

Promoter 

Group 

No. of fully 

paid up Equity 

Shares held 

Shareholding as 

a % of total no. 

of shares 

(calculated as 

per SCRR, 1957) 

Details of Equity Shares 

pledged/encumbered 

Details of Equity 

Shares locked-in 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of total 

shares held 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of 

total 

shares 

held 

1 Boby 

Meckamkunn

el Jacob 

31,37,533 23.24 - - - - 

2 Minni Boby 

Jacob 

18,49,021 13.70 - - - - 

3 Anna 

Aluminium 

Company (P) 

Limited 

51,36,900 38.05 - - - - 

 Total 1,01,23,454 74.99 - - - - 

 

None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and Promoter Group are pledged with any bank or 

institution, locked-in or otherwise encumbered. 

 

9. Details of Equity Shares acquired by the Promoter and promoter group in the last one year prior 

to the filing of this Letter of Offer 

 

The Promoters or members of the Promoter Group have not acquired any Equity Shares of our Company 

in the year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with the Stock Exchange. 

 

10. Intention and extent of participation in the Issue by the Promoter and Promoter Group 

 

Our Promoters vide their respective letters dated April 11, 2025 have confirmed that they intend to 

subscribe in the issue, to the full extent of their Rights Entitlements and have also confirmed that they 

shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements (except to the extent of renunciation by any of them in favour 

of Promoter or member of the Promoter Group) 

 

Further, they reserve the right to apply for and subscribe to, additional Rights Equity Shares, including 

subscribing to the unsubscribed portion (if any), subject to compliance with the minimum public 

shareholding requirement prescribed under the SCRR and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

The acquisition of Rights Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group, over and above their 

Rights Entitlements shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company and shall 

be in compliance with the SEBI SAST Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding 

requirements under the Applicable Law. 

 

For further details, please see the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 45.  

 

11. Shareholding pattern of our Company as per the last quarterly filing with the Stock Exchange is 

in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations: 

 

The shareholding pattern of our Company as on June 30, 2025, i.e., as per the last filing with BSE Limited 

in compliance with the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, which can be accessed on its website 

is specifically mentioned as follows: 
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Particulars of Statement 

showing shareholding 

pattern of 

URL of BSE Limited’s Website 

The Company https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/scoobee-day-

garments-(india)-

ltd/scoobeeday/531234/qtrid/126.00/shareholding-pattern/Jun-

2025/ 

Promoter and Promoter Group https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?sc

ripcd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 

Public shareholder https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?s

cripcd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 

Non-Promoter – Non Public 

shareholder 
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpNonProPublic.aspx?scrip

cd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 

Disclosure by Trading 

Members (TM) holding 1.00% 

(One Percent) or more of the 

Total number of Equity Shares 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=53

1234&qtrid=126.00&CompName=Scoobee%20Day%20Garments

%20(India)%20Ltd&QtrName=Jun-25&Type=TM 

Statement showing foreign 

ownership 
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpforeignownership.aspx?sc

ripcd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 

Details of the shareholders 

holding more than one per 

cent. of the share capital of the 

issuer. 

 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?sc

ripcd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?s

cripcd=531234&qtrid=126.00&QtrName=Jun-25 
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the “Gross Proceeds”) after deducting the Issue 

related expenses (“Net Proceeds”) for the following objects (collectively, referred to as the “Objects”): 

 

1. Adjustment of unsecured loans of the Promoters and group Company against the Entitlement of the 

Promoters; and 

2. General Corporate Purposes. 

 

(Collectively, referred to as the “Objects”) 

 

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the “Issue Proceeds”) after deducting the Issue 

related expenses (“Net Proceeds”) for the abovementioned Objects.  

 

The main object clause and matters necessary for furtherance of the main objects of our MoA enable our Company 

to undertake its existing activities. The activities carried out by our Company since its incorporation are valid 

under the objects clause of our MoA. The loans availed by our Company, proposed to be repaid in full or in part 

from the Net Proceeds, were utilized for activities that fall within the scope of the objects clause of the MoA. 

 

Details of Net Proceeds from the Issue 

 

The details of the Issue Proceeds are set forth in the following table: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Estimated Amount  

Gross proceeds to be raised through the Issue*  4050.00 

Less: Issue related expenses 42.00 

Net Proceeds 4008.00 
* Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to the finalisation of the basis of allotment and the allotment of the Rights Equity Shares.  

  

Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceeds 

 

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in accordance with the details set forth in the following table: 

 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Sr. No. Particulars Estimated Amount  

1 Adjustment of unsecured loans of the Promoters and Group Company  

against the Entitlement of the Promoters 
3037.04 

2 General Corporate Purposes* 970.96 

 Net Proceeds 4008.00 
*The amount to be utilized towards General Corporate Purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 
#Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to the finalisation of the basis of allotment and the allotment of the Rights Equity Shares. 

 

Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Net Proceeds 

 

Our Company proposes to deploy the entire Net Proceeds towards the Objects as described herein during the 

Financial Year ending March 31, 2026. The fund deployment described herein is based on management estimates 

and current circumstances of our business and operations. Given the dynamic nature of our business, we may have 

to revise our funding requirements and deployment due to variety of factors such as our financial condition, 

business strategy, and external factors which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail 

rescheduling and revising the planned funding requirements and deployment, and increasing or decreasing the 

funding requirements from the planned funding requirements at the discretion of our management. Accordingly, 

the Net Proceeds of the Issue would be used to meet all or any of the funding requirements described herein. 

Subject to applicable law, if the actual utilisation towards issue expenses is lower than the stated above, the balance 

will be used towards general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilized towards general 

corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds. In case of a shortfall in raising the requisite capital 

from the Net Proceeds towards meeting the Objects, business considerations may require us to explore a range of 

options including utilising our internal accruals. We believe that such alternative arrangements would be available 
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to fund any such shortfalls. To the extent our Company is unable to utilise any portion of the Net Proceeds towards 

the aforementioned objects, per the estimated schedule of deployment specified above, our Company shall deploy 

the Net Proceeds in subsequent financial years towards the aforementioned objects.  

 

The above fund requirements are based on our current business plan, internal management estimates, and have 

not been appraised by any bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to 

revisions in light of changes in external circumstances or costs, or our financial condition, business or strategy. 

For further details, please see the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Means of Finance 

 

Our Company proposes to meet the entire funding requirement for the Objects using the Net Proceeds. Therefore, 

the requirement to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards 75% of the stated means 

of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Issue, is not applicable. 

 

Details of the Objects of the Issue 

 

The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below: 

 

1. Adjustment of unsecured loan of the Promoters and Group Company against the Entitlement of 

the Promoters:  

 

Our Company, in order to fund and support the present business, was in need of finances. Owing to 

business expansion requirements, the Company opted to raise an unsecured loan from one of our 

Promoters, Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited, and one of the members of the Group Company, 

Kitex Limited, which are repayable on demand. Accordingly, the Company entered into loan agreements 

dated October 15, 2018 and October 15, 2018, for the loans availed from Anna Aluminium Company 

Private Limited and Kitex Limited , respectively. The total outstanding unsecured loan as on June 30, 

2025, of Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited is ₹ 2131.72 Lakhs and of Kitex Limited is ₹ 

2434.20 Lakhs.  

 

Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited has requested our Company to adjust the outstanding 

unsecured loan against its entitlements or additional entitlements renounced in their favour, vide letter 

dated April 11, 2025. The aforesaid loan has been used for the purpose of setting up a new unit at Karur, 

Tamil Nadu, as certified by the previous Statutory Auditor Anil K. Nayar vide certificate dated May 02, 

2025. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 08, 2025 has accepted their request for 

conversion of unsecured loan of Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited aggregating to ₹ 2131.72 

Lakhs to Equity Shares.  

 

Further, our Promoters namely Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob and Minni Boby Jacob vide their respective 

letters dated April 11, 2025 have confirmed that they intend to subscribe in the issue, to the full extent 

of their Rights Entitlements and have also confirmed that they shall not renounce their Rights 

Entitlements (except to the extent of renunciation by any of them in favour of Promoter or member of the 

Promoter Group). Subsequently, our Promoters namely Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob and Minni Boby 

Jacob vide their respective letters dated April 26, 2025 have confirmed that they intend to renounce their 

full Rights Entitlements to the Promoter group entity namely Kitex Limited. 

 

Kitex Limited have requested our Company to adjust the outstanding unsecured loan against its 

entitlements (to be transferred by promoters namely, Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob and Minni Boby Jacob) 

or additional entitlements renounced in their favour, vide letter dated April 30, 2025. The aforesaid loan 

has been used for the purpose of setting up a new unit at Karur, Tamil Nadu as certified by the previous 

Statutory Auditor Anil K. Nayar vide certificate dated May 02, 2025. The Board of Directors in its 

meeting held on May 08, 2025 has accepted its request for conversion of unsecured loan of Kitex Limited 

aggregating to ₹2105.60 Lakhs to Equity Shares.  

 

The details of unsecured loans from our Promoter and Group Company is as stated below:  
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S. 

No. 

Name of 

Person 

Outstanding 

Unsecured loans 

as on June 30, 

2025  

(₹ in lakhs)* 

Purpose of 

availing Loan 

Interest Rate (%) 

p.a. 

Proposed 

repayment/ 

prepayment 

from Net 

Proceeds  

(₹ in lakhs) 

1 Anna 

Aluminium 

Company 

Private Limited 

2,131.72 Setting up of 

new unit at 

Karur and 

general 

corporate 

purpose 

As mutually agreed 

upon by the parties. It 

is acknowledged that, 

historically, interest 

has been accrued at a 

rate ranging between 

3% and 3.5% per 

annum 

2,117.42 

2 Kitex Limited 2,434.20 Setting up of 

new unit at 

Karur and 

general 

corporate 

purpose  

As mutually agreed 

upon by the parties. It 

is acknowledged that, 

historically, interest 

has been accrued at a 

rate ranging between 

3% and 3.5% per 

annum 

919.62 

 Total 4,565.92   3,037.04 

*The total amount received, repayed and amount outstanding as on June 30, 2025 has been certified by 

our statutory auditor of the company vide certificate dated August 5, 2025. 

 

Hence, the amount of unsecured loan, shall be adjusted against the application money to the extent of the 

subscription and allotment of the Rights Equity Shares to Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 

and Kitex Limited under the Issue, whether pursuant to their Rights Entitlements (including Rights 

Entitlements renounced in their favour, if any) or subscription to Additional Rights Equity Shares (as the 

case may be) and consequently, no fresh proceeds would be received by our Company to that extent. 

 

2. General Corporate Purpose 

 

The remaining Net Proceeds ₹970.96 lakhs shall be utilized towards general corporate purposes and the 

amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25.00% of the Gross Proceeds. 

Such utilization towards general corporate purposes shall be to drive our business growth, including, 

amongst other things including, but not limited funding our growth opportunities, strengthening 

marketing capabilities and brand building exercises, and strategic initiatives and any other purpose as 

permitted by applicable laws; subject to meeting regulatory requirements and obtaining necessary 

approvals/ consents, as applicable.  

 

The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the above purposes will be determined based on the 

amount actually available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time to 

time. Our Board will have flexibility in utilizing surplus amounts, if any, subject to compliance with 

applicable laws.  

 

ISSUE RELATED EXPENSES 

 

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Advisors, Legal Counsel, Registrars to the Issue, printing 

and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous expenses for listing the 

Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. Our Company will need approximately ₹ 42.00 lakhs/- (Rupees 

Forty-Two Lakh Only) towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows: 

 

Particulars Amount 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As a Percentage 

of total expense 

As a percentage 

of total Issue 

Size 

Fee payable to the legal advisor and other 

professional service providers. 

30.00 71.43% 0.74% 

Fees payable to regulators, including Registrar of 6.00 14.29% 0.15% 



 

51 
 

Companies, Depositories, Stock Exchanges and 

SEBI 

Fees of Registrar to the Issue 3.00 7.14% 0.07% 

Statutory Advertising, Marketing, Printing and 

Distribution 

2.00 4.76% 0.05% 

Other expenses (including miscellaneous expenses 

and stamp duty) 

1.00 2.38% 0.02% 

Total estimated Issue expenses 42.00 100% 1.04% 
Note: Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment and assuming the full subscription. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue 

related expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards general corporate 

purposes. 

 

SOURCES OF FINANCING OF FUNDS ALREADY DEPLOYED 

 

As on date, our Company has not deployed any funds towards the Objects of the Issue. 

 

APPRAISAL OF THE OBJECTS 

 

None of the Objects of the Issue for which the Net Proceeds will be utilized, have been appraised by any bank or 

financial institution.  

 

STRATEGIC AND/OR FINANCIAL PARTNERS 

 

There are no strategic and financial partners to the Objects of the Issue. 

 

BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not raised or availed of any bridge financing facilities 

which are subject to being repaid from the Issue Proceeds. 

 

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS 

 

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility to 

deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company 

intends to and will deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second 

schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as may be approved by our Board. 

 

MONITORING OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS 

 

Since the Issue is for an amount less than ₹10,000 lakhs, there is no requirement for the appointment of a 

monitoring agency. The Board or its duly authorised committees will monitor the utilisation of the proceeds of the 

Issue. Our Company will disclose the utilisation of Issue Proceeds, including interim use, under a separate head 

along with details, for all such Issue Proceeds that have not been utilised. Our Company will indicate investments, 

if any, of unutilised Issue Proceeds in the balance sheet of our Company for the relevant financial years subsequent 

to the listing of the Rights Shares. 

 

We will also, on an annual basis, prepare a statement of the funds which have been utilised for purposes other 

than those stated in this Letter of Offer, if any, and place it before the Audit Committee and the Board. Such 

disclosure will be made only until all the Issue Proceeds have been utilised in full. The statement will be certified 

by our Statutory Auditor. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we will 

furnish to the Stock Exchange, on a quarterly basis, a statement including deviations and variations, if any, in the 

utilisation of the Issue Proceeds from the Objects of the Issue as stated above. 

 

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS, PROMOTER GROUP AND DIRECTORS, AS APPLICABLE TO THE 

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

Anna Aluminium Company Private limited, may be deemed to be interested in the objects of the issue, which 

pertain to adjustment of loan availed by the Company from the Promoter, from the Net proceeds of the Issue. 
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OTHER CONFIRMATIONS 

 

There are no material existing or anticipated transactions, except already mentioned, in relation to the utilisation 

of the Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors, or Key Managerial Personnel of our Company in the ordinary 

course of business and no part of the Net Proceeds will be paid as consideration to any of them. Further, except 

as disclosed, none of our Promoters, members of Promoter Group or Directors are interested in the Objects of the 

Issue. 
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Dated: 25.08.2025 

 

STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS 

 

Statement of possible special tax benefits available to the Company and its Shareholders 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited 

(Formerly known as Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited) 

666/12, Anna Aluminium Building  

Kizhakkambalam, Aluva,  

Ernakulam, Kerala, India, 683562. 

 

Sub:  Proposed rights issue of equity shares of face value of ₹10 each (“Rights Equity Shares”) of Scoobee 

Day Garments (India) Limited (the “Company” and such offering, the “Issue”), pursuant to the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI Regulations”) and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”). 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

This certificate is issued to the company in the context of the Issue in accordance with Chapter III of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended (the 

“SEBI ICDR Regulations”) and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the 

“Companies Act”). 

 

We, M/s Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants (ICAI FRN002116S) (the “Firm”) have been appointed by the 

Board of Directors of Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited (the “Company”) as an “expert” as defined under 

Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, in the Letter of Offer (“LOF”) intended to be filed by the 

Company with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and BSE Limited (“BSE”) (the “Stock 

Exchange”), where the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed, as well as in other documents in relation to the 

Issue (the “Offer Documents”). The Company has asked us to furnish the captioned certificate towards the Tax 

Benefits of the Company and its shareholders, which would be forming part of the Offer Documents. 

 

The Firm is independent of the Company in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

We hereby report that the enclosed Statement, prepared by Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited (the 

“Company”), states the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and to the shareholders of the 

Company under the Income-tax Act, 1961, and Income-tax Rules, 1962, including amendments made by the 

Finance Act, 2025 (hereinafter referred to as “Income Tax Laws”); the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, 

the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017; the respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017; the 

Customs Act, 1962; the Customs Tariff Act, 1975, as amended; and the Foreign Trade (Development and 

Regulation) Act, 1992 (read with the Foreign Trade Policy), including the relevant rules, regulations, circulars and 

notifications issued thereunder (collectively referred to as “Indirect Tax Laws”), presently in force in India as of 

the date of signing, for inclusion in the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer for the proposed rights issue of the 

Company to its existing shareholders. 

 

These benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the 

relevant provisions of the Tax Laws. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive such special 

tax benefits is subject to compliance with these conditions, which will depend on the business imperatives the 

Company may face in the future. Accordingly, the Company or its shareholders may or may not choose to fulfill 

such conditions. 

 

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement cover only the possible special tax benefits available to the 

Company and its shareholders and do not cover general tax benefits. The tax benefits listed herein are those that 

may be available under the current direct tax laws and indirect tax laws  in force in India. Furthermore, any 

benefits available under other laws within or outside India have not been examined or included in this Statement. 
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The preparation of the enclosed Statement and its contents is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. We have been informed that this Statement is intended only to provide general information to investors 

and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature 

of tax consequences and the constantly evolving tax laws, each investor is advised to consult their own tax advisor 

with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed Issue. We are neither 

suggesting nor advising any investor to invest in the Issue based on this Statement. 

 

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 

Purposes (Revised 2016) (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(“ICAI”). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by 

the ICAI.  

 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1. “Quality 

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information and Other Assurance and 

Related Services Engagements.” 

 

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether: 

• The Company or the shareholders of the Company will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or 

• The conditions prescribed for availing of the benefits, where applicable, have been or will be met.  

 

The contents of the enclosed Statement are based on information, explanations, and representations obtained from 

the Company and our understanding of the Company’s business activities and operations. Our views expressed 

herein are based on the facts and assumptions indicated to us. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities 

or courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the current provisions of law and 

their interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update 

these views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to the Company for any claims, liabilities, or 

expenses arising out of this assignment, except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially 

determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any third 

party in respect of this Statement. 

 

This Statement is solely for your information and is not intended for general circulation or publication and is not 

to be reproduced or used for any other purpose without our prior written consent, other than for inclusion of 

extracts of this Statement in the Draft Letter of Offer and Letter of Offer and for submission of this Statement to 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India, and the stock exchange where the Equity Shares of the Company are 

proposed to be listed, in connection with the proposed Issue. 

 

This certificate may be relied on by the Company and the legal counsel in relation to the Issue. 

 

We undertake to immediately update you, in writing, of any changes in the abovementioned information until the 

date the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue commence trading on the recognized stock exchange. In the 

absence of any such communication, you may assume that there is no change in respect of the matters covered in 

this certificate until the date the Equity Shares commence trading on the recognized stock exchange. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: THRISSUR 

Date: 25.08.2025 

For Varma & Varma 

(Firm No.004532S) 

 

Sd/- 

 

CA. P. HARIKRISHNANUNNY B.COM, FCA 

 

M.No.213541 

UDIN: 25213541BMIAVR1974 

 

Partner 

M/s. Varma & Varma, 

Chartered Accountants 

Daiwik Arcade, 
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Thiruvambady Road, 

Punkunnam, Thrissur – 680 002 

 

 

CC: 

 

Rajani Associates 
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ANNEXURE I 

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO SCOOBEE DAY 

GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE 

INCOME TAX LAWS 

 

1. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the Income Tax Laws 

 

i) Lower corporate tax rate under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the "Act") 

 

As per section 115BAA of the Act as inserted vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 with effect 

from Financial Year (FY) 2019-20 relevant to Assessment Year (AY) 2020-21, a domestic company has 

an option to pay income tax in respect of its total income at a concessional tax rate of 25.17% (22% plus 

surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%) provided the company does not avail of specified exemptions, 

incentives, deductions, set-off of losses / unabsorbed depreciation if such loss / depreciation is 

attributable to any of the specified deductions, claims depreciation in the prescribed manner and complies 

with the other conditions specified in section 115BAA of the Act. 

 

In case a company opts for section 115BAA of the Act, the provision of Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) 

as per section 115JB of the Act would not be applicable and MAT credit of the earlier years) will not be 

available for set-off. 

 
ii) Deduction from Gross Total Income 

 

The Company is eligible for the following deductions from its Gross Total Income, even though it has 

opted for the concessional tax rate under section 115BAA of the Act. 

 

(a) Deduction under section 80JJA A the Act - Deduction in respect of employment of new 

employees 

 

As per section 80JJAA of the Act, while computing income under the head business and 

profession in the case of an assessee to whom section 44AB (i.e., tax audit) applies, a deduction 

of an amount equal to 30% of additional employee cost incurred in the course of such business 

in the Financial Year (FY), shall be allowed for three Assessment Years (AY) including the AY 

relevant to the FY in which such employment is provided. The Company is eligible for 

deduction under section 80JJAA subject to fulfilment of conditions specified under section 

80JJAA of the Act, even under the concessional regime under section 115BAA of the Act 

 

2. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the Income Tax Laws 

 

There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders of the Company for investing in the shares 

of the Company. However, such shareholders shall be liable to concessional tax rates on certain incomes 

under the extant provisions of the Act. 

 

▪ Section 2(42A) of the Act provides that securities listed in a recognized stock exchange in India 

that are held for not more than 12 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer, shall 

constitute short- term capital assets. 

 

▪ As per Section 111A of the Act, short term capital gains arising from the transfer of an equity 

share or a unit of an equity-oriented fund or a unit of a business trust transacted through a 

recognized stock exchange on or after July 23, 2024 and chargeable to Securities Transaction 

Tax (STT) shall be taxed at 20% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) (provided the short-term 

capital gains exceed the basic threshold limit of exemption, where applicable) subject to 

fulfilment of prescribed conditions under the Act. 

 

▪ As per Section 2(29AA) of the Act, "long-term capital asset" means a capital asset which is not 

a short-term capital asset. So, the securities listed in a recognized stock exchange in India that 

are held for more than 12 months immediately preceding the date of its transfer, shall constitute 
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long- term capital assets. 

 

▪ Further, as per section 112A of the Act, long-term capital gains exceeding INR 1,25,000 arising 

from the transfer of equity shares, or a unit of an equity-oriented fund or a unit of a business 

trust in a company transacted through a recognized stock exchange on or after July 23, 2024 on 

which STT has been paid on acquisition (except in certain situations) and on transfer, shall be 

chargeable to tax at the rate of 12.5% (plus applicable surcharge and cess) without applying the 

benefit under the first and second provisos to section 48 of the Act. 

 

▪ The condition of STT shall not apply to a transfer undertaken on a recognized stock exchange 

located in any IFSC and where the consideration for such a transaction is received or receivable 

in foreign currency. 

 

▪ In respect of non-resident shareholders, the tax rates and the consequent taxation shall be further 

subject to any benefits available under the applicable Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, 

if any, between India and the country in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile. 

 

Notes: 

 

a. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete 

analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares. 

   

b. The above statement of possible special tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the 

assessment year 2026-27. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholder 

fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant laws. 

 

c. This statement is intended only to provide general information to investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax 

consequences, each investor is advised to consult his/her own tax advisor with respect to specific tax 

consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company.  

 

d. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. 

Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes 

from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to updating the views consequent to such changes.  
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ANNEXURE II 

 

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO SCOOBEE DAY 

GARMENTS (INIAD) LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE 

INDIRECT TAX LAWS  

 

1. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the Indirect Tax Laws 

 

Benefits available to the company under the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act 2017 (IGST Act): 

Under the IGST Act, all supplies of goods and services which qualify as export of goods or services are 

zero-rated, that is, these transactions attract a GST rate of zero percent. 

There are two mechanisms for claiming refund of accumulated ITC against export. Either person can 

export under Bond/LUT as zero-rated supply and claim refund of accumulated Input Tax Credit or person 

may export on payment of integrated tax and claim refund thereof as per the provisions of Section 54 of 

CGST Act, 2017. 

The Company makes payment of Integrated Tax on Outward supplies and are claiming the refund of 

Integrated Tax paid under section 54 of CGST Act, 2017. 

 

2. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the Indirect Tax Laws 

 

There are no special indirect tax benefits applicable in the hands of shareholders for investing in the 

shares of the Company. 

 

Notes: 

a. The above statement is based upon the provisions of the specified Indirect tax laws, and judicial 

interpretation thereof prevailing in the country, as on the date of this Annexure. 

 

b. This statement is intended only to provide general information to investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice.  

 

c. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our 

views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from 

time to time. We do not assume responsibility to updating the views consequent to such changes. 
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SECTION V – ABOUT OUR COMPANY 

 

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

 

The industry related information in this chapter is derived from the reports titled “Textile and Apparel“ published 

in November 2024 prepared by India Brand Equity Foundation (“IBEF”). It is hereby clarified that the 

information in this section is only an extract of the IBEF Report 2024 and does not include the entire IBEF Report 

2024. All information in the IBEF Report 2024 that is considered material by us for the purpose of this Issue has 

been included in this section, and none of this information has been further changed by us in any manner, except 

for the limited purpose of presentation or ensuring continuity. It is important to note that the numbers presented 

in the report do not take into account the impact of the policies released on and after November 2024. Prospective 

investors are recommended not to unduly rely on the IBEF Report 2024. 

 

Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from 

sources generally believed to be reliable, but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not 

guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured and accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on 

such information. 

 

1. Economic Outlook 

 

1.1 Global Economy 

 

The global economy expanded by 3.3 percent in 2023. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has 

revised its growth projections for 2024 and 2025 to 3.2 percent and 3.3 percent, respectively. For the 

period of 2024–2029, global growth is expected to average approximately 3.2 percent, reflecting a 

moderate pace by historical standards. While the global outlook remains relatively stable, growth 

dynamics differ across regions. Despite elevated interest rates, advanced economies experienced stable 

growth in the first half of 2024, driven by moderating inflation, as well as sustained employment and 

consumption. However, the growth outlook varies between the United States and the Euro Area. In the 

US, growth is projected to remain robust at 2.8 percent in 2024, with a slight moderation anticipated in 

2025, reflecting a slowdown in consumption and exports. 

 

1.2 Indian Economy 

 

India’s GDP at constant (2011-12) prices grew by 6.7 percent in Q1 and 5.4 percent in Q2 of FY25, 

resulting in a real GDP growth of 6.0 percent for the first half of the fiscal year. From a demand-side 

perspective, Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE) strengthened in H1 FY25, growing by 6.7 

percent year-on-year. The real GDP growth for FY25 is projected at 7.0 percent, a slight dip compared 

to the estimated 8.2 percent growth in FY24. These figures underscore the resilience of the Indian 

economy, fueled by robust domestic demand, even amidst rising global uncertainties impacting 

economies worldwide. The Indian economy is forecast to expand by 6.6 per cent in 2025, primarily 

supported by solid private consumption and investment growth. However, weaker external demand, 

persistent debt challenges, and social unrest and political turmoil in some economies may undermine the 

outlook for the region.  

 

India is set to dominate the global economic landscape, maintaining its status as the fastest-growing large 

economy for the next two fiscal years. The January 2025 edition of the World Bank’s Global Economic 

Prospects (GEP) report projects India's economy to grow at a steady rate of 6.7% in both FY26 and 

FY27, significantly outpacing global and regional peers. At a time when global growth is expected to 

remain at 2.7 per cent in 2025-26, this remarkable performance underscores India’s resilience and its 

growing significance in shaping the world’s economic trajectory. The GEP report credits this 

extraordinary momentum to a thriving services sector and a revitalized manufacturing base, driven by 

transformative government initiatives. From modernizing infrastructure to simplifying taxes, these 

measures are fueling domestic growth and positioning India as a cornerstone of global economic stability. 

With its closest competitor, China, decelerating to 4 per cent growth next year, India’s rise is more than 

just a statistic. It is a powerful story of ambition, innovation, and unmatched potential. Complementing 

the World Bank report, the latest update from the International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) World Economic 

Outlook (WEO) also reinforces India’s strong economic trajectory. The IMF forecasts India's growth to 
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remain robust at 6.5% for both 2025 and 2026, aligning with earlier projections from October. This 

consistent growth outlook reflects India’s stable economic fundamentals and its ability to maintain 

momentum despite global uncertainties. The continued strength of India’s economic performance, as 

projected by both the World Bank and IMF, underscores the country’s resilience and highlights the 

sustained strength of its economic fundamentals, making India a crucial player in the global economic 

landscape. 
 

Source: Economic Survey 2024-25 Published by Ministry of Finance; World Economic Situation and Prospects 2025 published by 

the United Nations; India: World’s Fastest-Growing Major Economy dated January 18, 2025, published by Press Information 

Bureau. 

 

1.3 Key Indicators 

 

➢ India is projected to remain the fastest-growing large economy for FY26 and FY27, reaffirming 

its dominance in the global economic landscape. 

➢ India’s economy is expected to grow at a stable rate of 6.7 per cent annually during FY26 and 

FY27. 

➢ Growth in India’s services sector is expected to remain robust, while manufacturing activity 

will strengthen, supported by government efforts to improve logistics infrastructure and 

streamline tax systems. 

➢ Private consumption in India is likely to gain momentum, driven by a stronger labour market, 

increased access to credit, and lower inflation. 

➢ India’s Investment growth is expected to remain steady, supported by rising private 

investments, improved corporate balance sheets, and favourable financing conditions. 

➢ Global economic growth is projected to hold steady at 2.7 per cent in 2025-26, highlighting 

India's outperformance. 

➢ Emerging Market and Developing Economies (EMDEs) have undergone significant 

transformation since 2000, now contributing about 45 per cent of global GDP, compared to 25 

per cent at the start of the century. 

➢ India, China, and Brazil, the three largest EMDEs, have collectively driven approximately 60 

per cent of annual global growth since the start of the century. 

 
(Source: India: World’s Fastest-Growing Major Economy dated January 18, 2025, published by Press Information Bureau) 

 

2. India’s Macro-economic Progress 

 

The Indian economy is poised for continued growth, with a projected GDP growth rate ranging between 

6.3% and 6.8% in FY26. The real GDP for FY25 is estimated at 6.4%, aligning closely with its decadal 

average, while the real Gross Value Added (GVA) is expected to grow at the same rate. The country’s 

capital expenditure (CapEx) has demonstrated an encouraging growth of 8.2% between July and 

November 2024, with expectations for further acceleration. Retail headline inflation has softened to 4.9% 

during April–December 2024, and India’s consumer price inflation is anticipated to converge with the 

target of around 4% in FY26.Exports, particularly services, have shown robust growth, with overall 

exports rising by 6.0% year-on-year, and services exports surging by 12.8% during April–November 

FY25. Foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows have also increased by 17.9% year-on-year, indicating 

growing investor confidence. Additionally, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at USD 640.3 billion 

by the end of December 2024, providing a comfortable buffer against external shocks. The country’s 

progress in renewable energy, particularly in solar and wind power, is marked by a 15.8% year-on-year 

increase in capacity addition. Furthermore, the BSE stock market capitalization to GDP ratio stands at 

an impressive 136%, outpacing major global economies such as China and Brazil. The Economic Survey 

highlights the need for continued deregulation, infrastructure investment, and a focus on self-reliance, 

with initiatives such as the ₹50,000 crore Self-Reliant India Fund to support MSMEs. Agriculture, 

industrial growth, and social services expenditure are expected to show positive trends, with agriculture 

projected to grow at 3.8% in FY25 and the industrial sector at 6.2%. Furthermore, government health 

expenditure has risen significantly, contributing to a reduction in the share of out-of-pocket healthcare 

expenses. With an improved unemployment rate of 3.2% in 2023-24, down from 6.0% in 2017-18, the 

Indian economy is on a resilient growth trajectory. The collaborative efforts between the government, 

private sector, and academia will be crucial to addressing emerging challenges, particularly in the context 

of the societal impacts of artificial intelligence. 
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(Source:https://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2097921#:~:text=The%20Economic%20Survey%20states%20that%2

0as%20a%20result%20of%20stable,as%20on%203%20January%202025.) 
 

3. Textile Sector in India 

 

3.1 Overview 

 

India has emerged as the second largest manufacturer of PPE globally, it is expected to exceed US$ 92.5 

billion by 2025 as compared to US$ 52.7 billion in 2019.The market for Indian textiles and apparel is 

projected to grow at a 10% CAGR to reach US$ 350 billion by 2030.Global apparel market is expected 

to grow at a CAGR of around 8% to reach US$ 2.37 trillion by 2030 and the Global Textile and Apparel 

trade is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4% to reach US$ 1.2 trillion by 2030.India is the world’s second-

largest producer of textiles and garments. It is also the sixth largest exporter of textiles spanning apparel, 

home and technical products. India has a 4.6% share of the global trade in textiles and apparel. The 

textiles and apparel industry contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to industrial production and 

12% to exports. India is the world's 3rd largest exporter of Textiles and Apparel.  

 

The textile sector is expected to play a significant role, with a target of US$ 100 billion in exports by 

FY30, up from US$ 34.43 billion in FY24. The amount of ₹ 10,683 crore (US$ 1.44 billion) PLI scheme 

is expected to be a major boost for textile manufacturers. The scheme proposes to incentivize MMF 

(man-made fibre) apparel, MMF fabrics and 10 segments of technical textiles products. India ranks 

among the top five global exporters in several textile categories, with exports expected to reach US$ 65 

billion by FY 2026. 
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3.2 Key Segments of the Textile Industry 

 

➢ The fundamental strength of the textile industry in India is its strong production base of a wide 

range of fibre/yarns from natural fibres like cotton, jute, silk and wool to synthetic/man-made 

fibres like polyester, viscose, nylon and acrylic. 

➢ India’s textiles industry contributed 7% to the industry output (by value) in 2022.The Indian 

textiles and apparel industry contributed 2.3% to the GDP, 10.5% to export earnings in FY24. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 The Indian Textile Market: Export Market  

 

➢ According to ICRA, Indian apparel exporters are projected to achieve revenue growth of 9-

11% in FY25, driven by the gradual reduction of retail inventory in key end markets and a shift 

in global sourcing towards India. 

➢ India is the world’s second-largest textile exporter. Capacity built over years has led to low 

cost of production per unit in India’s textile industry. This has lent a strong competitive 

advantage to the country’s textile exporters over key global peers. 

➢ During FY24, the total exports of textiles stood at US$ 35.9 billion. 

➢ The Indian Medical Textiles market for drapes and gowns is around US$ 9.71 million in 2022 

and is expected to grow at 15% to reach US$22.45 million by 2027. 

➢ The Indian composites market is expected to reach an estimated value of US$ 1.9 billion by 

2026 with a CAGR of 16.3% from 2021 to 2026 and the Indian consumption of composite 

materials will touch 7,68,200 tonnes in 2027. 

➢ In the coming decade, Africa and Latin America could very well turn out to be the key markets 

for Indian textiles. 

➢ In July, India witnessed a 4.73% growth in its textile and apparel exports, amounting to US$ 

2,937.56 million. This increase was primarily fueled by a rising demand for apparel, especially 

from the United States, European Union, and United Kingdom. The Confederation of Indian 

Textile Industry (CITI) anticipates continued expansion in the forthcoming months. 
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Source: Textile Ministry, Make in India 
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➢ TextilesexportsfromIndiaduringOctoberwereabout11.56%higheronYoYbasisatUS$1,833.95 

million. 

➢ Apparel exports from India during October were about 35.06% higher on YoY basis at US$ 

1,277.44 million. 

➢ India's textile industry is on the brink of expansion, with total textile export projected to reach 

US$ 65 billion by FY26. 

➢ In FY25 (April- June) the total exports of textiles stood at US$ 9.17 billion. 

➢ Exports of textiles (RMG of all textiles, cotton yarns/fabs. /made-ups/handloom products, 

man-made yarns/fabs./made-ups, handicrafts excl. handmade carpets, carpets and jute mfg. 

including floor coverings) stood at US$ 9.17 billion in FY25 (April-June). 

➢ India’s ready-made garment (RMG) exports are likely to surpass US$ 30 billion by 2027, 

growing at a CAGR of 12-13%. 

➢ In July 2021, the government extended the Rebate of State and Central Taxes and Levies 

(RoSCTL) scheme for exports of apparel/garments and made ups until March 2021. This 

helped boost exports and enhance competitiveness in the labor-intensive textiles sector. 

➢ In August 2021, the Minister of Textiles, Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and 

Public Distribution, announced that steps need to be taken to boost production capacities of the 

handloom sector from existing ₹ 60,000 crore (US$ 8.06 billion) to 125,000 crore (US$ 16.80 

billion) in three years. Further, it was added that the target must be set to increase exports of 

handloom items from existing ₹ 2,500 crore (US$ 335.92 million) to ₹ 10,000 crore (US$ 1.34 

billion). A committee was also announced consisting of all weavers, trainer equipment makers, 

marketing experts and other stakeholders to recommend ways and means to achieve these 

objectives and enhance overall progress of the handloom sector. 

 
Note: RMG– Readymade Garments; imports include textile yarn fabric and made-up articles; Exports include RMG of all textiles, 

cotton yarn/fabs./made-ups/handloom products, man- made yarn/fabs./made-ups, handicrafts excl. handmade carpets, carpets, jute 

mfg. including floor coverings, *- April- June. 

 

Source: Ministry of Textiles 

 

3.4 Market Growth 

 

The market for Indian textiles and apparel is projected to grow at a 10% CAGR to reach US$ 350 billion 

by 2030. Moreover, India is the world's 3rd largest exporter of Textiles and Apparel. India ranks among 

the top five global exporters in several textile categories, with exports expected to reach US$100 billion. 

The textiles and apparel industry contributes 2.3% to the country’s GDP, 13% to industrial production 

and 12% to exports. The textile industry in India is predicted to double its contribution to the GDP, rising 

from 2.3% to approximately 5% by the end of this decade. Textile manufacturing in India has been 

steadily recovering amid the pandemic. The manufacturing of textiles Index for the month of June 2024 

is 106. 

 

Global apparel market is expected to grow at a CAGR of around 8% to reach US$ 2.37 trillion by 2030 

and the Global Textile and Apparel trade is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4% to reach US$ 1.2 trillion 

by 2030. 
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India’s home textile industry is expected to expand at a CAGR of 8.9% during 2023-32 and reached US$ 

23.32 billion in 2032 from US$ 10.78 billion in 2023.The Indian Technical Textile market has a huge 

potential of a 10% growth rate, increased penetration level of 9-10% and is the 5th largest technical 

textiles market in the world. The Indian composites market is expected to reach an estimated value of 

US$ 1.9 billion by 2026 with a CAGR of 16.3% from 2021 to 2026 and the Indian consumption of 

composite materials will touch 7,68,200 tonnes in 2027. 

 

In the first advances, the agriculture ministry projected cotton output for 2023-24 at 31.6 million 

bales. According to the Cotton Association of India (CAI), the total availability of cotton in the 2023-24 

season has been pegged at 34.6 million bales, against 31.1 million bales of domestic demand, including 

28 million bales for mills, 1.5 million for small-scale industries, and 1.6 million bales for non-mills. 

Cotton production in India is projected to reach 7.2 million tonnes (~43 million bales of 170 kg each) by 

2030, driven by increasing demand from consumers. It is expected to surpass US$ 30 billion by 2027, 

with an estimated 4.6-4.9% share globally. In 2022-23, the production of fibre in India stood at 2.15 

million tonnes. While for yarn, production stood at 5,185 million kgs during the same period. India saw 

a 36.4% increase in industrial design applications, particularly in textiles, accessories, tools, machines, 

health, and cosmetics. According to ICRA, Indian apparel exporters are projected to achieve revenue 

growth of 9-11% in FY25, driven by the gradual reduction of retail inventory in key end markets and a 

shift in global sourcing towards India. India’s textiles industry has around 4.5 crore employed workers 

including 35.22 lakh handloom workers across the country. 

 

3.5 Growth Drivers 

 

A. Growing Demand 

• Rising demand in exports 

• Increasing demand in the domestic market due to changing taste and preferences 

• Growing population driving demand for textiles 

 

B. Policy Support 

• Growing domestic and foreign investments 

• Government setting up SITPs and mega cluster zones 

• Increasing loans under TUF 

 

C. Increasing Investment 

• 100% FDI in textile sector 

• US$ 140 billion of foreign investment expected 

• Government investment schemes (TCIDS and APES) 

 
Note: TCIDS- Textile Center Infrastructure Development Scheme, APES -Apparel Park for Exports Scheme 
 
Source: Ministry of Textiles 

 

3.6 Opportunities 

 

A. Competitive Advantage 

 

• Abundant availability of raw materials such as cotton, wool, silk and jute. 

• India enjoys comparative advantage in terms of skilled manpower and in cost of production 

relative to other major textile producers. 

• Abundant availability of raw materials such as cotton, wool, silk and jute. 

 

B. Policy Support 

 

• 100% FDI (automatic route) is allowed in the Indian textile sector. 

• Production-linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme worth Rs. 10,683 crore (US$ 1.44 billion) for 

manmade fibres and technical textiles over a five-year period. 
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• The Indian government has notified uniform goods and services tax rate at 12% on Man-Made 

Fabrics (MMF), MMF yarns and apparel, which came into effect from January 1, 2022.  

 

C. Robust Demand 

 

• India's textiles sector, driven by a strong policy framework, saw 11% YoY growth in ready-

made garment exports in August 2024 and is expected to reach US$ 350 billion by 2030. 

• The Indian technical textiles market is expected to expand to US$ 23.3 billion by 2027, driven 

by increased awareness of goods and higher disposable incomes. 

• Cotton production in India is projected to reach 7.2 million tonnes (~43 million bales of 170 kg 

each) by 2030, driven by increasing demand from consumers. 

• In FY25 (April-June), exports of readymade garments including accessories stood at US$ 2,244 

million. It is expected to surpass US$ 30 billion by 2027, with an estimated 4.6-4.9% share 

globally. 

 

D. Increasing Investments  

 

• In order to attract private equity (PE) and employee more people, the government introduced 

various schemes such as the Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks (SITP), Technology 

Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) and Mega Integrated Textile Region and Apparel (MITRA) 

Park scheme 

• Total FDI inflows in the textiles sector stood at US$ 4.47 billion between April 2000- March 

2024. 

 

4. Textile Industry: Notable trends  

 

A. Textile Parks: 

 

• Since2014,59 textile park projects have been sanctioned under SITP and PPP with40% 

government assistance of upto₹40crore (US$6 million). Of these, 24 textile parks are 

operational, as of July 2021. 

• In August 2023, the government sanctioned the establishment of seven PM Mega Integrated 

Textile Region and Apparel (PM MITRA) Parks on Greenfield and Brownfield sites. These 

parks will feature world-class infrastructure, including plug-and-play facilities, with a total 

investment of ₹ 4,445 crores (US$ 535 million) over a seven-year period, extending to 2027-

28. 

• In July 2023, PM MITRA Park, Amravati expected to attract investment of ₹ 10,000 crore (US$ 

1.20 billion) and create employment for 300,000 individuals. 

• In May 2023, an investment of around ₹ 6,850 crore (US$ 824.25 million) is expected in the 

PM MITRA Park in Madhya Pradesh and ₹ 8,675 crore (US$1.04 billion) in other parts of the 

state. 

• In February 2023, the union government approved 1,000 acres for setting up a textile park in 

Lucknow. In March 2022, the Bihar government submitted a proposal to Ministry of Textiles 

to set up a mega hub under the PM Mitra Mega Textile Park. 

 

B. Incubation in Apparel manufacturing 

 

• Since2014,59 textile park projects have been sanctioned under SITP and PPP with40% 

government assistance of upto₹40crore (US$6 million). Of these, 24 textile parks are 

operational, as of July 2021. 

• In August 2023, the government sanctioned the establishment of seven PM Mega Integrated 

Textile Region and Apparel (PM MITRA) Parks on Greenfield and Brownfield sites. These 

parks will feature world-class infrastructure, including plug-and-play facilities, with a total 

investment of ₹ 4,445 crore (US$ 535 million) over a seven-year period, extending to 2027-28. 

• In July 2023, PM MITRA Park, Amravati expected to attract investment of ₹ 10,000 crore (US$ 

1.20 billion) and create employment for 300,000 individuals. 
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• In May 2023, an investment of around ₹ 6,850 crore (US$ 824.25 million) is expected in the 

PM MITRA Park in Madhya Pradesh and ₹ 8,675 crore (US$1.04 billion) in other parts of the 

state. 

• In February 2023, the union government approved 1,000 acres for setting up a textile park in 

Lucknow. 

• In March 2022, the Bihar government submitted a proposal to the Ministry of Textile to setup 

a mega hub under the PM Mitra Mega Textile Park. 

 

C. Technical Textiles 

 

• In August 2023, the Ministry of Textiles approved 26 engineering institutions for the 

introduction of Technical Textiles under the National Technical Textiles Mission. 

• Secretary of the Ministry of Textiles, Ms. Rachna Shah, announced that India's technical textiles 

market has great potential, with a notable growth rate of 10% and ranking as the 5th largest in 

the world. 

• The technical textiles market for automotive textiles is projected to increase to US$3.7 billion 

by 2027, from US$2.4 billion in 2020.Similarly, the industrial textiles market is likely to 

increase at an 8% CAGR from US$ 2 billion in 2020 to US$ 3.3 billion in 2027. 

 

D. Public Private Partnership 

 

• The Ministry of Textiles commenced an initiative to establish institutes under PPP to encourage 

private sector participation in the development of the industry. 

• In August 2021, Flipkart and Himachal Pradesh State Handicrafts and Handloom Corporation 

Ltd. (HPSHHCL) signed a memorandum of understanding (MoU) to help the state’s master 

craftsmen, weavers and artisans showcase their hallmark products one-commerce platforms. 

 

E. Research and Development 

 

• In June 2023, the Government approved R&D projects worth US$ 7.4 million (₹ 61.09 crore) 

in the textile sector. 20 R&D Projects have been approved under the National Technical Textiles 

Mission in Geotech, Protech, Indutech, Sustainable Textiles, Sportech, Buildtech and Specialty 

Fibres. 

• In December 2022, a total of 44 R&D projects were started, and 23 of them were successfully 

completed in the silk industry. 

• Defense Research and Development Organisation (DRDO) is helping the Indian textile industry 

to produce yarns and eliminate dependence on import of Chinese and other foreign clothing for 

military uniforms. 

 

5. Foreign Investment Influx into the Indian Textile Sector 

 

➢ 100% FDI is permitted in the sector. Cumulative FDI inflows in the textiles sector (including 

dyed and printed textiles) stood at US$ 4.47 billion between April 2000- March 2024. 

➢ The textiles industry in India is experiencing a significant increase in collaboration between 

global majors and domestic companies. 
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Note: Textiles Sector FDI includes Dyed and Printed, FDI – Foreign Direct Investment 

Source: Ministry of Commerce and Industry, DPIIT 

 

6. Partnership with State Government, and Reengineering of Existing Schemes and Policies 

 

6.1 Scheme for Integrated Textile Parks (SITP) 

 

For the success of SITP, involvement of the State Government is required for facilitating assembly of 

land and other clearances. Further, the existing model does not provide for development and availability 

of workspace for new entrants after the formation of the SPV. Workspaces should be available off-the-

shelf on demand. This is essential for achieving the high growth rates envisaged. It is, therefore, 

recommended that the Scheme be modified and implemented in the following three modes:  

a) SPV formed by the entrepreneurs or industry associations as currently prescribed in the Scheme  

b) SPV formed by the State Government through any of its institutions for development of the 

Textile Park.  

c) SPV formed by the State Government which operates in a PPP mode.  

 

The last two SPV options would be the major ones to implement Plug and Play and Worker’s Housing 

programs. To develop large, world-class manufacturing infrastructure, the development of Mega Parks 

with large areas, ideally 1,000 acres or more, is recommended. SITP should be modified to also promote 

the development of Mega Textile Parks of 1,000 acres and above. Development of mega parks could 

take place in phases. For these mega parks, there should be no financial ceiling on assistance which 

should be linked to the area developed. The development of 2 mega textile parks should be targeted 

initially. 

 

In NPV terms, any capital subsidy can be made equivalent to an interest subsidy. To permit limited 

budgetary outlays to support a much larger programme of development of textile parks including mega 

textile parks, it is recommended that the scheme may be modified to convert the existing capital subsidy 

provision to an interest subsidy provision with the same NPV effect. The Ministry of Textiles should 

also work with the Department of Financial Services to provide long-term fixed interest rate financing 

for these SPVs. The longer the tenor of the loan, the lower the outgo on interest subsidy will be annually. 

Hence with the same budgetary provision an even larger programme can be supported. 

 

6.2 Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) 

 

TUFS was designed to incentivize investments by lowering the effective interest rates through interest 

subsidy. However, delay in reimbursement causes companies to pay higher interest rates for the period 

during which reimbursement is being processed. This need not be the case. The implementation 

mechanism of TUFS should be reengineered with FIs, so that the borrower gets the effective rate from 

the outset and the FIs take reimbursement from the Ministry for the interest subsidy involved 
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Credit available to the sector through banks usually has a repayment period consisting of 2 years of 

moratorium and 5 years of repayment. However, the life of plant and machinery extends much beyond 

this term – sometimes more than 20 years even. Shorter repayment period puts considerable pressure on 

the business in form of higher annual repayment costs. In order to reduce repayment pressure on 

businesses, it is recommended that loan repayment period should be extended to 2 years of moratorium 

and 8 years of repayment. The Ministry of Textiles should coordinate with Department of Financial 

Services to get the banking system to agree to this change 

 

A large number of low-end, plain power loom units do not find it feasible to upgrade straightaway to 

auto looms, which is the minimum benchmark under TUFS. To support such units, Government provides 

financial assistance for upgradation under ‘In-Situ Upgradation of Plain Power loom’ scheme. It is 

recommended that there should also be a provision for ‘Rapier Drive Kit’ for converting existing plain 

looms/ semi-auto looms into rapier shuttle-less loom for which assistance should be increased to 50% of 

the current estimated cost of Upgradation. 

 

Government has extended additional benefit for installation of high-tech weaving machines. It is 

recommended that weaving preparatory and knitting machines should also be benchmarked for similar 

benefits under TUFS as available for new shuttle less looms. 
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OUR BUSINESS 

 

Some of the information in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans and 

strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read the section 

“Forward-Looking Statements” on page 15 for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties in relation to those 

statements. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking 

statements. Also read chapter titled “Risk Factors” on page 20, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect 

our business, financial condition, or results of operations. 

 

Our financial year ends on March 31 of each year, and references to a particular Financial Year is to the twelve 

months ended March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires otherwise, the financial 

information included herein is derived from our Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial Results 

included in this Letter of Offer. For further information, please see the chapter titled “Financial Statements” on 

page 86.  

 

In this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to “our Company” is a reference to Scoobee 

Day Garments (India) Limited on a standalone basis. 

 

Background and Business Overview 

 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited, originally incorporated as ‘Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited’ on 

August 9, 1994, began its journey as a public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, with an initial 

focus on establishing an eco-friendly paper mill utilizing waste paper and de-inking technology. The company 

received its certificate of commencement of business on December 16, 1994. In September 2017, the company 

was acquired by the promoters of the Anna Group of Companies—Mr. Boby M. Jacob, Mrs. Minni Boby Jacob, 

and M/s Anna Aluminium Company Pvt. Ltd.—marking a significant shift in ownership and direction. In 

December 2018, the Group acquired a manufacturing facility in Karur, Tamil Nadu, designed for garment 

production and aligned with the requirements of international clients. This plant also includes residential facilities 

for workers, supporting employee welfare and operational efficiency. 

 

The Anna Group, with a history spanning over five decades, initially engaged in aluminium manufacturing and 

gradually diversified into sectors such as food, spices, and textiles. Its expansion strategy included launching 

brands like Kitex, which handles the production of school and travel bags under Scoobee Day and Trawellday 

Bags. The Group also operates Sara Spices, founded in 1979, which is active in the spice processing and 

distribution segment. Its offerings extend to aluminium utensils, extrusions, and roofing materials, developed in 

advanced manufacturing setups. 

 

Following its acquisition and expansion, the company broadened its operations into two main business segments: 

garments and roofing materials. It entered the roofing solutions market in 2018, supplying aluminium and 

galvanized iron (GI) sheets primarily in Kerala. In 2019, it began producing apparel and ready-made garments, 

serving both domestic customers and large international buyers. To reflect this strategic shift, the company’s name 

was changed to ‘Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited’ pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 

September 6, 2021, and a new certificate of incorporation was issued on September 30, 2021. 

 

At present, Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited primarily focuses on the export of baby garments—a segment 

that demands high levels of quality. The company manufactures its baby apparel using 100% pure cotton to ensure 

softness and breathability, suitable for infants’ sensitive skin. Advanced dyeing and printing technology is 

employed to produce garments that are non-allergenic, durable, and comfortable. The company emphasizes long-

term relationships with international buyers, aiming to deliver consistent quality through robust infrastructure, 

technical know-how, and stringent quality control systems. 
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Our Products 

  

Kids Wear 

KIDS APPARELS / 

GARMSNTS 
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Aluminium Sheets 

ROOFING SHEET 

 
RIDGE SHEET 

 
CRIMB SHEET 

 



 

72 

Aluminium Sheets 

SLITTED SHEET  

 

Key Business Strategies 

 

• Ensuring Operational Excellence and Sustainable Profitability: 

 

Operational efficiency directly impacts the company’s bottom line and its ability to scale. For us, this 

involves streamlining its manufacturing processes at the Karur facility, which spans 32.5 acres with 3.5 

lakh square feet of production area. By implementing advanced automation, optimizing supply chain 

management, and adhering to ISO 9001:2015 quality standards, we can reduce production costs, improve 

lead times, and ensure consistent product quality. This focus on operational rigor will enable the company 

to maintain profitability and support its ongoing expansion. 

 

• Fostering Continuous Product Innovation: 

 

Innovation is central to maintaining competitive advantage in the apparel and garment manufacturing 

industry. Scoobee Day, which already produces a wide range of school bags, travel bags, and kids’ wear 

under the Scoobee Day brand, must continue to evolve its product offerings. This includes leveraging 

new fabric technologies, exploring sustainable and eco-friendly materials, and incorporating advanced 

design features. For example, the company’s recent entry into the roofing solutions market with products 

like Roof Shield steel roofing sheets demonstrates a commitment to diversification and innovation 

beyond the garment industry, meeting evolving customer needs for durability and cost-effectiveness. 

 

• Expanding Retail Footprint for Growth: 

 

Expanding retail presence is essential for driving growth in the highly competitive garment and consumer 

goods markets. Scoobee Day has already established a strong distribution network in Kerala and beyond, 

but the next step is to accelerate store expansion, particularly in untapped regions across India and 

international markets. The company could open flagship stores in key cities and invest in e-commerce 

platforms to reach a broader audience, like its existing model for selling bags and garments. This 

expansion strategy would support increased sales volumes and strengthen the brand's visibility in a 

competitive market. 

 

• Enhancing Brand Visibility and Recognition: 

 

Brand visibility is crucial for customer retention and market penetration. For Scoobee Day, increasing 

brand awareness can be achieved through targeted digital marketing campaigns, social media 

engagement, and strategic collaborations. The company could enhance its presence in the highly 

competitive bag and apparel market by focusing on its strong quality reputation and leveraging 

partnerships with influencers or well-known brands. Additionally, positioning the brand as synonymous 

with quality and durability, as seen with its popular school bags, will solidify consumer trust and expand 
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its loyal customer base. 

 

• Diversifying into Complementary Product Categories: 

 

Expanding into adjacent product categories presents significant growth opportunities for Scoobee Day. 

While the company is known for its bags and apparel, moving into related segments could capture 

additional market share. This strategy not only mitigates risk but also offers customers a one-stop shop 

for a wider array of high-quality products. 

 

Competitive Strengths 

 

• Proven Leadership and Extensive Industry Experience: 

 

Scoobee Day Garments thrives under the leadership of Mr. Boby Meckamkunnel Jacob and the legacy 

of the Anna Group, which has over 50 years of experience in diverse industries. This leadership has been 

instrumental in transforming the company into a major player in both garment manufacturing and 

aluminum-based roofing solutions. Their strategic vision and deep understanding of market dynamics 

have been critical to the company’s consistent growth and adaptability in global markets. 

 

• Reach and Diversified Business Portfolio: 

 

Scoobee Day has successfully expanded into international markets including the USA, Europe, Africa, 

the Middle East, and Australia. Its presence in both the garment and aluminum industries not only 

enhances global brand recognition but also provides a natural hedge against industry-specific downturns. 

This dual-sector strategy enables the company to capitalize on cross-sector synergies, ensuring 

operational stability and sustained growth even in volatile market conditions. 

 

• Robust Infrastructure and Scalable Production Capacity: 

 

The company’s 32.5-acre state-of-the-art facility in Karur, Tamil Nadu with 600,000 square feet of built-

up area-houses advanced production units for both garments and roofing materials. Equipped with 

modern machinery such as auto fabric spreaders, cutters, embroidery machines, and curing units, this 

infrastructure ensures high-volume, high-quality manufacturing. It allows for fast scaling, efficient 

operations, and the ability to meet customized and bulk demands across global markets. 

 

• Skilled Workforce and Continuous Employee Development: 

 

Scoobee Day places strong emphasis on building a capable workforce through consistent investment in 

training and development programs. These initiatives not only enhance employee skillsets and ensure 

strict quality control but also foster loyalty and reduce attrition rates. The combination of a skilled 

workforce and experienced leadership enables the company to maintain high productivity, operational 

efficiency, and adaptability in a competitive industry. 

 

• Commitment to Quality, Innovation, and R&D: 

 

Quality is central to Scoobee Day’s operations, as reflected in its ISO 9001:2015 certification. This 

standard ensures adherence to rigorous quality control across all production lines. In parallel, the 

company invests heavily in research and development to introduce innovative product designs, optimize 

manufacturing processes, and meet evolving market demands. Whether through cutting-edge fabrics in 

apparel or durable materials in roofing, the company’s innovation-driven approach provides a consistent 

competitive edge. 

 

• Financial Strength and Social Responsibility: 

 

As a publicly listed company, Scoobee Day benefits from financial transparency and access to capital 

markets, enhancing investor confidence and supporting long-term growth. In addition, the company 

demonstrates a strong sense of corporate citizenship through impactful CSR initiatives in education, 
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healthcare, infrastructure, and food security. These efforts not only strengthen the brand’s image but also 

deepen its connection with communities, customers, and employees alike. 

 

Manufacturing Process 

 

A. Garments Manufacturing Process 

 

1. Style Confirmation, Fabric Procurement and Storage:  

 

The process begins with style and order confirmation, followed by procurement of approved fabrics and 

trims. Yarns or ready fabrics are booked and processed based on buyer tech packs and sampling. 

Approved bulk fabrics are stored under humidity-controlled godowns to maintain quality and hygiene. 

 

2. Fabric Inspection and Approval for Cutting: 

 

All incoming bulk fabric are subjected to a thorough inspection and approval process prior to acceptance. 

Specialized fabric inspection machines are employed to detect any knitting faults, color inconsistencies, 

or other visible defects. Each fabric roll is assessed to ensure it meets the required quality standards in 

terms of texture, color accuracy, and uniformity. Additionally, the total quantity received is carefully 

measured and cross-checked against the purchase order specifications. Only fabrics that pass this 

comprehensive quality and quantity verification process are approved for further processing or 

production. 

 

3. Fabric Relaxation and Spreading:  

 

Fabrics are relaxed for 12 to 15 hours to eliminate 

residual tension. Post-relaxation, automatic spreaders 

lay out fabric on cutting tables to prepare for accurate 

cutting. This step reduces shrinkage and misalignment 

during production. 

 

4. CAD Pattern Making and Marker Planning: 

 

Patterns and markers are developed using advanced CAD software in accordance with specific style, 

size, and fit requirements prior to the fabric cutting process. This digital approach ensures precise and 

consistent pattern creation tailored to the garment’s design specifications. The CAD software also plays 

a crucial role in optimizing marker layouts to minimize fabric wastage and maximize material utilization. 

By strategically arranging pattern pieces, the system enhances cutting efficiency, resulting in higher 

fabric yield and overall production cost savings. This process is essential for ensuring both quality and 

sustainability in garment manufacturing. 

 

5. Auto Fabric Cutting and Panel Checking:  

 

The fabric cutting process begins with the careful 

laying of fabric using an automated spreading 

machine. This ensures that the fabric is evenly aligned, 

free from wrinkles, and properly tensioned to allow for 

accurate cutting. Once spreading is complete, 

automated cutting machines are used to cut the fabric 

into precise garment components according to the pre-

approved marker layout. This automation ensures high 

precision, reduces human error, minimizes material 

wastage, and maintains consistency across bulk 

production. After cutting, each fabric panel is individually inspected for accuracy, defects, and alignment 

before being grouped and bundled according to size and style for the next stage in the production process. 

This approach helps to maintain the quality standards and streamline the sewing phase. 
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6. Panel printing and Embroidery 

 

If a garment design requires panel printing or embroidery, the inspected cut panels are transferred to the 

designated embroidery or printing section for further processing. Only panels that pass initial quality 

checks proceed to this stage to ensure accuracy and consistency. High-quality embroidery is executed 

using advanced automated embroidery machines, which 

deliver precise and uniform stitching as per the approved 

design specifications. Similarly, automated printing 

machines are used for fabric printing, utilizing approved 

dyes, pigments, and chemicals that ensure durability, 

colorfastness, and design accuracy. Once printing is 

complete, the printed panels will pass through the curing 

machine to ensure the print's durability and fastness. After 

embroidery or printing, each panel undergoes a thorough 

inspection by the quality control team to verify workmanship, color consistency, and alignment before 

being released to the next phase of garment assembly.  

 

7. Sewing and In-Line Quality Checking:  

 

Once cut panels have passed the necessary quality 

checks, they are bundled and transferred to the sewing 

floor for garment assembly. Sewing machines and 

operators are allocated based on the specific type of 

garment and the operation bulletin (OB) prepared by the 

Industrial Engineering (IE) team. The OB outlines the 

sequence of operations, machine requirements, and 

manpower allocation to ensure an efficient production 

flow. Sewing operators follow the designated line order 

to complete the stitching process step by step. 

Throughout the sewing process, inline quality inspections are conducted to promptly identify and rectify 

any defects. This proactive approach helps maintain high-quality standards and reduces rework or 

rejection at later stages. 

 

8. Buttoning and Ironing 

 

Once the stitching process is completed, the garment will proceed to the buttoning stage, but only if the 

design requires buttons. During this stage, all buttons will be securely attached to the garment as per the 

specifications. After buttoning, if the garment requires ironing to smooth out any wrinkles or ensure a 

crisp finish, it will go through the ironing process. This ensures that the garment maintains its intended 

shape and appearance. Once the ironing is completed, the garment will then be sent to the finishing 

section.   

 

9. Finishing and Packing 

 

Once all the garment production processes have been completed, the garment will proceed to the 

finishing section. In this section, a thorough final quality control inspection will be conducted to ensure 

that the garment meets all the required standards and is in a presentable and flawless condition. The 

garment will be carefully checked for any defects, such as stitching issues, fabric imperfections, or 

improper fitting. 

 

After passing the QC inspection, the garment will then move to the packing section. In this stage, the 

garments will be packed according to the buyer's specific requirements, which may include particular 

folding methods, hangers, or special packaging materials. Each garment will be carefully packaged to 

maintain its quality and appearance during transport. 

 

Finally, the garments will be placed in carton boxes, each designed and sized according to the 

specifications for the garment type. The carton boxes will feature all the necessary details required by 

the buyer, such as the garment's description, size, color, and any other relevant information. These details 
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will be printed clearly on the exterior of the carton to ensure proper identification and easy handling 

during shipping and storage. Once packed, the goods will be ready for shipment to the buyer. 

 

10. In-House Lab Testing and Quality Control: 

 

Samples from the batch undergo lab testing for colorfastness, shrinkage, and pH value. Simultaneously, 

rechecking and auditing selected pieces helps ensure quality compliance before final steps. 

 

11. Needle and Metal Detection Process: 

 

Each garment passes through needle and metal detection machines to eliminate any sharp metal 

fragments. Garments that fail are either rechecked or moved to rejection store or rework if possible. 

 

12. Digital Tagging with Procon I-Tags and Packing Planning:  

 

Approved garments are bundled and tagged with Procon i-Tags to ensure traceability. This facilitates 

efficient polybag packing, carton packing, and tracking throughout the logistics chain. 

 

13. Ironing and Ironing QC: 

 

Steam pressing is done under monitored heat to maintain fabric integrity and remove wrinkles. An 

additional ironing quality check ensures garments are clean and correctly finished. 

 

14. End-Line Checking and Final Inspection and Rework Handling: 

 

Final inspection is conducted by trained inspectors to verify sizing, stitching accuracy, and visual defects. 

Garments failing quality checks are either reworked or moved to rejection confirmation as per SOPs. 

 

15. Finished Goods Storage and Dispatch: 

 

Post-inspection, garments are polybag packed, carton packed and moved to the finished goods area. 

Approved goods are then dispatched to buyers following planned shipment schedules. 

 

B. Roofing Products Process 

 

1. Order Receiving: 

 

The process starts with the receipt of customer orders specifying sheet type, dimensions, and profile 

requirements (trapezoidal, crimped, etc.). 

 

2. Coil Booking: 

 

Based on the order, appropriate galvanized or aluminum 

coils (PPGI, PPGL, etc.) are booked from the stock or 

vendors. 

 

3. Stock Moving to Plant: 

 

Once booked, coils are moved from stock to the plant for further processing. 

 

4. QC Checking (Incoming): 

 

The coils undergo a quality check to ensure conformity with order specifications such as thickness, width, 

tensile strength, and coating weight. Non-compliant coils are returned to the party. 
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5. Dimension Programming: 

 

Customer-specific design profiles such as sheet length, corrugation pitch, rib count, etc. are programmed 

into the CNC/PLC system. The machines adjust the die and cutting length accordingly. 

 

6. Cutting Based on Order: 

 

Sheets are cut to customer-defined lengths using hydraulic or pneumatic shearing units. Tolerance levels 

are maintained as per standards to ensure uniformity in batches. 

 

7. Profiling Activity: 

 

The cut sheets enter the roll forming line, where they are formed into the required profile using multi-

stand roll formers. This may include straight profiles or crimped curves depending on the product. 

 

8. QC Checking (Post-Processing): 

 

The profiled sheets undergo a second quality check to verify dimensions, coating integrity, and overall 

finish. Any defective items are reworked or rejected. 

 

9. Loading / Dispatch: 

 

Approved sheets are bundled, labeled, and prepared for shipment. They are loaded onto transport vehicles 

using cranes or forklifts and dispatched to clients or warehouses. Products are barcoded for traceability 

and packed with rust-proof wrapping material to avoid damage in transit. 

 

Raw Material Procurement and Suppliers 

 

Our company sources raw materials from trusted and reliable suppliers. We only use high-quality materials. Our 

team ensures that we receive the best quality materials at competitive prices, enabling us to maintain strong market 

presence. 

 

We work closely with our raw material suppliers. The spirit of partnership is paramount in the relationship. With 

the focus on quality, innovation and R & D, our suppliers have substantially contributed to our growth. In textile 

industry a major part of the manufacturing process is done on job work basis to achieve economies of scale.  

Given below is the details of the suppliers based on the raw materials procured by the Company: 

 

Our Manufacturing Facility  

 

The table below sets forth certain information regarding the products manufactured at our manufacturing facilities 

and their locations as on the date of this Letter of Offer:  

 

Manufacturing Facility Location Products Manufactured 

Garment and Roofing Sheet Karur, Tamil Nadu Baby Garments and Roofing 

Sheets 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, we operate one manufacturing unit located at Karur.  

 

Plants, Machinery, and Infrastructure 

 

The table below provides details regarding the key machinery and infrastructure at our manufacturing facilities as 

of the date of this Letter of Offer: 

 

Plant Location Key Machinery  Infrastructure Details  

Karur, Tamil Nadu 

Cutting Machine Canteen 

Flat log Hostel 

Single needle Ambulance 
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Plant Location Key Machinery  Infrastructure Details  

Over lock ATM 

Bar tack Bus Services 

Button hole and buttoning  

Snap button  

Ironing table  

Heat transfer machine  

Metal detector  

Screen Printing  

Knitting machine  

Quality control machines  

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our manufacturing unit located at Karur is equipped with cutting-edge 

machinery and infrastructure. This includes Automated Cutting Machine, Sophisticated sewing machines and 

Quality control machines,which enable us to maintain high standards of production efficiency and quality. 

 

To support our growth strategy and meet increasing customer demand, we plan to invest in upgrading our existing 

machinery and expanding our infrastructure. This will include the acquisition of new equipment, enhancement of 

our production lines, and improvements to our facility layout to optimize workflow and increase capacity. 

 

Capacity and Capacity Utilization 

 

Particular 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 Existing 

Installed 

Capacity 

(p.a.) 

Installed Capacity  

(in units Mt) 

29,20,000 29,20,000 29,20,000 

29,20,000 

Units 
Actual Production  

(in units Mt) 

41,70,832 26,84,289 27,31,525 

Capacity Utilization (in %) 142.84% 91.93% 93.54% 

 

Export and Export Obligations 

 

Our Company exports its products to Australia, with exports contributing 20.66% of the total sales during the 

financial year 2022–23, 16.00% during the financial year 2023–24 and 25.08% during the financial year 2024-25. 

The Company currently holds a confirmed export order for Australia, reflecting sustained demand in the region 

and continued focus on international markets. 

 

Sales, Marketing and Distribution 

 

▪ Garments Manufacturing  

 

Our sales process is entirely order-driven and follows a make-to-order model. This means that production 

is initiated only after receiving confirmed purchase orders from our buyers. Once an order is received, 

we generate a Bill of Materials (BOM) and run the Material Requirements Planning (MRP) process to 

determine the exact raw material needs. Based on this, the necessary raw materials are procured 

accordingly. 

 

After the production is completed, dispatch and delivery are carried out strictly in accordance with the 

delivery terms specified in the buyer’s purchase order. For export transactions, we typically operate under 

Letters of Credit (LC), ensuring security and transparency in international trade.  
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▪ Roofing Solution Products  

 

In the case of our roofing solutions division, raw materials—primarily metal coils—are procured based 

on the sales projection plan provided by our sales team. These projections help ensure to maintain optimal 

inventory levels to meet anticipated demand efficiently. 

 

Once actual orders are received from our network of dealers, the coils are processed through profiling as 

per the specific dimensions and requirements mentioned in each order. After profiling, the finished 

roofing sheets are delivered directly to the dealers’ premises using our own vehicles, ensuring timely and 

safe delivery. 

 

We typically offer a credit period of 30 days to our dealers, supporting them with flexible payment terms 

to strengthen long-term business relationships and facilitate smooth operations. 

 

Our Customers 

 

We are actively engaged in the manufacturing and export of garments. Our clientele includes several  international 

buyers. In addition to direct exports, we also undertake job work for leading garment manufacturers. 

 

In addition to garments, we also manufacture and sell roofing sheets under our proprietary brand names 

“Annalium” and “Roof Shield”. Under the Annalium brand, we specialize in the production and distribution of 

high-quality aluminum roofing sheets. Meanwhile, our Roof Shield brand focuses on the manufacturing of 

Galvanized Iron (GI) and Pre-Painted Galvalume (PPGL) roofing sheets. Both product lines are designed to meet 

diverse industrial and residential roofing needs, offering durability, weather resistance, and aesthetic appeal. 

 

The details of our customers both domestic and international, in terms of contribution towards our combined sales 

from both the product lines, are as follows: 

 

Competition 

 

Our Company operates in a highly competitive and fragmented market, with numerous players in both the 

organized and unorganized sectors. We face major competition from domestic as well as international 

manufacturers, many of which have wider product portfolios and stronger financial capabilities. 

 

Key competitive factors include product quality, design, pricing, comfort, delivery timelines, and brand 

reputation. Our strength lies in consistently delivering high-quality, value-driven products backed by customer-

centric service and efficient operations. 

 

Our experienced team, integrated manufacturing setup, and focus on innovation, quality assurance, and timely 

delivery position us well to meet market challenges and retain a competitive edge. 

 

Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, Our Company has neither registered its logo or company`s name with the 

Registrar of Trademarks. Further, the company does not hold any other kind of Intellectual Property Rights. 

 

Property 

 

The table below provides details regarding the properties owned and leased by our company as of the date of this 

Letter of Offer: 

 

Property Location Ownership Status 

(Owned/Leased) 

Area (sq.ft.) Usage 

666/12, Anna Aluminium Building 

Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, Aluva, 

Kerala, India, 683562  

Leased 500.0 Registered Office 

Karur Owned 14,19,784.8 Factory 
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Palakkad Owned 21,18,711.6 Land 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our company owns and leases several properties that are strategically located 

to support our operations. These properties include manufacturing facilities, warehouses, and office spaces. 

 

Our primary manufacturing unit is located at Karur, with an area of 14,19,784.8 square feet, and is equipped with 

cutting-edge technology to ensure efficient production processes. 

 

Human Resources 

 

Human resource is an asset to any industry. We believe that our employees are the key to the success of our 

business and hence we have a structured organization plan to take care of the growth and motivation aspects of 

our team. Our manpower is a prudent mix of experienced and young personnel which gives us the dual advantage 

of stability and growth. Our work processes and skilled resources together with our strong management team have 

enabled us to successfully implement our growth plans. As on the date of this letter of offer, our Company has 

664 (Six hundred and Sixty-Four) employees. The breakup of our manpower is as follows: 

 

Department Employee Count 

Finance and Accounts 6 

Marketing and Sales 2 

Legal and Secretarial 7 

Operations 649 

Total  664 

 

Financial Highlights 

 

Our financial performance is as under: 

(in ₹ Lakhs) 

Particulars Three months ended 

on June 30, 2025* 

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Revenue from operation 1,554.14 4,650.28 4,076.72 5,091.41 

EBITDA 245.25 631.59 927.92 1,383.30 

Profit after tax (before 

OCI) 
87.37 190.99 366.53 783.76 

*Unaudited 
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OUR MANAGEMENTAND ORGANISATION STRUCTURE 

 

Board of Directors 

 

The composition of the Board is governed and is in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the rules prescribed thereunder, the SEBI LODR Regulations and the Articles of Association. In accordance with 

the Articles of Association and the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall have a minimum of three directors 

and a maximum of fifteen directors. However, more than fifteen directors can be appointed if approved by 

passing a special resolution in a general meeting.  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two-thirds of the total number of directors, 

excluding the Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, with one-third of such number retiring at each 

AGM. A retiring director is eligible for re-election. Further, pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent 

Directors may be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to five consecutive years each and 

thereafter have a cooling off period of three years prior to being eligible for re-appointment. Any re-appointment 

of Independent Directors shall be on the basis of, inter alia, the performance evaluation report and approval by 

the shareholders of our Company, by way of a special resolution. 

 

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has 6 (sis) Directors on our Board, comprising of 1 (one) 

Executive Director, 2 (two) Non-Executive – Non-Independent Directors and 3 (three) Independent Directors 

including 1 (one) Woman Independent Director. The composition of the Board of Directors is governed by the 

provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the norms of the code of corporate governance as applicable to 

listed companies in India, the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. 

  

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the Board of Directors as on date of this Letter of Offer: 

 

Sr. No. Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, 

Address, Occupation, Term, Period of 

Directorship and Nationality 

Age  

(years) 

Other Directorships 

1. Kalpathy Lekshmi Venkitanarayanan 

Narayanan 

 

Address: 6/650, Sree Ganesh, Karekkattu 

Parambu, Ambikapuram P.O, Palakkad- 

678011. 

 

Designation: Managing Director, Executive 

Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN: 01273573 

 

Period of Directorship: Since July 04, 2016 

 

Current Term: For a period of 5 (Five) years 

from November 30, 2022 to November 29, 

2027 

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: April 04, 1957 

68 1. Kitex Garments Limited 

2. Kitex Childrenswear Limited 

3. Kitex Building Systems Limited 

2. Dony Dominic 

 

Address: Vettikkatt Veede, 2C, Tranquil 

Residency, Chembumukku, Kakkanad, 

Ernakulam, Kerala- 682021. 

 

56 1. Anna Aluminium Products (India) 

Limited 

2. Kitex Limited 

3. Anna Power Projects Private 

Limited 
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Sr. No. Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, 

Address, Occupation, Term, Period of 

Directorship and Nationality 

Age  

(years) 

Other Directorships 

Designation: Non-Executive – Non-

Independent Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN:03588411 

 

Period of Directorship: Since October 30, 

2017 

 

Current Term: Subject to retirement  

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: February 24, 1969 

3. Jeff Jacob 

 

Address: Meckamkunnel, Vilangu, 

Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, Kerala- 

683561. 

 

Designation: Non-Executive Non-

Independent Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN: 08652962 

 

Period of Directorship: Since August14, 

2020 

 

Current Term: Subject to retirement 

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: June 25, 1999 

26 1. Sara Spices Private Limited 

2. Kitex Limited 

3. Anna Aluminium Company Private 

Limited 

4. Jacs Metals Pvt Ltd 

5. Meckamkunnel Energy Private 

Limited 

6. Anna Renewable Energy Private 

Limited 

7. Anna Aluminium Private Limited 

4. Elsamma Mathew Titus 

 

Address: Apartment No 107, Sri Tirumala 

Symphony, Hosa Road, Near Nice Road, 

Begur Hobli, India, 560100. 

 

Designation: Non-Executive –Independent 

Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN: 09712874 

 

Period of Directorship: Since September 29, 

2022 

 

Current Term: For a period of 5 years from 

October 01, 2022 till September 28, 2027 

60 No other directorship 
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Sr. No. Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, 

Address, Occupation, Term, Period of 

Directorship and Nationality 

Age  

(years) 

Other Directorships 

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: April 14, 1965 

5. Satheesh Kumar Gopa Kumar 

 

Address: A-305 Purva Venezia Apartments, 

Near Mother Dairy, Yelahanka Newtown, 

Bangalore North, Karnataka, Bangalore, 

Karnataka - 560064 

 

Designation: Non-Executive –Independent 

Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN: 03425296 

 

Period of Directorship: Since August 14, 

2020 

 

Current Term: Appointed for second term of 

5 years from August 14, 2025 till August 13, 

2030 subject to approval of Shareholders. 

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: May 11, 1961 

 

64 No other directorship 

6. Augustine Antony 

 

Address: Pathikulangra Kizhakkambalam, 

Near Anna Aluminium Company, 

Kizhakkambalam P.O, Kizhakkambalam - 

683562 

 

Designation: Non-Executive –Independent 

Director 

 

Occupation: Business 

 

DIN: 09710570 

 

Period of Directorship: Since October 10, 

2022 

 

Current Term: For a period of 5 years from 

October 10, 2022 till September 30, 2027 

 

Nationality: Indian 

 

Date of Birth: July 17, 1956 

69 No other directorship 
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Past directorships in suspended companies 

 

None of our Directors is or was the director of any listed company during the last five years preceding the date of 

filing of this Letter of Offer, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any of the stock 

exchanges during the term of their directorship in such a company. 

 

Past Directorships in delisted companies 

 

Further, none of our Directors are or were a director of any listed company, which has been, or was delisted from 

any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company during the last 10 (Ten) years preceding 

the date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of person Designation Associated with 

Company Since 

1.  Kalpathy Lekshmi 

Venkitanarayanan 

Narayanan 

Managing Director July 04, 2016 

2.  Thottathikudiyil Fareed 

Zaphia 

Chief Financial Officer August 20, 2022 

3.  Alphonsa Jose Company Secretary and Compliance Officer April 28, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE 

SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED 
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SECTION VI – FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Page No 

1 Limited Review Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of our Company for the 

quarters and three months period ended June 30, 2025 along with Limited Review 

Report dated August 12, 2025. 

F-1 to F-6 

2 Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

including reports thereon. 

F-7 to F-99 

 

 

  



3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on 
Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim 

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and 

approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance 
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian 
Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in 

compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to 
express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review. 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial 

Results of M/s. Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited ("the Company") for the 
quarter ended June 30t", 2025 ("the Statement"), being submitted by the Company 
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended ("Listing Regulations"). 

The Board of Directors of 
Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited 
(Fonnerly known as Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited) 

To, 

Independent Auditor's Review Report on Review of Unaudited Standalone Financial 
Results of M/s. Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited (Formerly known as Victory 
Paper and Boards (India) Limited) for the quarter ended June 301h, 2025 pursuant to 
Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

Daiwik Arcade, 
Thiruuambadsj Road, 

Punkunnam, T71riss11r- 680 002 
Ennail: thrissur@varmaandvanna.com 

Tel: 0487 - 2385347/2385394 

o/7 U/WlO <} w~n,a, 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
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(ii) The limited review of the quarterly financial results for the quarter ended June 30, 

2024, included in the accompanying Statement, was carried out by the predecessor 
auditors, who issued their report thereon dated August 12, 2024, expressing an 
unmodified conclusion. We have not performed any procedures with respect to the 

(i) Attention is invited to Note No. 7 to the Statement. As stated therein, the Statement 
includes the results for the Quarter ended March 31, 2025 being the balancing figure 

between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published 
year to date figures up to the third quarter of the financial year, which were subject 
to limited review by us. 

5. Other matters 

4. Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come to 

our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared 
in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the 

aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in 
terms of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, .including the manner in which it 
is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement. 

Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). This standard requires that we plan and 
perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statements is 
free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial information consists of 

making inquiries, primarily of the Company's personnel responsible for financial 
and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A 
review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 

aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we 
do not express an audit opinion. 

2 

~~uztf ~<nUZ 
Chartered Accountants 
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Address Partner 
Mis. Vanna & Varma, 
Chartered Accountants 
Oaiwik Arcade, 
Thiruvambady Road, 
Punkunnam, Thrissur - 680 002 

Place: Thrissur 
Date: 12/08/2025 

Name CAP HARJKRISHNANUNNY, B.Com, FCA 

M.No.213541 
UDIN: 25213541BMIA WR3727 

Signed 

For Varma & Varma 
(Firm N o.0045325) 

figures for the quarter ended June 30, 2024, included in the Statement and, 

accordingly, we express no conclusion thereon. 

3 
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Chartered Accountants 
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Dony Dominic 
Director 
DIN: 03588411 

KL V Narayanan 
Managing Director 
DIN:01273573 

Place : Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 12.08.2025 

Particulars For the Year For The Quarter Ended 
Ended 

30.06.2025 31.03.2025 30.06.2024 31.03.2025 
Unaudited Refer Note 7 Unaudited Audited 

I Revenue from Operations 1,554.14 2,169.56 726.04 4,650.28 
II Other Income 23.38 22.17 - 60.42 
llJ Total Income 1,577.52 2,191.73 726.04 4,710.70 

rv Expenses 
Cost of Materials Consumed 424.53 1,164.05 244.30 2,374.50 
Changes in Inventories Of Finished Goods And Work- 

246.71 (132.41) 19.25 (344.01) in-Progress 
Employee Benefits Expense 446.73 452.82 229.43 1,314.38 
Finance Costs 69.47 69.55 6&.64 264.39 
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 58.53 73.37 61.85 312.33 
Other Expenses 214.30 345.70 82.44 734.23 
Total Expenses 1,460.27 1,973.08 703.91 4,655.82 

v Profit before exceptional items and tax 117.25 218.65 22.13 54.88 

VI Exceptional Items - - - 216.59 

VII Profit before tax 117.25 218.65 22.13 271.47 

VIIJ Tax expense 
(1) Current Tax - - - - 
(2) Tax of Earlier Years - 0.15 0.15 
(3) Deferred Tax (29.89) (69.99) (80.64) 

IX Profit for the period/year 87.36 148.81 22.13 190.98 

x Other Comprehensive Income 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - 
(0.62) ( 4. 70) - (2.27) Gratuity 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - 
0.16 1.18 - 0.57 Gratuity 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 

reclassified to profit or loss 

c Total Other comprehensive loss for the 
(0.46) (3.52) - (1.70) period/year 

Total Comprehensive Income f~r the Period/year 
XI (Comprising Profit and Other Comprehensive loss 86.90 145.29 22.13 189.28 

for the period/year) 

XII Paid-up equity share capital (Face Value Re.10 per 
1,350.00 1,350.00 1,350.00 1,350.00 share) 

XllJ Other Equity (856.90) 

XIV Earnings per equity share (Face Value Re.10 per 
(Not annualised) (Not annualised) (Not annualised) (Annualised) share) - (1) Basic (Rs.) 0.65 1.10 0.16 1.41 

1(2) Diluted rRs.) 0.65 1.10 0.16 1.41 

Rs in Lakhs 

SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as Victory Paper And Boards (India) Limited) 

CIN: L27100KL1994PLC008083 
Regd.Office: 666/12 Anna Aluminium Building. Kizhakkambalam Aluva. Ernakulam Kerala India -683 562 

Web:www.scoobeedaygarments.com. E-mail:info@scoobeedaygarments.com. Tel.0484 2680701 
STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 

K L V 
NARAYANA
N

Digitally signed by 
K L V NARAYANAN 
Date: 2025.08.12 
15:07:51 +05'30'
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Doriy Dominic 
Director 
DIN: 03588411 . ' 

KL V Narayanan 
Managing Director 
DIN:Ol273573 

Place : Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 12-08,-2025 

Rs in Lakhs 

For the Quarter Ended For the year 
ended 

Particulars 30.06.2025 31.03.2025 30.06.2024 31.03.2025 

Unaudited Refer Note 7 Unaudited Audited 
3. Segment Assets 
a) Garments 6,412.29 6,252.19 5,454.36 6,252.19 
b) Aluminium Roofing and Accessories 142.20 140.97 110.27 140.97 
c) Unallocated 351.63 364.80 383.12 364.80 
To tar 6906.12 6 757.96 5 947.75 6 757.96 

4. Segment Liabilities 
a) Garments 6,133.91 6,119.00 5,559.46 6,119.00 
b) Aluminium Roofing and Accessories 4.59 (2.64 (0.80) (2.64) 
c) Unallocated 187.62 148.49 63.13 148.49 
Total 6,326.12 6,264.85 5,621.79 6,264.85 

5. Capital Employed 
(Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities) 
a) Garments 278.38 133.19 (105.10) 133.19 
b) Aluminium Roofing and Accessories 137.61 143.61 111.07 143.61 
c) Unallocated 164.01 216.31 319.99 216.31 

580.00 493.11 325.96 493.11 

Rs in Lakhs 

For The Quarter Ended For the year 
ended 

Particulars 30.06.2025 31.03.2025 30.06.2024 31.03.2025 

Unaudited Refer Note 7 Unaudited Audited 
1. Segment Revenue 
(Sale/income from each segment) 
a) Garments 1,493.80 2,115.43 688.35 4,472.14 
b) Aluminium Roofing and Accessories 60.34 54.13 37.69 178.14 
Total 1,554.14 2,169.56 726.04 4,650.28 
Less: Inter segment revenue - - - 
Sales/Income from Operations 1554.14 2169.56 726.04 4650.28 

2. Segment Results 
(Profit/(Loss) before tax and interest from each 
segment) 
a) Garments 
-Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items 211.38 308.69 91.01 407.60 

Garments Total .. 211.38 308.69 91.01 407.60 
b) Aluminium Roofing and Accessories 
-Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items 1.78 27.89 (0.87) 21.66 

Aluminium Roofing and Accessories Total 1.78 27.89 (0.87) 21.66 
Total Profit/ (Loss) before Tax and Interest 213.16 336.58 90.14 429.26 
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 69.47 69.55 66.64 264.39 
Add: Exceptional Items - 216.59 
Add: Unallocable income net of unallocable (26.44) (48.38) (1.37) (109.99) 
expenditure 
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 117.25 218.65 22.13 271.47 

The Company has identified business segments as its reportable segments. Business segments comprise Garments & Aluminium 
Roofing and Accessories 

1 :Segment wise Revenue. Results. Segment Assets. Segment Liabilities and Capital Employed for the quarter ended 30th lune 
2025 

Notes 

K L V 
NARAYANA
N

Digitally signed by 
K L V NARAYANAN 
Date: 2025.08.12 
15:08:13 +05'30'
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Dony Dominic 
Director 
DIN: 03588411 

KL V Narayanan 
Managing Director 
DIN: 01273573 

For ScooBeeDay Garments (India) Limited 

we:J&uP c=:: .) Place: Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 12-08-2025 

6. Figures for the previous year /periods have been regrouped, recast and rearranged, wherever necessary to conform to current period's 
presentation. 
7. The figures for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year up to 
March 31, 2025 and the unaudited published year-to-date figures up to December 31, 2024 being the date of the end of the third quarter of the 
respective financial years, which were subjected to limited review. 

5. The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on March 27, 2025, has approved a Rights Issue of equity shares to the existing 
shareholders for an aggregate amount not exceeding '{ 5,000 Lakhs. Company has filed Draft Letter of Offer (DLOF) with the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on MayB, 2025, in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as 
amended. As per the DLOF filed, the proceeds from the Rights Issue are intended to be utilized for the adjustment of unsecured loans from 
promoters and group companies, and for general corporate purposes. 
The Rights Issue is subject to requisite approvals from SEBI and other applicable statutory /regulatory authorities. 

4. The Company is primarily engaged in two reportable business segments, as identified in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 

AS 108) "Operating.Segments" Apparels and Readymade.Garments and Aluminium/Galvanized Ir;:m Roofing Accessories. These segments are 

evaluated separately by the Company's chief operating decision maker to assess performance and allocate resources. 

3. The financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial Reporting", prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations. 2015, as amended. 

2. The above financial results havebe-en-reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the.Board of Directors at its 
respective meetings held on 12.08.2025. The same have been subjected to Limited Review by the Statutory Auditors. 

... 

K L V 
NARAYANAN

Digitally signed by K 
L V NARAYANAN 
Date: 2025.08.12 
15:08:32 +05'30'
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We conducted <1Ur audit in accord.mce with the St,md,mb on ALHli(inl:\ (SAs) specified under 
Section 1-13(10) of the Act. Our n'Sp1111,ibilitie, under those Standards an" further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the t\udit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our 
report. We Mt' independent of the Company m accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants oi India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone finam.:ial stotcrnents u · e provisions of the Act and the Rules 

~Jl~~;q,\. 
ckg/ph ~ THI ~U_R•l : •\~y \(J)f) -~h 

Basis for Opinion 

In our opmion and lo the best of our information ;111d according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by U1e Companies Act, 2013 
(" Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and its profit 
and Total comprehensive income, changes in "qu ity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Scoobee Day Garments 
(India) Limited (Formerly known as "Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited") (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as al March 31, 2025 and the 

statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the yt'ar then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a surnrnarv of material accounung policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as "the standalone (innnri.rl statements"). 

REPORT 0 THE AUDIT OF THE STA 'DALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Members of 
Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited 
(Formerly known as Victory Paper and Boards (India) Limited) 

To 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Date: 21.05.2025 

Daiwik Arcade. 
Thiruvambady Road. 

Punkunnam, Thrissur - 680002 
Ph: 0./87 2385347, 238539./ 

E-mail: thrissllr@varmaandvarma.com 

W'cvnia g %/.Y/u.7- 
Chartcred Accountants 
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environment through discussion with the 
head of LT al the Company and identified IT 
applications that are relevant to our audit. 

- Tested the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of controls relating to 
data transmission through the different IT 

systems to the financial reporting systems. 
· Tested key automated and manual controls 

and logic for system generated reports 
relevant lo U1e audit that would materially 
impact the financial statements. 

Assessed of the TT the complexity 

Our procedures included and were not limited to 
the following: 

ckg/pil 

between IT applications, are required to be 
designed and lo operate effectively to 
ensure accurate financial reporting. 

interfaces application controls and 

Automated accoun ting proccd u res and IT 

environment controls, which include IT 
governance, JT general controls over 
program development and changes, access 
to program and data and IT operations, IT 

IT systems and controls over financial 
reporting is identified as a key audit 
matter for the Company because its 
financial accounting and reporting systems 

are tundarnentally reliant on IT systems 
and IT controls tu prOCl'SS significnnt 
transaction volumes, specifically with 
respect to revenue and raw material 
consumption. 

- 

Information Technology (IT) systems and controls over financial reporting 

How the Key Audit Maller was addressed in the Audit Key Audit Maller Description 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
Conning our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each 

matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We 
have determined the mailer described below to be the key audit matter lo be communicated in our 

report. 

Key Audit Matters 

thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

2 

%AOU.b [}· %/'7/UZ 
Chattered Accoun1ants 
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In preparing the Standalone financial statements, Management and Board of Directors arc 
responsible for assessing the Company's abll ity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

. -ff,_ 
I ',/ ~JJ· ·:\ 

cl(g/ph L' \. ;. , 
, I 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

TI1e Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash nows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in lndin, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of U1e assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and 0U1er irregularities; selection and application oi appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and Iair view 
and arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

We have nothing to report on in this regard. 

When we read the reports containing the other information, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take necessary actions. as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other lnformation and, in doi.ni.1 so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Standalone Fin.incial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears lo be materially misstated. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

11w Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises tlw information included in the Company's annual report for 
the financial year 202-l- 25 but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
this auditor's report. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 
(Other lnfonnation) 
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As parl of an audit i11 accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, 
whether due tu fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain ,111 understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that me appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Directors 'use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability lo continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we arc required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
O", conclusions are based on the audi l evidence ob" l ned "p w1, < h[< d G' or ~ r auditor's "P''' 

cl(g/ph ~ 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objective' are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as ;1 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guar,rnlee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it e xists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

the Board of Directors and Management either intends lo liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were 
audited by predecessor auditor who have issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on those standalone 
financial statements vide their report dated May 29, 2024. Our opinion on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. b not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Matter 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, lhe planned 
scope and timing o( the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governaocc with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements rcgMding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters i11 our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factor' in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 

the standalone financial statements. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
includmg the disclosu res, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in n manner that achieves (air presentation. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and lo the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given lo us, the remuneration paid by the company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with 
Sched u le V uf l he Act. 

(. With respect lo the adequacy of U1e internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and U1e operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

Anncxure "B". Our report expresst'!> an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the company's Internal Financial Control over Financial reporting with 
reference to Standalone Finaucial Statements. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 st April 2025 
taken 011 record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

c, The Balance Sheet, U1e Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other comprehensive 
Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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~ny dividend during the year. Hence, 

123 of the A".l•pPli<>bl• to ti" 

v. The Company has not declared or paid 
compliance with Lhe provisions of Section 
Company for the financial ycM. 

c) Based on th" audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that th" representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule ll(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, con Jain any material misstatement. 

b) The Management ha> represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the Note No. 33.23 to the standalone financial statements, no funds 
{which ore material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or enl itv, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries"} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule l 1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company docs not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-lt·rm contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the Note No. 33.23 to the standalone financial statements, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

7 

WcvwZ-~6 ,£}- ~/v/uZ 
Chartered Accountants 

F-13



(kg/ph 

Partner 
Mis. Varma & Varma, 
Chartered Accountants, 
Daiwik Arcade, 
Thiruvambady Road, 
Punkunnam, 
Thrissur - 680 002 

Addn•ss 

CAP t·IARtKRISJ INANUNNY, ll.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 
UDtN: 252l3541BMIA VV9312 

Pince THRISSLR, 
Dnte: 21.05.2015 

Signed 
Ntunc 

For Varma & Varma 
(firm No.0045325) 

vi. As stated in Note No 33.27 lo the standalone financial statements and according to the 
information and explanations given lo us by the company and based on our 
examination, which includes test ch ... ck, the company has used an accounting software 
for maintaining its books of account, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which 
has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further 
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instances of the audit trail 
feature being tampered with. 

Additionally, the audit [Tail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 
2024. has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention, as stated in Note 33.27 to the standalone financial statements. 
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ii. a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, i11 our opinion, the frequency of verification by the 
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedures of such verification is 
appropriate. We arc informed that, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of 
inventory. 

c) According lo the information .rnd explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company as at 31" 
March, 2025 for holding any benarni property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company ha~ not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or 
intangible assets or both during the yc;ir and hence the reporting requirements under the 
Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable [or the year. 

c) According lo the information and explanations given to us, the records of the company 
examined by us and based on the details of immovable properties furnished to us by the 
company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company 
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in 
the Financial Statements under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the 
Company as at the Balance Sheet Date. 

b) According to the information .111d explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has a regular program for physical verification of its Property 
Pinnt and Equipment at reasonable intervals which in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets and that no material 
discrepancies were noticed on -uch verification, 

ii) According lo the informatiou and explanations given lo us and the records of the company 
examined by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets as reflected in the Financial Statements. 

i. a) i) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has maintained prop.:r records showing fuU particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

ANNEXURE "A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAl'Hl OF "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR JNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN 

DATE 
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T1> the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for any of the 
products of the Company as per the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 

vi. 

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits within U1e meaning of sections 73 to 76 of U1e Act and the 
rules made thereunder and hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Acl or any other relevant provisions of the Act, and the 
Rules framed thereunder are not applicable to the company for the year. Accordingly 
reporting under Clausc3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

v. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities in contravention of provisions 
of Section 185 and section 186 of the Act. 

iv. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, The company has nut made any investments in, provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms. Limited Liability l'artncrships or any other parties during the year and 
hence the reporting requirements under clause 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the order is not applicable to 
the company. 

iii. 

(Rs. '000) 

I Amount as of 
in Amount 

Amount as per reported 
Quarter Name of bank Books (Al the quarterly 

difference (A 

Statement (B) - B) 

Axis Bank and 71,+83.12 71,351.20 131.92 
June 2024 Federal Bank 

Sep 2024 Axis Bank rtnd 91,635.48 91,835.11 (199.63) 
Federal Bank 
Axis Bank and 1,29,285.84 1,28,694.49 591.36 

Dec 2024 Federal Bank 
Axis Bank and 1,61,542.28 1,54,231.l l 7,311.17 

Mar 2025 Federal Bank 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees 
Five crores in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets. ln our opinion, 
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company except as given below. The Company has not been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from financial 
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. 
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the company hos not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institution or government or any government authority. 

ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any tender during the year. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the company h<10 not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously 
unrecorded in the books of account, in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as 
income du ring the yt>ar. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and according to our examination 
of the records of the Company, there Me no arrears of undisputed statutory dues of material 
nature outstanding as at 31" March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date 

on which they became payable. 

b) According lo the information and explanations given to us and as per the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no disputed amounts of Goods and Service tax, 
Provident Fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues which are not 
deposited with relevant authorities as at 31sl March, 2025. Accordingly reporting under 

Clause 3(vii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

a) As per the information and explanations furnished to us and according to our examination of 
the records of the Company. except for certain minor delays in remittance of undisputed 
Income Tax Deducted at Source, the Company has been generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, employees' state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax. service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, 

cess .111d other material statutory dues applicable to the company to the appropriate 

authorities du ring the year 

vii. In respect of statutory dues - 

prescribed by the Central Covcrnmcnt under section 148 (1) of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions stated under clause J(vi) of tho Order are not applicable to the Company 
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xi. a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out iJ1 

accordance with generally accepted auditing practices i.n India, and according to the 
intorruotion and explanations i.>iven to ti>, we have neither come across any instances of fraud 
by the company and material fraud on the company noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have been informed of any such cast? by the Management. 

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year and hence, 
the reporting requirements under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments) and accordingly the reporting requirement 
under the clause 3(x)(a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the financial statements of the Company, we repor.t that the Company did not have any 
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associates during the year, hence reporting requirements 
under clause 3(ix)(f)ol the Order is not applicable tu the Company. 

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of 
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company did not have any 
subsidiaries 01· joint ventures or associates duri11g the year, hence reporting requirements 
under clause 3(b.)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by 
us, and on an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the company, we report that 
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used du ring the year for long-term purposes by 

the company. 

c) A> per the tnformation and explanations furnished to us, and according to our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not availed any term loans during the year. 
Accordingly reporting under Clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 
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company. 

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing finance activities 

during the year. Hence. reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable to the 

company. 

xvi. According to the· information .ind explanations given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with the directors. Accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 
J(xv) of the Order b not applicable lo the Company. 

b) We have considered. the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date of the audit report, in determining the nature, timing 
and extent of our audit procedures. 

xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
si'lt' and the nature of ils business. 

xiii. According to U1e information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 
ISH of the Companies Act, 20l3 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in Note 33.5 to the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting 

Standards. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the reporting n .. 'quirements under clause 
3(~ii) (a), (b) and (c) or the Order arc not applicable to the company. 

c) According lo the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, and as reported to us by the management, there are no whistle blower 
complaints received by the company du ring the year. 

b) To the best of our knowledge, during the year. no report under Section 143(12) of the Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4. as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and uplo the date of this report. 
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xxi. According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our verification 
of the records of the Cornpanv , the reporting requirements clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

xx. The provisions of sect ion 135 of the Act are not applicable to the company for the year and 
accordingly, the reporting requirement under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the 
company. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given lo us and the records of the Company 
examined by us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 
realization of financial assets, payment of financial liabilities and other information 
accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting U1e 
assumptions, nothing has corn" to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainly exists a> on the dale of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities exlsrlng al the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further stale chat our reporting is 
based on the facls up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor 
any assu ranee that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause 
(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the 
imrncd iately preceding financial yeM. 

d) As represented to us by the management, there is no core investment company as defined in 
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India within the Group. Hence, reporting under 

clause 3(x vi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

c) The company is a not Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of lndia. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 

applicable to the company. 
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Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with lhe Guidance 
Nute on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Cuidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute ot Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial cont-rob, both applicable to ,111 audit of Internal financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Nole 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was esteblished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company'> management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence lo company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of fr;iuds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Scoobee Day Garments 
(India) Limited ("the Company") as of 31 "March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that dale. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
under Clause (il of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

ANNEXURE "B" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(£) OF REPORT 01 OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements. 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper m<Jnagement override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because oi changes in 
conditions. or th.it the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements 
A company's internal financial con I rols over financial reporting is a process designed lo provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial 
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly rel leer the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance- that transactions are recorded <ls necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
oi the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on th" Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence \\I.! have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal fmancial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedu res selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the ris~~ u( material misstaternent of the F1n;1nci,1I Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Partner 
Mis. Vanna & Varma, 
Chartered Accountants, 
Daiwik Amide, 
Thiruvambady Road, 
Punkunnam, 
Thrissur - 680 002. 

1\ddre.<s 

CAP 1 IAIUKRISHNANUNNY, B.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 
UDIN: 25213541BMIA VY9312 

l'la<Y TMRISSUK 
Dnte:2Ul5.2V25 

S1su.:1~ 
1\rau1t.· 

For Varma & Varma 
(Fi rm No.004S32S) 

Opinion 
Jn our opinion, to the bes! of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting wilh reference Lo Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating 
effectively as at 31"March, 2025, based on the internal controls over financial reporting with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statement> criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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(9,2(>,58,683) 
12,21,82,89/Ull i 

2,95,24,215 

78,64,7?9 
2,16,59,..1;;6 

2, 16,59,436 

2,20,80,UC'~l 
4,20,564 

78,64,779 
5,26, 91,287 

3, 10,31,851.00 
2, 16,59,43b.36 

3,34,09, 121 
16,94,260.00 

3,37,500.00 

3,12,33, 178.92 
77,637.16 
66,545.36 

2,71,46,945 

$~/- 

Gross Total Income 

Less: Brought forJ rd Depreciation Loss 
Net Business Gain/( 0$) for the Year 

AdnoissiblL· Ex1~ 
Depreciation rllowable as per Income Tax Rules 
Profit on saleif land considered separately 

Long Term Capital ain 
Sale pn>ceedJ 

Less: Cost of acquiJition 
Long term Capital Gain 

S.ummary l 
Income from usiness 
C~pital Gain 

Inadmissible Exp,enses 
Depreciation written off considered separately 
MSME. Disa1~1wance u/s 43 B{h) 
Loss on sale o fixed assets 
37(1) Disallo ance (SH 7 filing charge) - Pt>e to 
ROC for enhancement of Authorised Shore 
Capital I 
Provision for Gratuity 

Income from Businef'~ 
Net Profit ns per stat rnent of Profit and Loss before tax 

SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS (11'101Al LlMITED, KIZHAKKAMBALAM 
(Foi111erl11 J(uow11 ns \I~ Pni1<'rA111L Boal'dS (l11di11) Limited) 

I morrr AND AD NT STA TEMENI FOR THE ASSESSMENT YEAR 2025·26 
(Accounting Y~:M 1mded 31st March, 2025) 

'\ 
.. 
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During the y~ar company has received subsidy of Rs 45.55 lakhs from Government of Lndia 
in respect of l*lant and Machinery. The amount is treated as a deferred income for the period 
of 12 years and accordingly Rs 3.79 lakhs is credited to Profit and Loss account for the year 
and the bala1ce amount of Rs 41.75 lakhs is shown under non current /current liability in 
Balance Shee[. Rs 45.55 lakhs is fully reduced from the cost of plant and machinery in 
depreciation as per income tax rules. However while computing the taxable income Rs 3.79 
lakhs credited to Profit and Loss account was omitted to less back. This can be considered 
while filing the return of income tax. Rs. 41.75 lakhs in the Current /Non -current liability in 
Balance Sheet is not considered for computing Deferred Tax Liability since the same is 
already adjusted to the cost of Plant and Machinery by way of deduction in depreciation 
computed as per income tax rules. 

3 

2 Set off of Una~sorbed Depreciation Loss 
Unabsorbed depreciation can be set off against any heads of income and the remaining 
balance can be carried off till for any number of assessment years. 

Note:- 
1 Capital gain indexation 

As per Finance Bill, long-term capital gains (LTCG) will be taxed at 12.5% for all classes of 
assets. The L TiCG tax without indexation was made effective from July 23, 2024. 
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I 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025 

Rs. in OOO's 

As at As at As at 

Particulars Note! March 31st, 2024 April Olst, 2023 
March 31st, 2025 (Restated) (Restated) 

A. ASSETS I 
Non-current assets 

(a) Properly, Plant and 'fluipment 3A 4,63,350.41 4,88,024 .66 5,08,459 .55 
(b) Other Intangible assets 3B 202.24 398.53 747.15 

(c) Financial Assets - - - 

( d) (~~~::::::~:~:1Ls~~f: 4 3,767.12 3,497.49 3,969.1.3 
5 - - 442.37 

(e) Other non-current ass ts 6 3,212.02 3,540.52 2,322.87 
Total Non-Current Assets 4,70,531.79 4,95,461.20 5,15,941.07 

Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 7 1,04,684.04 63,802.21 74,337.54 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 8 77,465.86 5,699.18 12,737.60 
(ii) Cash and cash equJaJents 9 7,709.30 581.04 10,845.63 
(iii) Bank balance othe than (ii) abov 10 - 170.29 5,932.80 

(c) Current Tax Assets 11 904.25 510.54 558.79 
(d) Other current assets 12 14,500.54 12,015.55 l2, 179.44 
Total Current Assets 2,05,263.99 82,778.81 1,16,591.80 
TOTAL ASSETS 6,75,795.78 5,78,240.01 6,32,532.87 

B. EQUITY AND LlABldTlES 
Equity I 
(a) Equity share capital 13 1,35,000.00 1,35,000.00 l,35,000.00 
(b) Other equity 14 (85,689.56) {1,04,617.93) (l,41,534.71) 
Total Equity 49,310.44 30,382.07 (6,534.71) 
Liabilities 
Non - Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities I (i) Borrowings 15 40,170.23 82,761.73 1,46,478.03 
(b) Provisions 16 4,164.42 2,361.04 l,752.68 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabiliti s (net) 17 10,471.64 2,465.14 - 
(d) Other Non - Current ,iabilities 18 3,795.96 - - 
Total Non - Current Lia rilities 58,602.25 87,587.91 1,48,230.71 

Co11t1/ ... 2 

SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS !INPIA) LTMlTED 
(Former/if K11ow11 as V1ctom Pn11er AJUI Boarlls Q111lia.) Limited) 

KlZHAKKAMBAl.AM. ERNAKULAM -683 562 ' 
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2 1 i-'J/ I ,,5 Place : Kizhakkambalarn 
Date : 21.05.2025 

Chief Financial Officer Aese 
Company Secretary 

CA. P. Harikrishnanunny B.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 

Partner 
Chartered Accountants 

For Varma & Varma 
(Firm No.0045325) 

As per our separate report of eve11 date attached 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of ScooBee Day Garments 
(Indla) Limited (CIN N .L27lOOKL1994PLC008083 

As at As at As at 
. Notei March 31st, 2024 April Olst, 2023 

March 31st, 2025 (Restated) (Restated) 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 19 5,40,189.97 4,41,824.10 4,62,398.81 

(ii) Trade payables 20 
total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enttrprises and 609.48 12.16 35.22 

total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterpdses and 
small enterprises 22,988.3] 16,095.35 25,550.30 

(b) Other current liabilitij 21 3,882.57 2,243.91 2,847.55 
( c) Provisions 22 212.76 94.51 4.99 

Total Current Liabilities 5,67,883.09 4,60,270.03 4,90,836.87 

Total Liabilities I 6,26,485.34 5,47,857.94 6,39,067.58 

TOTAL EQUITY ANO lJIABILITIBS 6,75,795.78 5,78,240.01 6,32,532.87 

General [nformation abolt the 

company I l 

Basis of preparation, mea urement 
and material accounting folicics 2 

Additional Information 33 
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SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS CIND!Al LIMITED 
ormeri K11ow11 ns Viet r1 Pn ,,, Ami !Jonrds Omlin) Limited) 

KIZHAKKAMBALAM. F.RNAKU1AM -683 562 
STATEMENT Of PROFIT AND L"S<:: FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 

Rs. in OOO's 
for the Year ended For the Year ended 

Particulars Notes March 31st, 2024 I March 31st, 2025 

INCOME 
Revenue from operations 23 4,65,028.37 4,07,671.99 

Other income 24 6,041.59 2,241.11 

Total income 4, 71,069. 96 4,09,913.10 

EXPENSES 
Cost of Materials Consume~ 25 2,37,449.21 1,54,428.51 

Changes in inventories of riTshed goods and work-in-progress 26 
(34,400.53) 1,951.30 

Employee benefits expense 27 1,31,438.24 1,09,004.81 

Finance costs 28 26,439.11 28,616.27 

Depreciation and amortisatTn expenses 29 31,233.18 24,703.85 

Other expenses 30 73,423.24 51,735.78 

Total expenses 4,65,582.45 3,70,440.52 

Profit before exceptional items and tax 5,487.51 39,472.58 
Exceptional Items 31 21,659.43 - 
Profit before tax 27,146.94 39,472.58 

Tax expense 
Current tax . . 
Adjustment of tax relating t1 earlier periods (15.30) . 

Deferred tax 8,063.72 2,818.99 

Total Tax Expense 8,048.42 2,818.99 

Profit for the year 19,098.52 36,653.59 

Other comprehensive incoie/(loss) 
A. (i) Items that will not be "fClassificd to profit or loss 

a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans - Gratuity (227.37) 351.7t 
(ii) Income tax relating to terns that will be reclassified to 

profit or Joss 
a) Remeasurernents of the defined benefit plans - Gratuity 57.22 (SS.52) 

6. (i} Items that will be reclj5sified to profit or loss . . 

(ii) Income lax relating to rtcins that will be reclassified to 
profit or loss - 

Total OU1er Comprehensive income/ (loss) (170.15) 263.19 

Total comprehensive income for the year (Comprising 
profit/(loss) and Other Co,prehensive income/(loss) for the 18,928.37 36,916.78 
year 
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CA. P. Harikrishnanunny B.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 

Partner 
Chartered Accountants 

For Varma & Varma 
(Firm No.004532$) 
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As per our separate report of ll'VCll dnte nttnclmt 

ss/- 

Place : Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 21.05.2025 

Chief Financial Officer 

Al~osc 
Company Secretary 

K L V Narayanan 

~r 

ony Dominic 
D. ec on DIN: 03588411) 

The accompanying notes are ![ntegral part of the financial statements. 
For and on Behalf of Board o Directors of ScooBee Day 
Garments (India) Limited CjN No.L27100KL1994Jll C008083) 

l ~ 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Pjticulars Notes March aise, 202~ 

- - March 31st, 2025 

Earnings per equiry share (Face Value of Rs .10/- each) 

1. Basic (in Rs.) 32 1.41 2.73 

2 .Diluted ( in Rs.) 32 1.41 2.73 

General Information about the company l 
Basis of preparation, measurT1cnt and material accounting 
policies 2 
Additional Information 33 
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SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS (lNDTA) LlMITED 
(Former/11 K11ow11 as Victoru Paver A11d Roards Gndill) Limited) 

KIZHAKKAMBALAM, ERNAKULAM -683 562 
CASH FL 'W ST A TEMENT FOR -rr-:m YEAR E"rnED 31•1 ""ARCH 2025 

Rs in OOO's 

SI I art iculars 
for the Year ended For the Year ended 

No 3].03.2025 31.03.2024 

A. !:;ash flow from 0(,lenting Actirities: 
Profit before tax 27,146.94 39,472.58 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and J.°''""'" Expenses 
31,233.18 24,703.85 

Finance Costs 26,439.11 28,616.27 
Sundry Balances no more payable written back (l,069.62) - 
Provision for Gratuf: l,694.26 1,049.58 
Unrealised foreign change (gain)/ loss (net) (319.82) - 
Deferred Income (379.60) - 

Irrecoverable adva1ces written off 766.21 49.22 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 66.55 - 
Profit on sale of prorerty, plant and equipment (21,659.43) (338.29) 
(See Note Not- 31) 
Operating Profit before working capital changes 63,917.78 93,553.21 
Adjustments for: 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory ( 40,881.83) 10,535.32 

(Increase)/ Oecreasf in Trade Receivables, Other (74,425.67) 3,806.48 
Non-Current Asset~, Other Current Assets 
Increase/ (Decrease. in Trade Payables, Other 9,818.96 (7,952.68) 
Current liabilities 
Cash generated/Iused in) operations (41,570.76) 99,942.33 

Less: Income tax pJid (net) (378.41) 48.26 

Net cash (used)/ from operating activities (A) (41,949.17) 99,990.59 

B. !;;a2h flQw from Investing A~tivitie§: 
Purchase of Proper~y. Plant and Equipment (8,326.73) (5,288.52) 

Sale of Property, Prt and Equipment (See Note 
23,556.98 1,814.86 

No.31) 
Capital Subsidy Received (See Note No 24-.1) 4,555.15 - 
Proceeds trom/(lmJestments m) tixed deposits 
with banks (99.34) 6,234.15 

Purchase of Intangible Assets - (108.39) 
Net cash from investing activities (B} 19,686.06 2,652.10 
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Place : Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 21.05.2025 

·- 2 1 t• 

·~.,i1<1~-i:areed 

Chief Financial Officer 

A~ 
Company Secretary 

CA. P. Harikrishnanunny B.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 
Partner 
Chartered Accountants Dony Dominic 

Di (DIN: 03588411) 

KL V arayanan 
Managing Director (DJN:,01273573) ~e 

As per our separate report of eve11 dnte attached 
Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies - Note No:- 2 

The accompanying rotes are integral part of the financial statements. 

For and on Behalf of Boa~<i of Directors of ScooBee Day 
Garments (India) Limited (CIN No. 
L27100KL1994PL 008083) For Vanna & Varma 

(Firm No.0045325) 

' 

~) For the Year ended For the Year ended 
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 No 

c. Cash flow from Financing Activities: 

Proceeds from /(Repayment of) Non-Current 
Borrowings (includirg current maturities) (net} (46,026.75) (17,689.55) 

Proceeds from /(Repayment of) Current 
Borrowings (net) 1,01,857.23 (66,601.%) 

Finance Costs (26,439.11) (28,616.27) 

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C) 29,391.37 (1,12,907.28) 

Net Increase/ (Deer ase) in Cash and Cash 
equivalents (A+B+C) 7,128.26 (10,264.59) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the year 581.04 10,845.63 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year 
(Refer Note No. 9) 7,709.30 581.04 
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SCOOBEE DAY GARMENTS (INDIA} LTD. . : (Formerlu Known ns Victor11 Pnper A11d Boards (India) Limited) 

' KIZHAKKAMBALAM. ERNAKULAM -683 562 

STATEMEN11 OF CHANGES IN EOUTTY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025 

(A) EQUITY SHARE CrlTAL 
Rs. in OOO's 

Particulars Amount 
Balance as at Olst April,12023 1,35,000.00 
Changes in equity share capital during the year - 
Balance as at 31st Marc~, 2024 1,35,000.00 

Balance as at Olst April, 2024 1,35,000.00 

Changes in equity shar1capital during U1e year - 
Balance as at 31st Marc , 2025 1,35,000.00 

(B) OTHER EQUITY 

. Rs. in OOO's 

Reserves & Surplus Items of other 
Particulars Retained comprehensive Total 

earnings 
Other reserves income 

Balance as at Olst April] 2023 (1,40,219.41) - - (1,40,219.4]) 

Changes in Accounting policies or prior 
(J,315.30) (1,315.30) 

period errors (See Note No:- 33.29) 
- - 

Restated balance as at Olst April 2023 (1,41,534.71) - - (1,41,534.71) 

Profit for the year 36,653.59 - - 36,653.59 

Re-measurements of post employment 263.19 263.19 
benefit obligations (net tf tax) 

- - 
Balance as at 31st Marc 2024 (1,04,881.12) - 263.19 (1,04,617.93) 
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Place : Kizhakkambalam 
Date : 21.05.2025 

Chief Financial Officer 

CA. P. Harikrislmanunny B.Com, FCA 
M.No.213541 
Partner 
Chartered Accountants 

(W. V Narny , n 
Managing Director (DI!\!: 01273573) 

§f:l;;~!vf 

(Firm No.0045325) 
For Vanna & Varma 

As per our separate report of euen date attacheti 
Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies - Note No: 2 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements. 
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 
ScooBee Day Garments (India) Limited 
(CIN No L27100KLJ994PLC00808 ) 

Reserves & Surplus Items of other - .- comprehensive Total Partic,tlaF Retained Other reserves 
earnings income 

Balance as at Olst April,12024 (1,04,881.12) - 263.19 (1,04,617.93) 

Changes in Accounting policies or prior - - - - 
period errors (See Note ro:- 33.29) 

Restated balance as at Olst April 2024 (1,04,881.12) - 263.19 (1,04,617.93) 

Profit for the year ~ 19,098.52 - - 19,098.52 

Re-measurements of po t employment - (170.15) (J70.15) - 
benefit obligations (net j1 tax) 

Balance as at 31st March 2025 (85,782.60) - 93.04 (85,689.56) 
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OlRECTOR 
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A liability is treated as current when 
a. It is expected to ble settled in normal operating cycle; 
b. It is held primari y for the purpose of trading; 
c. It is due to be set\led within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the rep~rting period. 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and 
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle 
and other criteria asset out in the Division U of Schedule Ill to the Act. Based on the nature of products 
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current 
or non-current classification of assets and liabilities 

An asset is treated as Lrrenl when it is 
a. Expected lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c, Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

NOTES ANNEXED TO ANO FOltMING PART OF THE PlNANClAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

1. GENERAL LNfORMA !ON ABOUT THE COMPANY 

ScooBee Day Garments (lndia) Limited ("the Company") ( Formerly known as Victory paper and 
Boards (India)) is a public limited company incorporated in India on 9th August 1994 having its 
registered office at Kizhakkambalam, Aluva, Ernakularn. The Company has listed its equity shares on 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The company is a manufacturer of apparels, ready made garments 
and aluminium roofing and accessories. 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT ANO MATERJAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Measurement 
(a) Basis of preparation 
The Standalone finantal statements which comprise the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Othe~ Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity ("financial statements") have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standard~ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in Jfidia and other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable. 
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As perour separate report of euen date attached 

DONY DOMTNIC 
IRECTOJt 

- Level 3: inputs for ,e asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

- Level 1: quoted pricj (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

- Level 2: inputs othr than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

(a) Use of estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions in the arplication of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous 
evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recogni~d prospectively. 
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and 
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
with.in the next financial year, are included in the following notes: 
• Measurement of defined benefit obligations· Note 33.4 
• Measurement and lifelihood of occurrence of provisions· Note 16 and 22 
• Recognition of dcfeled tax liabilities - Note 17 

(bl Measurement of fair values 
Certain accounting p9licies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial an1 non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control 
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The valuation team regularly reviews 
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Fair values are categorised into different 
levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

.All other Iiabihties arc l.~ifiol M non-current 
All amounts disclose1 in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 
thousands as per requirement of Schedule lll of the Act, unless otherwise stated. 

(bl Basis of measurement 
These fi.nancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
indicated. 
2.2 KEY ACCOUNTltiG ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 
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As per our separate report of even date attached 

K.L.V.NARAYANANU .,J.DONYDOMJNIC 
MANAGING DffiECT<?R ..-~IRECTOR 
DIN:Ol273573 ~ DIN: 03588411 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets has been provided on Straight Line method. The useful lives 
adopted are as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except for leasehold land which 
is amortised over the period of lease. Capital Spares are depreciated based on useful life of each 
replaced part. 

Revenue is measured rased on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, stated jet of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognised 
based on the price 1pecified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. 
Accumulated experierice is used to estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of return, using the 
expected value method. 

2.IJ Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant an1 equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 

any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment 
are ready for use, as intended by management. When parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they arc accounted for as separate items (major components). 
The cost of replaccnlent spares/ major inspection relating to property, plant and equipment is 
capitalized only whel it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to 
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Revenue from contraft with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies performance 
obligation by transferr/ng promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are 
satisfied at a point of time or over a period of time. Performance obligations satisfied over a period of 
time are recognised as per the terms of relevant contractual agreements/ arrangements. Performance 
obligations are said to re satisfied at a point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset. 

2.3 Revenue recognitipn 
Effective 1st April, 2q1s, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers (Ind AS llS, the standard), using the cumulative effect method for transition. The adoption 
of the standard did no have any material impact to the financial statements. 

When measuring the f<fir value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 
0.far 

as possible. Tf the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entice 
measurement. 
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2.5 Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets rre staled at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible 

assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, 
from the dale that they arc available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible 
asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and 
other economic factorf (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and 

the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the 
asset. Amortization ntthods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial 
year end, 

Depreciation met~ods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at 
each financial year en~. 

Advances paid tol"ards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of 
assets not put to use ~efore such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-ill-progress'. Subsequent 
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that 
future economic bene7ts associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. 

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The cost and 
related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement 
of the asset and the re~ultant gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets 
to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. 

5 years 
10 years 
3-6 years 
8 years 

60 years 
30 years 

25 years 

15 years 
Office equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 
Computers and data processing units 
Vehicles (motor cars) 

Buildings (other than factory buildings) - RCC Frame Structures 

Buildings (other than RCC Frame Structure) and Factory Buildings 

Continuous process plant 

Other Plant and Machinery 

. The company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using 
-straight line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 
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a) Financial Assets: 
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument, On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial 
assets which are recopnised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are 
recognised in the stater'.ent of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the 
acquisition value of the financial asset. 
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at- 
• a mortised cost 
• fair value through p~ofit and loss (FVTPL) 
• fair value through ojher comprehensive income (FVOO). 
Financial assets are n~t reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

Trade Receivables an1 Loans: 
Trade receivables tha~ do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction 
price as per Ind AS 115. 
Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net 
of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through 
the expected life of finnncial instrument. 

2.6 Financial instruments 

-10 years 
- 10 years 

- 5 years 
-15 years 

Design 
Know-how 
Computer software 
Distribution network 

"The useful Lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finite-Life intangible 
'assets are amortised 011 a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. Estimated 
useful lives by major class of finite-life intangible assets are as follows: 
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The Company makes !such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an 
equity instrument is ecognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the 
Company has elected lo measure such instrument at FVOO. Fair value changes excluding dividends, 
on an equity instru1m1nt measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are 
not subsequently recl~ssified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments 
in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Equity Instruments: 
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair 
value, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCJ 
or FVTPL. 

Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost 
or FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in 
fair value, including ifterest income and dividend income if any, recognised as 'other income' in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Measured al fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling fi.nanciaJ assets and collecting contractual 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured al [air value 
through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment 
losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de recognition. cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in 00 is reclassified from the equity to 'other income' in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Debt Instruments: 
-Debt instruments are initially measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 
income ('FVOCI') or fair value through profit or loss ('PVTPL') till derecognition on the basis of (i)the 
entity's business model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial asset. 

Measured at amortised cost: Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ('EIR') 
method less impairmert, if any. The amortisation of ElR and Joss arising from impairment, if any is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Derivatives for which hedge accounting is not applied 
Derivative financial ~truments for which hedge accounting is not applied are initially recognised al 

fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered and are subsequently measured at 

FVI'PL. 

When a derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss remains in 
equity until the related cash £low occurs. When the cash £low takes place, the cumulative gain or loss 
is taken to the stateme11t of profit and loss. If the hedged cash flow is no longer expected to occur, the 
cumulative gain or los is taken to the statement of profit and Joss immediately 

If the hedged cash f\ow relates to a non-financial asset, the amount accumulated in equity is 
subsequently included, within the carrying value of that asset. For other cash flow hedges, amounts 
accumulated in other comprehensive income are taken to the statement of profit and loss at the same 
time as the related cash flow. 

-Derivafive Financial Instruments: 
The Company uses d~vative financial instruments lo hedge its foreign currency and commodity 
risks. Derivatives are measured at fair value. The treatment of changes in the value of derivative 
depends on their use as explained below: 

Cash How hedges: 
Derivatives are he.Id to hedge the uncertainty in timing or amount of future forecast cash flows. Such 
derivatives are classified as being part of cash flow hedge relationships. For an effective hedge, gains 
and losses from chanfes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in other comprehensive 
income. Any ineffectiv elements of the hedge are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

F-41



J 

2 1 

ssl- 

As per our separate report of even riate attached 

K.L.V.NARA YANAN OONY DOMINIC 
MANAGING DIRECTOR ~ !RECTOR 
DtN:01273573 ~~~~~~F::::::.-i- OU'1: 035$8411 

b) Financial Liabilities: 
initial recognition an~ measurement 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument, Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial 
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are 
initially recognised at fnir value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest iethod. 

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

For financial assets o~er than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month 
expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets ii at the reporting date the credit 
risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected 
credit losses arc measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset 
increases significantly since? its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contain 
significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount 
equal to life time expected tosses i.e, expected cash shortfall. 

Impairment of Financial Asset 
Expected credit losses are recognized for aJJ financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other 
than financials assets in FVTPL category. 

Oerecogni tion 
The Company dereco&nises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from U1e 
financial asset expire. dr it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from U1e asset. 

Offsetting financial instruments 

Finansial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, 
'if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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For financial asse~ and liabilities maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and which 
are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are more or less equal to the fair value due to the 
short maturity of thes~ instruments. 
2.8 Impairment of Non-financial Assets: 
Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication 
that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite Life intangibles are subject to a review for 
impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is necessary. For 
the purpose of asscss/ng impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash 
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets is cory;idered as a cash generating unit. Goodwill acquired in a business combination 
is, from the acquisitipn date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that art! 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or 
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting 
policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In 
determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and 
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The 
methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market 
prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, 
and such value may n ver actually be realized. 

Derecognition J 
A financial liability · derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de­ 
recognised. 

2.7 Fair value of finan ial instruments 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised 
cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the El~. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 
Financial liabilities crujtied at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Provision for onerous contracts. l.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the 
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are 
recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle a pn1sent obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of 
such obligation. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which w1iLI be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

2.9 Provisions, Continpent Liability and Contingent Assets 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of U1e obligation. 
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 

ff the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present 
value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
The estimates reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the 
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted. The discount rate used to 
determine the presentrvalue is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risk~ specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognized as intere~t expense. 

• U nny indication of irpai1·ment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual 
.nsset/cash generating unit is made. Asset/cash generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their 
recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount by recognising the impairment loss 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of ruy goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash generating unit and then to the other 
assets of the unit, pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Recoverable amount 
is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's fair value less costs of disposal and its value i11 use. 
Value in use is the pre ent value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing 
use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its disposal at U1e end of its useful life. Assessment is 
also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment Joss 
recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased, basis 
the assessment a reversal of an impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit anq Loss account. 
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Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or to an item 

I which is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. · 
Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using 
applicable tax rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. 
Interest income/ exp9nses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current tax 
expense. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. 

2.12 Income tax and Deferred Tax 

2.10 F~reign currency 

The financial statements are presented in TNR, the functional currency of the Company. Items 
included in the financial statements of the Company are recorded using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates (the 'functional currency'). 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the 
date of the transaction; Foreign exchange gai.ns and losses from settlement of these transactions, and 
from translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date exchange rates are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.11 Earnings per equity share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the 
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and 
for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of 
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. In computing diluted earnings per share, 
only potential equity ~hares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases 
loss per share are included. 
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Defined contribution plans 
Contributions to defi1~ed contribution schemes such as employees' state insurance, labour welfare 
fund, superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the 
amount of contributiof' required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. 
Company's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government 
administered fund an? charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above benefits 
are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no farther defined obligations 
beyond the monthly cfntributions. 

Defined benefit plans 
In respect of certain employees, provident fund contributions are made to a trust administered by the 
Company. The interest rate payable to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory 
rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous Provis.ions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Company. The 
liability in respect of lthe shortfall of interest earnings of the Fund is determined on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation. ~'e Company also provides for retirement/post-retirement benefits in the form of 
gratuity, pensions (i11 respect of certain employees}, compensated absences (in respect of certain 
employees) and medical benefits including to the employees of Indian subsidiaries and a subsidiary of 
parent Company. 

2.13 Employee benefits 

A-deforred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
tarrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end 
of the reporting perioq. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realiped. 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. 
Deferred tax assets an1 deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax 
Liabilities relate to incore taxes levied by the same taxation authority. 
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(b) when the Compmy recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of lnd AS 37 and 
involves the payment of termination benefits. 
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of U1e reporting period are discounted to their 
present value. 

Share-Based Payments: 
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments in 
consideration of the sJrvices rendered. 
Under the equity set~ed share-based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to 
employees is recognised as 'employee benefit expenses' with a corresponding increase in equity over 
the vesting period. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated by an independent 
valuer basis Black Sc.holes model. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non-market 
vesting condition, the expense is reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the level of options 
expected to vest. Whe)'.l the options are exercised, the Company issues fresh equity shares. 

Termination benefits 
Termination benefits, in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits or termination benefits arising 
from restructuring, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises 
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: 
(a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; or 

All defined benefit pla11s obligations are determined based on valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, 
made by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The classification of the 
Company's net obligation into current and non-current is as per the actuarial valuation report. 

.For defined benefit pla s, the amount recognised as 'Employee benefit expenses' in the Statement o! 
Profit and Loss is the cost of accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the 
costs of individual events such as past/future service benefit changes and settlements (such events are 
recognised immediate!!'. in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net interest expense 
calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged 
or credited to 'finance costs' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the interest 
income on plan assets ~nd the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year 
due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised 
immediately in 'Other comprehensive income' and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 
The defined benefit plan surplus or deficit on the Balance Sheet comprises the total for each plan of 
the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit liabilities (using a discount 
rate by reference to mrket yields on government bonds at the end of the reporting period). 
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To assess whether a c ntract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 
assesses whether: 
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through U1e 
period of the lease and 
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

2.16 leases 
The Company's lease. asset classes consist of leases for Land and Buildings, Plant & Equipment, 
Furniture and Fixture~ & Office Equipment. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a 
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an ldentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Final dividends oJ shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders 
and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of 
Directors. 

2.15 Dividends 

Cash Dows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for 
the effects of transactipns of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or paym~nts and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows of the Company are segregated into operating, investing and financlng 
activities. 

2.14 Cash Flow Staten enl 

For cash-settled share-based payments, the fojr value of the amount payable to employees is 
recognised as 'employee benefit expenses' with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period 
of non-market vesting conditions getting fulfilled. TI1e liability is remeasured at each reporting period 
up to, and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits 
expenses. 
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As a le_.ssce 
-At the dale of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and 
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except (or leases wilh a 
term of twelve month or less (short- term leases) and leases of low value assets. For the Company 
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

lease. 
TI~e right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for ai)y lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated deprecia~on and impairment losses, ii any. Right-of- use assets are depreciated from the 
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. 
The lease liability is i~1itially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, 
using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing 
the carrying amount lo reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to 

reflect the lease payments made. 

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease 
term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally 
also adjusts the leased assets. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows. 
The company's lease labilities are included in Other financial liabilities. 

As a lessor 
Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor 
are classified as operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are recognised to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the lease 
payments to the lessol are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessor's expe~ted inflationary cost increases, in which case tile same are recognised as an 
expense in line with ~1e contractual term. 
Leases are classified fs finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. 

The Company accounts for sale and lease back transaction, recognising right-of-use assets and lease 
liability, measured in the same way as other right-of-use assets and lease liability. Gain or loss on the 
sale transaction is recognised in statement of profit and loss. No gain or loss is recognised from the 
sale transaction to the extent the asset is leased back. 
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Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown 
within short-term bolowings in the balance sheet. 

2.21 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

b) Grants related t9 income are treated as other income in statement of profit and loss subject to 
due disclosure about t~c nature of grant. 

2.20 Changes in Accounting Standards and recent accounting pronouncement 

Effective from April t, 2019, the company has adopted IND AS 116 'Leases'. The application of IND 
AS 116 did not have any significant impact in the financial results of the company. 

Government Grant is recognized only when there is a reasonable assurance that the entity will 
comply with the cond.irons attaching to them and the grants will be received. 

a) Subsidy related to assets is recognized as deferred income which is recognized in the statement 
of profit & loss on systematic basis over the useful life of the assets. 
Purchase of assets and receipts of related grants are separately disclosed in statement of cash flow. 

Inventories as at the dose of the year are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. 
However, materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down 
below cost if the finishbd goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above 
cost. The comparison 1of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by item basis. Cost of 
inventory comprises a\1 costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable 
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location 
and condition. 
2.19 Government Subsidy/ Grant 

2.17 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are ass ts that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

All other borrowini costs are ~ecognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which 
they are incurred. 

2.18 lnventories 
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As per 011r separate report of ev1m date attached 

DONY DOMTNIC 
!RECTOR 

ss/- 

at which discrete financial information is available. Business 
·2.22 Operating segments: 
An Operating Segme1y is the level 
segments are identified! considering: 
a) the nature of products and services 
b) the difiering risks aqd returns 
c) the internal organisahon and management structure, and 
d) the internal financial reporting systems. 
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Exceptional items and other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed 
separately. Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed 
under each reportable iegment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable assets and 

liabilities. 
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As per our separate report of eve11 date attaclied 

~~?' .: ~ 
21'·'i71:. •t ..... c I.I~- 

\{\ - ~ 

~ 
ss/- 

DIRECTOR 
DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) K.L.V.NARAYANAN (OlN:Ol273573 

Accumuldted Amortisation 
Computer 

Total 
Software 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 1,430.55 1,430.55 

Additions 520.42 520.42 

Disoosals/ Other adjus men ts 
Balance as at April 01,12023 1,950.97 1,950.97 

Additions 457.01 457.01 

Disposals/ Other adjustments - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,407.98 2,407.98 

Additions 196.29 ]96.29 

Disposals/ Other adjustments - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,6011.27 2,604.27 

I 

~el 13lock 
Computer 

Total 
Software 

Carrying amount as 01 April 01, 2023 747.15 747.15 
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 398.53 398.53 

Carrying amount as on March 31, 2025 202.24 202.24 

Gross carrying value 
Computer Total 
Software 

Balance as at April 1, 2b22 2,520.98 2,520.98 

Additions 177.14 177.14 
Disposals/ Other adiustments 
Balance as at April 01, 2023 2,698.12 2,698.12 

Additions I 108.39 108.39 

Disposals/ Other adjustments - - 
Balance as at March 311 2024 2,806.51 2,806.51 

Additions - - 
Disposals/ Other adjus men ts - - 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2,806.51 2,806.51 

Po rticulars 
As at.31st March As at srsr March As at Olst April 

2025 2024 2023 
Computer Software 202.24 398.53 747.15 

Total I 202.24 398.53 747.15 

(ln Rs.000') 

SCOQBEE DAY GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED. 
(Far111erh1 K11011.m as Victon1 Paper And Boards (h1dta) Limited) 

KIZHAKKAMBALAM. ERNAKULAM -683562 

NOTE 3B· lNTANGlBLE ASSETS 
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As per our sepnrate report of eve11 date attached 

!RECTOR 
OONY DOMINIC (DlN:03588411) 

MANAGING omECTOR 
K.l...V.NARAYANAN (DlN:01273573) 

6.1. Other advances +r professional fees paid to M/s Vivro Financial Services Private Limited in connection with 
proposed 

As ot March As at March As at April 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 

~ 
Other non-current assets 
Unsecured and considered Food unless otherwise stated : 

Capital Advances 766.21 755.57 

Security deposits 2,812.02 2,774.31 1,567.30 

Other Advances (Refer Note No. 6.1) 400.00 
3,212.02 3,540.52 2,322.87 

Deferred Tax Assets 442.37 

442.37 
Deferred Tax Asset on 
Provision for employee benefits 

As al April 
Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

As at March As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) 

~ 
Deferred Tax Assets 

4.1 Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months represents restricted bank balances of Rs. 
37,67,122.00 (Previous Year: Rs. 34,97,493.00). The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances held as margin 
money deposits against guar~ntees. 

3,969.13 3,497.49 3,767.U 
3,969.13 3,497.49 3,767.12 Bank deposits with remaininf maturity of more than twelve months 

As at April 
Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

As al March 
3lst,2024 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 

in OOO's) 

Note4 
Other Non-Current Financia Assets 
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART Of FINANCIAi. STATEMENTS 
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As per our separate report of even date attached 

DIRECTOR 
OONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
K.L.V.NARAYANAN (0~:01273573) 

- .. • ' 
As at March As at Marcil As at April 

Particulars 31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. Olst,2023 (Rs. in 
in OOO's) in OOO's) OOO's) 

Kitex Garments Limited 24,506.63 0.59 272.54 

Kitex Limited 7,084.33 - - 
Anna Aluminium Vessels 39.20 - - 
Anna Aluminium Company (I') Ltd 2,048.06 - - 
Sara Spices Private Limited 0.03 3,244.53 - 

Total 33,678.25 3,245.12 272.54 
. 

81 Trade Receivable includes the amounts receivable from related parties as given belowr- 

As at March As at March As at April 

31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. in OlSl,2023 (Rs. in 
in OOO"s) OOO"s) OOO's) 

Note7 
Inventories 
Raw Materials 24,178.08 19,947.87 28,999.73 

Work-in-progress 63,845.0J 30,958.97 29,827.27 

Finished Goods 4,412.43 2,897.94 5,980.94 

Stores and Spares 6,389.17 7,169.60 3,7n.11 

Packing Materia ls 5,859.35 2,827.83 5,757.49 
1,04,684.04 63,802.21 74,337.54 

7.1 Refer Note 2.18 For method of valuation of inventories 

As at March As at March As al April 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31St,2024 (Rs. Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) in OOO's) OOO's) 

~ 
T~ad1: te:'~ivables 
Unsecured, considered good 

-Disputed 
-Undisputed 77,465.86 5,699.18 12,737.60 

77,465.86 5,699.18 12,737.60 
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As per our separate report of eveJJ dn. attncueti 

l l 

ss/- 

MANAGING DffiECTOR . !RECTOR 
DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03SS8411) K.LV.NARAYANAN (Dl :01273573) 

. \ . 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months- More than 3 
months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total 

(i) Undisputed 
Trade 
receivables- 76,597.48 49.90 591.56 17.36 209.56 77,465.86 
considered 
good 

(ii) Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
which have - - - - - - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed 
Trade - - - - - - 
Receivables - 
credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - - - - - - 
considered 
good 
(v) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
which have - - - - - - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

(vi) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - - - - - - - 
credit impaired 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS UN DIA) l.rM!TEQ 

I NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

S 2 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31st March 2025 
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ONY DOMINlC (DIN:03588411) 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
K.L.V.NARA YANAN O)TN:01273573) 

ss/- 

' 
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars less than 6 6 months to More than 3 
Total 

months 1 year 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

vears 

{i) Undisputed 
Trade 
receivables - 5,465.72 0.69 2321 57.53 152.03 5,699.18 
considered 
good 

(ii) Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
which have - - - - . - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed I 
Trade 
Receivables - - I - - - - . 
credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - - . . - . 
considered 
good 

(v) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables • 
which have - . - - - - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

(vi) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables· - - - . - - 
credit impaired 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMlTED 

• NOTES FORMING PART Of FINANCJAl.STATEMENTS 
8 3 Trade Receivables Agein~ Schedule as on 31st March 2024 
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As per our separate report of even tlate attaclted 

DIRECTOR 
DQNY DQMil\'IC (DJN:03588411) 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
K.LV.NARAYANAN {DIN:01273573) 

. . 
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months to More than 3 Total 
months 1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
vears 

(i) Undisputed 
Trade 
recei vablcs · 12,527.92 19.03 38.62 48.79 103.24 12,737.60 
considered 
good 

(ii) Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
which have - - - - - - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
credit impaired - - - - - - 

I 

(iv) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - - - - - - 
considered 
good 

(v) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - 
which have . - . . . - 
significant 
increase in 
credit risk 

{vi) Disputed 
Trade 
Receivables - . . . . . . 
credit impaired 

. 

SCOOBEEDAY GARMENTS ONDIA) LIMITED 
NOTES EORMfNG PARTOFFJNANOALSTAIEMENTS 

-8 4 ~rade Receivables Agein~ Schedule as on 1st A[!ril 2023 
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As per our separate report of evw drlte attached 

MANAGING OlltECTOn 

Advances to Suppliers 2,896.98 4,093.03 2,527.68 
Prepaid expenses 20.96 20.96 
[lnlancc with Government Authorities 5,876.10 3,414.05 3,480.66 
Advances to Employees 2,704.14 2,615.44 2,603.27 
ROSCTL Refund due 2,606.87 184.55 707.86 
Other assets 416.45 1,687.52 2,839.01 

14,500.54 12,015.55 12,'179.44 

Note 12 
Other current assets 
Unsecured and considered good unless otherwise stated: 
Advances other than capital advances i- 

As at March As at March As al April 
31st, 2025 ms. 31st,2024 (Rs. in Olsl,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 

Note 1l 
Current Tax As~~!§ 
Income Tax Receivable 904.25 510.54 558.79 

904.25 510.54 558.79 

11.1. Refer Note No. 33.34 for details of taxation 
As at March As at March Asat April 

31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 
in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 

10.1. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less Utan twelve months represents restricted 
bank balances of Rs. 0 (Previ?us Year: Rs. 1,70,293.00). The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances held as 
margin money deposits against guarantees. 

5,932.80 170.29 
5,932.SO 170.29 

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 
I 

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months but 
less than twel ve months 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS (!NOIA) LIMITED 
NOTE · RMINGPARTOFFINANCI TATEMENTS 

As at March As at March l\J; at April 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 3lst,2024 (Rs. in Olsl,2023 (Its. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 
Note9 
!;:;;tsh and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 44.90 42.12 254.SO 
Balance with Banks:- 

ln current accounts 7,507.23 477.52 9,765.80 
ln Overdra rt accounts 157.17 61.40 825.03 

7,709.30 581.04 10,$45.63 

As at March As at March As at April 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) in OOO's) OOO's) 

Note 10 
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As per our separate report of C1•c11 date attached 

~~q.~r~ 
2 I (L. TH~ ,U1'·2J - 

' ' "' ~­ ~·~ 
ss/- 

MANAGING DLRECTOR 
K.L.V.NARAYANAN (DIN;01273573). 

13.3 The Board of Directors qf the Company, in its meeting held on March 27, 2025, has approved a Rights Issue of equity 
shares to the existing sharehblders for an aggregate amount not exceeding ~s.ooo Lakhs. C?mpany has filed Draft Letter 
of Offer (OLOF) with the s1curities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI) on May S, 2025, in accordance with the SEBI 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended. As per the DLOF filed, the proceeds from 
the Rights Issue are intended to be utilized for the adjustment of unsecured loans from promoters and group companies, 
and for general corporate purposes. 
The shareholders of the Cor1pany at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 17, 2025, had approved U1e 
increase in the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 13,50,00,000/- {l,35,00,000 shares) to Rs. 18,00,00,000/­ 
(1,80,00,000 shares) to facilitate the Rights Issue. 
Subsequently, the Draft Letter of Offer for the Rights Issue was approved by the Board of Directors on May 8, 2025, and 
has been filed with the Stock Exchange {BSE Limited) on the same date in accordance with the applicable SEBl (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements)_Regulations, 2018, as amended. 
The Rights Issue is subject to receipt of necessary approvals from SEBI and other statutory/regulatory authorities, as may 
be applicable. 

13.2 Rights .Preferences & ~estrictions attached to Equity shares. 
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 

entitled to one vote per sha1" 

Jn the case of liquidation of rhe Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of 

the Company, after distribul,on of all preferential claims as provided in the Companies Act, 2013. The distribution will be 

in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

1,35,00,000 (Mardi 31, 2024: 1,35,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,35,000.00 1,35,000.00 1,35,000.00 

13.1 Reconciliation of the n~mber of equity shares outstanding at 
the beginning and at the end of the year: 

Balance as at the beginning o~ the year 1,35,00,000 1,35,00,000 1,35,00,000 

Add: Shares Issued during tl]e year Nil Nil Nil 

Balance as at the end of the yi?ar 1,35,00,000 1,35,00,000 1,35,00,000 

1,35,000.00 l ,35,000.00 1,80,000.00 1,80,00,000 (Marcil 31, 2024: 1,35,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 

Issued, Subscribed and fuUy paid up 

As at April 
Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

OOO"s) in OOO's) in OOO's) 

Note 13 
Eguity Share Capital 
Authorised: 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS (LNDlAl LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART 01' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As at March As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 3lst,202q (Rs. 
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As per our separate report of eve11 dnte 11/tndted 

13.8 Details of shares held bv promoters 
As at March 31st, 2025 As at March 31st, 2024 

Promoter Nrune Number of o/o of total %of Change 
Number of % of total %of Change 

shares shares shares shares 
Bobv M Jacob 31,37,533 23.24 . 31,37,533 23.24 . 
Minny Bobv 18,49,021 13.70 . 18,49,021 13.70 . 

A~ al April Olst, 2023 
Promoter Name Number of % of total 

% of Change 
shares shares 

Boby M Jacob 31,37,533 23.24 . 
Minny lloby 18,49,021 13.70 . 

MANAGING DIRECTOR I . J ./A_ DlRECTOR ~f) 
K.L.V.NARA YANAN (DINf01273573) .. ~---J OONY DOMINI\.. \U!N:03588411) - . - ~ 

' 

13.5 There are no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash 
during U1e year or 5 years immediately preceding the reporting date. 

13.6 There are no shares bou!ht back during the year or 5 years immediately preceding the reporting 
date. 
13.7 There was no bonus iss~e of shares during the year or 5 years immediately preceding the 

reporting date. 

As at March As at March As at April 
31s~ 2025 (Rs. 31st,202q (Rs. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares 

Anna Aluminium Company r) Ltd 51,36,900 51,36,900 51,36,900 

%of Holding 38.05 38.05 38.05 

Boby M Jacob 31,37,533 31,37,533 31,37,533 

%of Holding 23.24 23.24 23.24 

MinnyBoby 18,49,021 18,49,021 18,49,021 

o/oof Holding 13.70 13.70 13.70 

SCOOBEEDAY GARMENTS (INDJAI l!MITED 
NOTES FO.RMJNG PAlffOFFlNANC!AL STATEMENTS 

. ~ I . 
13.4 Number of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company 
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As per 011r sepnrate report of evc11 date lltttrclred 

As at March As at Morch As at April 
31st 2025 (Rs. 3lst,2024 (Rs. in o·ist,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) ooo·sl 
Nole 15 
Non-Current llorrQwiags 
Secured 
il FrQm T!Jg E~ll~rnl Hank Li!i•it~d 
a) Term loan - 1 33,254.16 67,344.93 l, 11, 115.79 
b) Term loan - 2 23,169.2:> 
c) Working capital term loa1 6,916.07 15.416.80 12, 193.01 

' 
40,170.23 82,761.73 1,46,478.03 

14.l Retained earnings 
Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the company. 
14.2 Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return 
actually achieved, and any Changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience 
adjustments within the plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are adjusted to retained earnings. 

(l,40,219.41) (1,04,617.93) (85,689.56) 

263.19 93.04 

Total (A+ B) 

263.19 
263.19 

(170.15) 

263.19 

Items of Other comprehens\ve Income 
- Remeasurements of dcfin~d benefit plans 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Changes in Accounting policies or prior period errors (Refer Note 

No:- 33.29) 
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the >'ear 
Closing balance at the en of the year (B) 

(1,40,219.41) (1,04,881.12) (85, 782.60) 

(2,18,595.75) 
78,376.34 

(1,41,534.71) 
36,653.59 

(1,04,881.12) 
19,098.52 

{1,315.30) 

(2, 1$,595.75) (I,40,219.41) (1,04,881.12) 

31st, 2025 (Rs. 3151,2024 (Rs. in 
in OOO'sl ooo·s) 

As at April 
O:ts~2023 (Rs. in 

oeo'o 

As at March As at March 

Note 14 
Other c9.!!l!x 
Retained Earnings 

Ba lance at the beginning of the year 
Changes in Accounting policies or prior period errors (Refer Note 

No:- 33.29) 

Restated balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the rear 
Closing balance at the end of the year (A) 

I' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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< 
As per our separate report of cveu date attached 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
K.LV.NARA YANAN (DIN:01273573) 

Term loan is also secured by corporate guarantee given by Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited and Kitex 
Limited. 

15.4 Working capital Term loan from The Federal Bank Limited is 
1) Primarily secured by:· 
i) Hypothecation of all movable fixed assets created out of bank finance 
2) Collaterally secured by:- 
i) Equitable Mortgage of 52.87 acres of land at Elappully Village, l'alakkad owned by the company. 
ii) Equitable Mortgage of 32.73 acres of land along with the building and other accessories in Sy. Nos. 382/7, 383/l, 2,7/2, 
3/2, 

5,6/1, 7/1 at Nedungur Village at Karu.r, Tamil Nadu 

2) Collaterally secured by :- 
i) Equitable Mortgage of 52!87 acres of land at Elappully Village, Palakkad owned by the company and DSRA of Rs.2 
Crores to be built by way ~f cut back deposits from export bill realisation@!% of each bill, 
ii) Hypothecation of all current assets I movable fixed assets (other than those exclusively financed by other lenders) of 
the company 

15.2 Refer Note No.19 for c,lrrent Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings 

15.3 Term Loan from The Federal Bank Limited is 
1) Primarily secured by» I 
i) Equitable Mortgage of 32.V3 acres of land along with the building and other accessories in Sy. Nos. 382/7, 383/I, 2,7/2, 

3/2, 5,6/1, 7/1 at Nedungur Village at Karur, Tamil Nadu 

NOTEC f""MING PART or FINANCJA r C:TATEMENTS . 
15.1 .Terms of Repayment 

Noof 
Amount monthly Amount of Rate of Interest 

P arti cu] ars 
outstanding as instalments instalment (Rs, as at 31st March 
on 3I.03.202S 

remaining as in ·ooo) 2025 
IRs. In '000) 

I on 31.03.2025 

2 2314.81 
a) Term loan - 1 67,344.93 12 2946.12 10.90% 

12 2280.17 

c) Working capital term loan 15,416.79 21 734.13 
Repo Rate plus 

6.35% 

SCOOBEEOA Y GARMENTS (lNUIAl UMITED 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR Jj ... JI DmECTOR 
K.L.V.NAJ~A YANAN (Dlf)l:Ol273573) __,,,,{!)_.,,,....~~!::·~··.~. ::'.Jf;::;.ovONY DOMJN!C (OIN:03588411) 

I ~ ~~ - - -- 

33,834.14 

As at April 
Olst,2023 (f\s. in 

OOO's) 

As at Morch 
31.st,2024 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

Credit/tcharge Credit/tcha 
As at 31st 

As atlst 
) in the rge) in 

March, Particulars Statement of Other 
April, 2024. 

Profit and Comprehcn 
2025 

Loss sive 
Deferred tax liabilities 

Property, plant and 33,834.14 (1,079.02) . 34,913.16 

equipment and Intangible 
assets 
Total . 

33,834.14. (l,079.02) 34,913.16 . 
Deferred tax assets 
Provision for em ployce 618.01 426.41 57.22 1,101.64 
benefits 
Brought forward 30,750.99 (7,430.65) . 23,320.34 
Depreciation Loss 
Other temporary differences . 19.54 . 19.54 
Total 31,369:00 (6,984.70) 57.22 24,441.52 
Deferred Tax Liability !N(lll 2,465.14 .. (8,063.72) 57.22 10,471.64 

34,913.16 

s 

Asal March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 

in ooo·s) 

Note 17 
Deferred Tnx tiabilities (net) 

Deferred Tax Liability on 
Property, Plant and equiplent and intangible assets 
Deferred Tax Asset on 
Provision for employee benefits 1, 101.64 618.01 
Brought forward Depreciation Loss 23,320.34 30,750.99 
Other temporary difforencef 1_9_.54 _ 
Deferred Tax Liability (Nell 10,471.64 2,465.14 

17.1 Movement In Dcfeue! Tax Assets And Liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2025 

SCOOREEOAY GARMENTS ONDIA) blMITEO 
NOTES FORi\1ING P Alff OF FIN AN Cf AL ST A TEMENTS 

F-65



sss- 

As per our separate report of et•c11 dntc nltnclted 

- ,___,,mECTOR 
OONY DOMINIC (OIN:0358841l) 

4,175.56 

4,555.16 
379.60 

18.1. Movement in Deferr d Income 
Opening Balance 
Add:- Received during the year 
Less i- Charged to statement of Profit and Joss during the )•ear 
Closing Balance 

3,795.96 
3,795.96 

Note 18 
Otlter Non-Current Liabilijies 
Deferred Income (Refer Note. 24 .I) 

As at April 
Olst,2023 Uts. in 

OOO's) 

As at March 
31st,2024 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 

i11 OOO's) 

arch, 2024 

SCOOJJEEDAY GARMENTS (INDIA) l lMlTEQ 
NTS NOTIS l'ORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEME 

17.2 Movement In Deferrer Tax Assets And Liabilities during the year ended 31st M 

Cred it/(charge 
Credit/(cha 
rge) in 

) in the As at 31st 
Particulars As al 1st Statement of 

Other March, 
April, 2023 

Profit and 
Comprehen 2()24 
sive 

Loss 
Income 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and - (33,834.14) - 33,834.14 
equipment and lntanglble 
assets 
Total - (33,834.14) . 33,834.14 

Deferred tax assets 
Provision for employee 442.37 264.16 (88.52) 618.01 
benefits 
Brought forward . 30,750.99 . 30,750.99 
Depreciation Loss 
Other temporary differences - . - - 
Total 442.37 31,015.15 (88.52) 31,369.00 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (442.37) (2,818.99) (88.52) 2,465.14 
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As per our sepnrate report of cve11 dnte attached 

3) Secured by Corporate Cuaranteei- 
i) Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 
ii) Kitex Limited 

19.2 Short term facilities frJ TI1e Federal Bank Limited is secured by Equitable Mortgage of 32.73 acres of land along 
wilh the building and otherjaccessories in Sy. Nos. 382{7, 383/1, 2,7/}., 3/2, 5,6/1, 7/1 at Nedungur Village at Karur, Tamil 
Nadu. 

2) Collaterally secured by- 
i) Equitable Mortgage of 52.r· 7 acres of land at Elappully Village, Palakkad owned by the company on pari passu basis 
with Federal Bank Ltd 
ii) Equitable Mortgage of 32-73 acres of land along with the building and other accessories in Sy. Nos. 382{7, 383/1, 2,7/2, 
3/2, 5,6/1, 7/1 at Nedungur illage at Karur, Tamil Nadu on pari passu basis with Federal Bank Ltd. 

19.1 Short term facilities fror ·rhe Axis Bank Limited ls r- 
1) Primarily seemed by:- 
i) Hypothecation of current assets both present and future under pari pasu basis with Tile Federal Bank Limited. 

5,40,189.97 4,62,398.81 4,41,S24.10 

2,84,479.00 
1,43,369.20 

1,373.02 

14,215.96 

1,830.77 
17,130.86 

As at April 
Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

OOO's) 

2,86, 189.71 
93,165.30 

2,11,742.31 
2, 10,560.87 

15,050.00 
1,392.34 

21,284.16 

3,457.32 
44,542.00 
6,011.82 

8,500.72 

26,094.17 
12,180.15 
7,752.43 

34,090.77 

Note 19 
Current Borrowings 

Current Maturities of long term borrowings - Secured 
From The Federeal Bank Limited> 

Term loan ~ 1 
Term loan-2 
Working capital term loan 

From 111e Axis Bank Limite~ 
Term loan 

Loans repayable on deman~ from Banks - Seemed 
From The Federeal Bank Limited» 

USD Packing Credit 
Packing Credit 
Foreign Bill Discounted 

From The Axis Bank Limited» 
Foreign Bills Purchaj 
Packing Credit 
Buyers Credit 

Loan Prom Related Parties - Unsecured 
Inter Corporate Loan from Anna Alu mini um Company Private 
Limited (Refer Note 33.14) 
Inter Corporate Loan from flex limited (Refer Note 33.14) 

As at March 
3lst,2024 ms. in 

OOO'sl 

As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 

in OOO's) 

SCOOBEEDA Y GARMENTS CINPIAl LIMITED 
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ss/- 

MANAGING DIRECTOR J 
KL.V.NARAYANAN (OIN:01273573) 

(b) The amount of interest prid by the buyer under MSMEO Act, 2006 
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year; 
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period or delay in 
making payment (which ha~ been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
MSMED Act, 2006); I 
(d) The amount of interest alcrued and remaining unpaid at the end 
of accounting year; and 
(e) The amount of further i1terest remaining due and payable even in 
the succeeding year, until srch date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowancc as a deductiblf' expenditure under section 23 of MSMED 
Act 2006. 

(a) 111e principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 
separately) remaining unpaid to ~ny supplier as at the end of each 
accounting year: 

As al March As at March As at April 
31sl, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 cns. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 

609.48 12.16 35.22 

20.1 111e amount due lo Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Oe~elopmc'.1l Act, 2006" haf been ~etermi11ed to the exten.t such parties have be~n identified on the basis of information 
available with the Company'. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under: 

25,585.52 16,107.51 23,597.79 

25,550.30 16,095.35 22,988.31 

35.22 12.16 609.48 

As at April 
01st,2023 (lls. in 

OOO's) 

SCOOBEEDAY GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITF.D 
NOTES FORMING PAllT OF FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As at March As at March 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31sl,2024 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) 
Note 20 
Trade Payables 

Total outstanding dues of ~icro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of c~itors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 
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DffiECTOR 
DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
K.L.V.NARAYANAN (DTN:01273573) 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 1 More than3 

1-2 years 2-3 years Total 
year vears 

(i) Micro and Small Enterprjs 3.75 . 8.41 12.16 
(ii) Others I 15,684.73 151.44 259.18 . 16,095.35 
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro 
and Small Enterprises . 
(iv) Disputed dues· Others I . 
(v) Unbilled dues . 

20.4 Trade Payable ageing ~chedule as on 31st March 2()24 

' 

I 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 
1-2 years 2-3 years Total year years 

(i) Micro and Small Enterpru 598.51 . 7.98 2.99 609.48 
(ii) Others 22,665.54 35.84 59.37 227.56 22,988.31 
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro 

' and Small Enterprises . . . . . . 
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others . . . . . 
(v) Unbilled Dues . . . . . 

(Rs. in 000-s) 20.3 Trade Payable Ageing Schedule as on 31st March 2025 

20.2,Trade Payable in udc~ the o owmg amounts payable to related parties 

As at March As at March As at April 
Particulars 

I 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 3lst,2024 (Rs. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OO<l"s) OOO's) OOO's) 
Kitex Limited . 93,247.0J l,·13,420.65 
Anna Aluminium Company (P) Ltd . 2,86,230.59 2,$4,529.86 

Sara Spices Private Limited 896.77 

KL V Narayan (Managing Director) 251.95 100.00 

A lphonsa Jose (Company S'fretary) 74.00 74.00 

Zaphia Fareed (CFO) 124.95 79.40 
' 

Total I 450.90 3,79,731.00 4,28,$47.28 

SCOOBEEDAY GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED 
NOTRS FORMING PART OF PINA 1CIALSTATEMENTS 
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As per our separate report of <'Ven dntc attached 

DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) 
DmECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR J .,, 

l<.L.V.NARAYANAN (0 :01273573) 

22.1 For movement in provision, Refer Note No. 16.1 
4.99 94.51 212.76 
4.99 94.51 212.76 

Provisions - Curtent 
Provision for Employee Benefits 
Provision For Gratuity 

Note 22 

As at March As at March As at April 
31SI, 2025 (Rs. 3Ist,2024 (Rs. in Olst,2023 Ols. in 

in OOO's) OOO's) OOO's) 
Nole 21 
Other current liabilities 
Statutory Dues 3,426.88 2,155.16 2,298.80 
Advance From Customers 76.09 88.75 548.75 
Deferred Income (Refer Note 24.1) 379.60 

3,882.57 2,243.91 2,847.55 
2'.I .1 For movement in deferred income Refer Note lS.1 

As at March As at March As at April 
31st, 2025 (Rs. 31st,2024 (Rs. in Olst,2023 (Rs. in 

in OOO's) OOO"s) OOO's) 

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 

1-2 years 2-3 years Total year years 
-i 

(i) Micro and Small Enterprii 26.81 - . 8.41 35.22 
(ii) Others 2s,2n.6s 49.97 222.65 - 25,550.30 
(iii) Disputed Dues - Micro 
and Small Enterprises - 
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - 
(v) Unbilled dues - 

20.5.Trade Payable ageing Schedule as on 01st April 2023 

SCOOBEEDAX GARMl!NTS ONOlA) UMrTED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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As per our separate report of cnietr date attached 

MANAGING DIRECTOR DfRECTOR 
OONY DOMfNIC (DTN:03588411) K.L.V.NARAYANAN <qIN:Ol273573) 

2,241.ll 6,041.59 

1,119.98 
1,069.62 
1,352.60 
2,857.50 

379.60 

483.32 
299.52 
338.29 

208.25 
174.02 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 

(Rs. in OOO's) 
Note 24 
Other inco1ne 
Interest Income 

From Banks 
From Others 

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Sundry Balances no tore payable written back 
Gain from exchange rate fluctuation 
Rent Received 
Deferred Income (Rier note 24.1) 

23.3 Refer Note No 2f3 for accounting policy on Revenue Recognition. 
23.4 Refer Note No 3r.5 for related party transactions 

23.2 'Details of Other Operating Revenue 
Job Work Charges Received 
Duty Drawback 
ROSCTL Refund 

23.1 Details of Sale of Products 
Garments 
Aluminium Roofing Sheets 

4,54,256.53 3,97,002.92 
10,771.84 10,669.07 

4,65,028.37 4,07,671.99 

For the Year Ended For Ille Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) [Rs. in OOO's) 

4,36,442.12 3,70,965.10 
17,814.41 26,037.81 

4,54,256.53 3,97,002.91 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) (Rs. in OOO's) 

3,569.01 5,118.17 
2,747.48 1,466.36 
4.455.35 4,084.54 

10,771.84 10,669.07 

Note 23 
Revenue from operations 
Sale of products (Reff' Note 23.1) 
Other Operating Rev enue (Refer Note 23.2) 

March 31st, 2024 
(Rs. in OOO's) 

March 31st, 2025 
(Rs. in OOO's) 

Eor the Year Ended For U1e Year Ended 

SCOOBEEOA Y GARMENTS (INDIA) llMlTEO . 
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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MANAGING DffiECTOR DinECTOR 
DONY DOM!NlC (DIN:03588411) K.L.V.NARA YANAN (OIN:01273573) 

Opening Inventory 
-Work-in-Progrc>si 30,958.97 29,827.27 
-Finished Goods 2,897.94 5,980.94 

33,856.91 35,808.21 
Closing Inventory I 

-Work-in-Progrcs 63,845.01 30,958.97 
-Finished Goods 4,412.43 2,897.94 

68,257.44 33,856.91 
(34,400.53) 1,951.30 

Note26 
Changes in irwentories of finished goods and work-in-~ 

March 31st, 2024 
(Rs. in OOO's) 

March 31st, 2025 
(Rs. in OOO's) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

25.1 Refer Note No 33.5 for related party transactions 

Less: Closing Inventory 
Cost of raw materials consumed 

19,947.87 28,999.73 
2,41,679.42 1,45,376.65 
2,61,627.29 1,74,376.38 

24,178.08 19,947.87 
2,37,449.21 1,54,428.51 

Note 25 
Cost of Materials C' nsumed 
Opening Inventory 
Add: Purchases 

for the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

Per the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

24.1 During the financial year 2024·25, the Company received a government grant of ~45.55 lakhs wider the 
Amended Technolo~( Upgradation Fund Scheme (ATUFS) towards machinery acquired in lhe financial year 
2021-22. In accordance with lnd AS 20 - 'Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government 
Assistance', the grant has been recognised as deferred income and is being amortised to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss over the remaining useful life of the related asset. Refer Note No. 2.19 for accounting policy of 
Government Subsid Y( Grant 
24.2 Refer Note No 2!3 for accounting policy on Revenue Recognition. 
24.3 Refer Note No 33.5 for related party transactions 

SCOOBEEDAY GARMENTS (INDlA) LIMITED 
NOTES FORMJNC PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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As per our separate repo t of l"Ve11 date nttnched 

MANAGING DIRECTOR ../' 
K.l.V.NARAYANAN (DlN:01273573) 

24,703.85 31,233.18 

24,170.82 
533.03 

31,036.89 
196.29 

Note 29 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31sl, 2025 March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) (Rs. in OOO's) 

28.1 Refer Note No 3S.5 for transactions with related parties 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) (Rs. in OOO's) 
Note 28 
Fini!ns;~ '2~hi 
Interest Expenses 

On Term Loan 11,377.14 16,395.46 
On Cash Credit 81.84 96.12 
On Others 14,980.13 12,124.69 

Other Borrowing Costs 
26,439.11 28,616.27 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 

(Rs. in OOO's) 
Note 27 
Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, Wages, Bon~s etc 1,03,539.36 83,523.53 
I 

Contribution to Provident Funds and other funds S,719.71 8,016.53 
Staff Welfare Expenses 17,484.91 16,415.17 
Provision for Gratuity __;1.:.:,6:..:.9:..:.4·:::2.:.6 _:.1 •:..:.04:..:.9:..:.5.:.8::. 

I ~~~=1=·=3~=43~s=.2=4~~~~1=,0=9=,0=0=4=.s=1= 
27.l. Refer Nole No 2.13 for accounting policy on Employee Benefits Expense 
27.2 Refer Note No 3¥.5 for related party transactions 

SCOOUEEDAY GARMENTS CINDIA) LTMITED 
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KL.V.NARAYANAN (OIN:01273573) 
DIRECTOR 
OONY DOMINIC (OIN:03588411) 

MANAGING DffiECTOR 

30.2 Refer Note No 3~.5 for transactions with related parties 

' - 
For the Year Ended for the Year Ended 

Particulars March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 
(Rs. in OOO's) (Rs. in OOO's) 

a) Statutory Audit 400.00 340.00 
b) Tax Audit 100.00 - 
c) Others - - 

i) Reirnbu rsemerli of expenses 20.00 - 
Total 520.00 340.00 

301 Details of ea~ments to the auditor. 

16,651.73 2,557.78 
16,796.91 12,441.99 
16,024.55 15,612.05 
2,521.79 2,305.11 
3,279.16 2,147.10 

62.80 90.25 
4,690.33 2,685.10 

2,260.37 2,546.41 
604.84 48.69 
93.84 137.97 

285.77 2,047.57 
1,778.28 1,344.62 

302.15 186.13 
824.82 357.97 
955.68 1,242.65 

1,305.'14 1,117.89 
520.00 340.00 

1,448.54 1,748.93 
813.33 553.32 

21.17 57.49 
66.55 

766.21 49.22 
475.00 

1,349.28 1,642.54 
73,423.24 51,735.78 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 

(Rs. in OOO's) 
Note 30 
Other expenses 
Processing Charges 
Packing Materials CorlSumed 
Power and Fuel 
Freight Charges 
Stores and Spares Consumed 
Rent 
Rates and Taxes 
Repairs and Maintenf nee :­ 

Plant and Machinery 
Building 
Vehicle 
Others 

Travelling and Conveyance 
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 
Postage and Telephone 
Printing and Station ry 
Insurance 
Payments to the auditor (Refer Note No. 30.1) 
Professional Charges 
Bank charges 
loss on sale of ROSqrL License 
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and equipment 
l rrecoverable Advanbes written off 
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (Refer Note No 33.25) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Total 

SCOOBEEOA Y GARMENTS (INDJA) LIMITED 
NOTES FORMfNG PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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As per our separate report of even date attached 

DrRECTOR 
DONYDOMI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR \/' 
K.l.V.NARAYANAN (DrN:01273573) 

32.1 Refer Note No 2i1 l for accounting policy on Earnings Per Share 

l,35,00,000 
2.73 

1,35,00,000 
1.41 

Number of Equity Shares 
Basic and diluted earbings per share 

36,653.59 ]9,098.52 Profit for the year 

for the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2025 March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) (Rs. in OOO's) 
Note 32 
Earnin1:511.ll.£!)uily share (basic and diluted) 

31.l During U1e year nded March 31st, 2025, the Company has sold a portion of its land measuring l .1604 
hectares for a considication of Rs. 220.80 Lakhs, Profit on sale of land amounting to Rs. 216.59 Lakhs is shown 
as an exceptional item in the financial statements. 

21,659.43 
21,659.43 

Note 31 
Exceptional Items 
Profit on Sale of Land 

For the Year Ended 
March 31st, 2024 

(Rs. in OOO's) 

For the Year Ended 
March131st, 2025 

(Rs. in OOO"s) 

SCOOBEl!DA Y GARMENTS (!NOIA) LIMITED 
NOTES l'ORMING PART OP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ! 
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As per our seµnrnte report of eveJ1 date attached 

DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) 

DIRECTOR MANAGING DutECTOR 

Rs. in OOO's 

I Fair Value 
Particulars Refer Note As at Asat 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 
Non current: 

i. Other Financial Assjts 4 3,767.12 3,497.49 
Current: 

i. Trade receivables 8 77,465.86 5,699.18 
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,709.30 581.04 

iii. Bank balance other than (ii) above 10 . 170.29 
88,942.28 9,948.00 

Financial Liab ilifies measured at amortised cost 
Non Current: 

i. Borrowings 15 40,170.23 82,761.73 
Current: 
i. Borrowings 19 5,40,189.97 4,41,824.10 
ii.Trade payables 20 23,597.79 16,l07.51 

6,03,957.99 5,40,693.34 

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 durinz the vear. 
Category wise classification of financial instruments is as follows: 

In the opinion of the management, the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recognisedin the financial statements are a resonable approximation of their fair values. Hence.no separate 
disclosures of fair value has been made. 

33.1.1 Fair Value Measurement 
Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following 
three levels: 
Level 1: Quoted prices (ynadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Inputs other thf. quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Liability, 
either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: Inputs for the 1 assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

33.. Additional Informa · on 

33'.1 Financial Instruments 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR DffiECTOR 
K.l.V.NARAYANAN (DIN:01273573) 

Undiscounted amount 
Pjticulars Payable within 1 Total 

year More than l year 

As at 31st March, 2025 
Non-derivative liabilities 
Borrowings 5,40,189.97 40,170.23 5,80,360.20 
Trade payables 23,597.79 - 23,597.79 
As at 31st March, 2024 
Non-derivative liabil.itibs 
Borrowings 4,41,824.10 82,761.73 5,24,585.83 
Trade payables 16,107.51 - 16,107.51 

A~ at 1st April, 2023 
Non-derivative liabilities 
Borrowings 4,62,398.81 1,46,478.03 6,08,876.84 
Trade payables I 25,585.52 - 25,585.52 

Rs. in OOO's 

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually 
agreed undiscounted ca h flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date:- 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who regulru·ly 
monitors the roll.ing forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. 
111e company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring the actual cash flows, and by matching the 
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

Accordingly, the Company' s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are 
managed within acceptable risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with 
applicable regulation. 

1) Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities, The Company's approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to 
meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers 
both normal and stressed conditions. 

33.1.2 Fi~anc:ial Risk Management - Objectives and Policies 
The Company has a well- managed risk management framework, anchored to policies and procedures and 
internal financial contrpls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key 
financial risks (such as IJ.iquidity risk, market risk and credit risk) that may arise as a consequence of its 
business operations as well as its investing and financing activities. 
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3) Credit Risk 
Management of Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of{inancial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its 
contractual obligations. I 

J Liabilities as al 
Gurrency As at March 31, As at March 31, 

As at April 1, 2023 
2025 2024 

USD 3,457.32 1,392.34 1,526.91 

I Assets as at 
lur:rency As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2023 

2025 2024 
USD 40,782.76 . 9,167.10 

The carrying amounts or the company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary 
liabilities at the end of ~e reporting period are as follows: 

b)Foreign Currency risk. 
The Company's foreign currency transactions (mainly US Dollar) are subject to the risk of exchange rate 
fluctuations. Carrying apiolll\ts of Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, are also 
subject to reinstatement' at the year end. Exchange rate exposures are managed by company with approved 
policy parameters by co stant monitoring. 

a) lnterest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the fisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to changes in interest rates primarily 
relates to the companiis outstanding floating rate debt and investments in fixed deposits. A portion of 
company's working cap,ital debt is denominated in foreign currency. These credit facilities are subject to 
periodic interest rate rerts. Based on the past experience the variability of interest on fixed deposits and 
working capital loan are not expected to be material. Further there are only short term foreign currency debt 
in the form of packing credit which are subject lo minimal changes in interest rate during it's term. 

' 2) .Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk t1jat the fair value of future cash nows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market <fnditions. Market risk mainly comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. 
Financial Instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings, trade payables and trade receivables. 
The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates and interest rates. 
There has been no significant changes to the Company's exposure to market risks or the manner in which 
these risks are being managed and measured. 
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NIL 
NTL 

NIL 

NIL 
NIL 

NIL 

Rs. in OOO's 
2024-25 2023-24 

NlL NIL 

NIL NJL 
NIL NTL 

ss/- 

MANAGING DIRECTOR _/ 

m Contingent Liabilitie 

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 
(b) Bank Guarantees in favour of Customs 
(c) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable 
(Il) Commitments 
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account not provided for 
(b) Uncalled liability on hares and other investments partly paid 

(c) Other commitments 

111e Company's financitl strategy aims to support its strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its 
businesses for growth 1d creation of sustainable stakeholder value. 

33.2. As at the year end ?f March 31st, 2025, the Company has not proposed or implemented any composite 
scheme of arrangement pnder Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

33.3 Contingent Liabili~ies, Commitments and Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for in the 
accounts) 

33.1.3 Capital Management 
For the purpose of the ~ompany's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity 
reserves attributable to I the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company 
when managing capital Is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and lo maintain an optimal 
capital structure so as to maxirnize shareholder value. As at 31st March, 2025, the Company has only one 
class of equity shares. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

Regarding trade receivables and other financial assets (both current and non-current), based on the 
impairment assessment, there were no indications as at the year end, that defaults in payment obligations 
will occur. 

Ttade receivables 
Historically, trade receivables show a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts and collections depict 
low credit risk. Therefole, the Company does not expect any material risk on account of non- performance 
by any of the Company's counterparties. 
All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis. 
Other financial assets 
The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents in term deposits with banks. 
For bank balances, the qompany attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and 
financial institutions.None of the Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past 
due or impaired. 
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I Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2025 2024 

Reconciliation of Present value of oblinations :- 
Present value of obligarion at lhe beainninz of the year 2,455.55 1,757.67 
Current Service cost 1,525.07 9?2.51 
Interest cost 169.19 127.08 
Actuarial gain I (loss) 227.37 (351.71) 
Benefits paid . . 
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 4,377.]8 2,'!155.55 

B. Movements in Present Value of Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Gratuitv (Un - funded) 
Non-current and current 1·alue of Net Liability As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2025 2024 
Non-current 4,164.42 2,361.04 
Current 212.76 94.51 
Total value of Net Liabilitv 4,377.18 2,455.55 

I (Rs. in OOO's) 

I Gratuity (Un - funded) 
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2025 2024 
Present value of oblieatfon at the end of the vear 4,377.18 2,455.55 
Fair value of plan assetsat the end of lhe year NA NA 
Net present value of obygation recognised as liability in the Balance 

4,377.18 2,455.55 Sheet 

were: 

01) Defined Benefit Plans 

A. Balance Sheet 
The assets, liabilities an surplus/(deiicit) position of the defined benefit plans at the Balance Sheet date 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Employers contribution to Provident Fund 8,719.71 8,016.53 
Employers contribution Ito Employee's State Insurance Corporation 2,172.02 1,901.06 

(Rs. in OOO"s) 

During the year the following amounts have been recognised in the statement of profit and loss on account 
of defined contribution f Jans: 

33.4 Disclosures requiy~d under Ind AS 19 - "Employee Benefits" 

(I) Defined Contributio Plans 

F-80



2 

ss/· 

As per 011r separate report of eveu date attacluu! 

DffiECTOR ~'P 
DONY DOMINIC (DIN:03588411) 

MANAGING DUlECTOR ./ Ai 
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Mortality: Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 
Disability: I 5% of mortality rate rates 

Graded rates from Age 35 - 6%, From Age 40- 4%, 

Withdrnwal: From Age 45 - 2%, 
From Age 50 - 1 % .. 

. 

Attrition Rate 
Discount Rate (per annum) 
Salary escalation rate 
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 

Demographic AssumpJons 

2024-25 2023-24 
Indian Assured Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality 

(2012-141 (2012-141 
Ultimate Table Ultimate Table 

10% 10% 
6.89% 7.23% 

5% 5% 
NA NA 

Mortality Table 

C. Assumptions 

Actuarial Assumptions 

(351.71) 227.37 Total Actuarial (Gain)/loss included in OCI 

(445.72) 52.45 

94.01 174.92 

l,049.59 
(351.71) 

1,694.26 
227.37 

The charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss· comprises: 
Expenses recognized in r,1e Statement of Profit and Loss 
Expenses recognized in rhe Statement of OQ 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans:- 
Actuarial (Gain)/Los.ses iue to Demographic Assumption changes in 
Defined Benefits Obliga ions 
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses ue to Financial Assumption changes in 
Defined Benefits Obliga ions 

Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experience on Defined Benefits 
Obligations 
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E. Maturity profile of d efined benefit obligation: 

Rs '000 

I Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2025 2024 

Proiected Benefit Oblfa.a1tion 4,377.18 2,455.55 
Accumulated Benefits Obligation 2,477.83 1,588.01 

As at 31st March, 2025 

FIVE YEAR PAYOUTS Discounted Undiscounted 
values I Present values 

. value I Actual value 
J. Year (l) 239.03 245.78 
2. Year (II) 176.01 197.77 
3. Year (III) 122.20 146.77 
4. Year (JV) 78.81 101.17 
5. Year (V) 90.47 122.31 
6. Next 5 year pay-outs (6-10 years) 506.34 813.04 
7. Pav-outs Above Ten Years 3,164.33 10,249.50 
8. Vested benefit Obligation as on Para 137 (b) 31-03-2025 1,839.62 - 
MANAGING DmECTO~ ./ --1- DmECTOn ' .:,, - tJ ,,1 n - ,,,..,.. 
K.L. V.NARAYANAN (DTN:01273573) - DON:Y DOMINIC (OIN:035884U) 

~ <, 

ii) Actuary has used Projected Unit Credit method. If an employee's service in later years will lead to a 
materially higher level ?f benefit than in earlier years, these benefits are attributed on a straight-Line basis. 
TI1e limitations are th,t in assessing the change other parameters are kept constant. As some of the 
assumptions may be correlated, it is unlikely that changes in assumptions will occur in isolation of one 
another. 
iii) There is no change {tom the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of 
above analysis, except l~at the base rates have changed 

Disclosures of Stress Testing as on valuation date 
(Liability) Recognised in Balance Sheet-43,77,179 

% increase in Increase or 
Scenarios Liability (in Rs.) decrease in 080 080 (in Rs.) 

1. DISCOUNTRATE+l()O basis points -9.81% 39,47,872 -4,29,307 
2. DISCOUNT RA TE -100 basis points 11.82% 48,94,642 5,17,462 
3. SA LARY GROWTH +~00 basis points 11.59% 48,84,549 5,07,370 
4. SALARY GROWTH -iOO basis points -9.74% 39,50,734 -4,26,445 
5. A TI"IUTION RA. TE+ 100 basis points 0.04% 43,79,066 1,886 
6. A TTRlTION RA TE-100 basis points -0.29% 43,64,319 -12,860 
7. MORTALITY RATE 1p% UP 0.03% 43,78,650 1,471 
8. EFFECT OF NO CEILING 0.00% 38,96,125 0 

D. Sensitivity Analysis 

i):1ow the DBO would ~ave been affected by 100 basis points changes in the actuarial assumptions namely 
discount rates, salary growth. Attrition & Mortality is shown below 
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Particulars 2024.-25 2023-24 
KLV Narayan (Managir\g Director) 27.46 15.40 
Alnhonsa Jose (Company Secretary) 29.66 16.64 
Total l 57.l2 32.04 

Rs. in OOO's (i} Post-employment benefits payable 

Outstanding Balance wiith Key Management Personnel 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 

KL V Narayan (Managing Director) 1,457.00 1,305.05 
Alphonsa Jose (Company Secretary) 955.00 844.26 
Zaphia Fareed (CFO) 1,686.08 1,644.07 
Total 4,098.08 3,793.38 

Rs. in OOO's (i) Short-term employee benefits 

{Bl Transactions with related parties during the year and Balance outstanding as on 31st March 2025. 

(B) (l) Transactions an~ outstanding balances with Key Management Personnel 
Transactions with Key Management Personnel 

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party 

KLV Narayan {Managing Director) 
1) Key Management Perjonnel Zaphia Pareed (Chief Financial Officer) 

Alphonsa Jose (Company Secretary) 
2) Individuals exercisinu significant influence Boby M Jacob 
3) Entitv exercising siim1ficant influence Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 

4) Entities in which '"t'" their 

Kitex Garments Limited 
Sara Spices Private Limited 

relative have signific · t influence Anna Aluminium Vessels 
Kitex Limited 

1 I. Dony Dominic (Non-executive Director) 
2. Jeff Jacob (Non-executive Director) 

5) Non-Executive Directrrs 
3. SatheeshKumar Gopakumar {Independent 

Director) 
4. Elsamma Mathew Titus (Independent Director) 
5. Augustine Anthony (Independent Director) 

(A) Names of Related Parties and nature of relationship: 

33.5 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES . . 
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Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited - 2,86,230.59 
Total - 2,86,230.59 

Rs. in OOO's (ii) Trade Payables 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 2,048.06 - 
Total 2,048.06 - 

Rs. in OOO's 
Outstanding balances wiU1 entity exercising significant influence 
(i) Trade Receivables 

(iv) Finance cost I Rs. in OOO's 
Particulars 2024-25 202.3-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 7,264.55 8,517.00 
Total 7,264.55 8,517.00 

Particulars I 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 27.33 18.03 
Total 27.33 18.03 

Rs. i.n OOO's (iii) Purchase of Goods 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 2,472.93 516.10 
Total 2,472.93 516.10 

Rs. in OOO's (ii) Sales and Income 

-. 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited (74,447.40) 1,710.71 
Total (74,447.40) 1,710.71 

Rs in OOO's (i) Inter Corporate Loan Received/ (Repaid) (Net) 
Transactions with enti 

(B) (2) Transactions and. outstanding balances with entity exercising significant influence 

(ii) Trad~ Payables Rs. in OOO's 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
KL V Narayan (Managing Director) 251.95 100.00 
Alphonso Jose (Company Secretary) 74.00 74.00 
Zaphia Fareed (CFO) 124.95 79.40 
Total 450.90 253.40 
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Particulars I 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited I 7,561.11 2,409.03 
Total 7,561.11 2,409.03 

fl .~.J • < '.d • 
~ MANAGING DlRECTO~ / A ,,JI~ 

OffiECTOR ~ Jt ~"-1 

I<.L.V.NARAYANAN (Olr01273573) - OONY OOMlNIC (OTN:03588411) 

Rs. in OOO's (v) Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 20,271.12 l, 12,676.65 
Kitex Garments Limited 1,57,472.35 - 
Sara Spices Private Limited 876.77 1,170.20 
Total 1,78,620.24 1,13,846.85 

I 

Rs. in OOO's (iv) Purchase of Goods 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 1,463.73 1,814.86 
Sara Spices Private Ll mited 13.25 - 
Total 1,476.98 l,814.86 

Rs. in OOO's (iii) Sale of Property, P~nnt and equipment 

·; 

Particulars 2024·25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 1,17,395.57 (50,203.90) 
Total 4,15,611.14 11, 16,J 60.35 

(ii) Sales and Income Rs. in OOO's 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 98,570.03 2,92,045.48 
Kitex Garments Limited 2,23,141.22 ·151.so 
Anna Aluminium Vessels 35.00 . 

Sara Spices Private Limited . 4,554.07 
Total 3,21,746.25 2,96, 781.05 

(i) Inter Corporate Loan Received/ (Repaid) (Net) 
Rs. in OOO's 

Transactions with entities in which director or their relative has significant influence 

(13) (3) Transactions and outstanding balances with entities in which director or their relatives have 
significant influence I 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Anna Aluminium Company Private Limited 2, 11,742.31 2,86,189.71 
Total 2,11,742.31 2,86,189.71 

Rs. in OOO's (iii) Integcorporate Loan Balance 
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(C) All Re.lated Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and on 
arm's length basis. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and gross amounts are settled in 
cash 
(0) No amounts have bten provided/written off as doubtfu.l debts or advances written back in respect of 

payables due from cir to any of the above related parties 

' I 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 1 2, 10,560.87 93,165.30 
Total I 2,10,560.87 93,165.30 

Rs in OOO's (iii) Intercorllorate Loan balances 

• 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited 7,084.33 . 
Sara Spices Private Limited 0.03 3,244.53 
Anna Aluminium Vessels 39.20 - 
Kitex Garments Limited 24,506.63 0.59 
Total 31,630.19 3,245.12 

!ii) Trade Pa)'.ables I Rs. in OOO's 
Particulars 1 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex Limited I - 93,247.01 
Total I - 93,247.01 

Outstanding balances with entities in which director or their relatives have significant influence 
(il Trade Receivables Rs in OOO's 

Vil xpen 1 ture on ervices Rs. in 00 s 
Particulars 2024-25 2023·24 
Kitex Limited I 11,581.94 0.35 
Total I 11,581.94 0.35 

O' s ( .. ) E 

(vi) Finance cost Rs. in OOO's 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 
Kitex limited 4,583.43 2,565.00 
Total I 4,583.43 2,565.00 
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I, 121.05 
108.39 

1,504.68 

1,665.32 

33.9 CIF value of imports 
-Raw materials I 
-Capital goods 
-Stores and Spares 

2023-24 2024-25 

I 2024-25 2023-24 
Raw Materials I 
Imported I 1,665.32 1,121.05 
Indigenous I 2,35,783.89 1,53,307.46 
Total I 2,37,449.21 l,54,428.51 
Stores and Spares I 
Imported I - 1,504.68 
Indigenous I 3,279.16 642.42 
Total I 3,279.16 2,147.10 

I Rs. in OOO's 

Rs in OOO's 
33.8 Consumption of ra v materials and stores and spares 

-r 

2024-25 2023-24 
Aluminium/ GI Coils 12,404.42 20,918.61 
Garments 2,25,044.79 1,33,509.90 

TOTAL 2,37,449.21 1,54,428.51 

Rs 111 OOOs 33 7 Raw Materials Consumed 

Rs in OOO's 
Class of goods manufactured 2024-25 2023-24 
Finished Goods- Garments 
Opening Value 1,777.08 4,545.90 
Closing Value I 2,909.05 1,777.08 
Sales Value 4,36,442.12 3,76,083.28 
Finished Goods- Aluminium/Roofing 
Opening Value 1,120.86 1,435.04 
Closing Value I 1,503.38 1,120.86 
Sales Value 17,814.42 26,037.81 
Work In Progress- Gan:/icnts 
Opening Value 30,958.97 29,827.27 
Closing Value I 63,845.01 30,958.97 
Sales Value - - 

I 

33.6 Particulars in respect of stock and turnover 
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MANAGING DlRECTOR 

l' 
Particulars Kitex limited AA CPL 

.T 93,165.30 2,86,189.71 Balance as on Olst April 2024 
Inter Corporate Loan Received/ (Repaid) (Net) 1,17,395.57 (74,447.40) 
Balance as on 31st Marlh 2025 2, 10,560.87 2,11,742.31 

Interest Rate 3% pe.r annum 3% per annum 

Tenure 
Repayable on Repayable on 
demand demand 

Security Unsecured Unsecured 

33.13 Figures of the pr]vious year have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary to suit the current 
year layout. 

33.14 The company has taken short term Inter Corporate Loan from Arma Aluminium Company Private 
Limited (AA CPL) and f itex Limited on various dates during the current and previous financial year. The 
details of Loan accepted/ Repaid and Outstanding amount of Loan are shown in Note No 33.5. 

125 
5,54,259 

NIL 

127 
7,52,654 

NIL 

33.l.2 Remittance in for~gn currencies on account of dividend 
(including remittance tol NRE accounts) 
i) No. of Non-Resident shareholders 
ii) No. of shares held by them 
iii) Dividend remitted in Foreign Currency 

2,734.1 I 

73,462.38 
1,665.32 

1,16,640.16 
33.10 Expenditure in Foreign Currency 
33.11 Earnings in Foreign Exchange 

Rs. in OOO's 
2023-24 2024-25 
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21,659.43 

40,765.23 
67,134.66 

17,814.41 
26,037.81 

4,47,213.96 
3,81,634.17 

27,146.94 
39,472.58 

11,004.29 
1,907.62 

26,439.11 
28,616.27 

21,659.43 

42,930.91 
69,996.47 

Total Aluminium Garments 

Total Profit Before Tax 
C11rre11t Year 
Preuious Year 

Less: Unallocated Expenditure 
Curreul Year 
Previous Year 

Less: Interest & Finance Charges 
Current Year 
Previous Yenr 

Add: Exceptional Items 
Current Year 
Previous Year 

Add: Unallocat d Income 
Current Yenr 
Previous Year 

b) Segment Results 
Curr1111t Year 
Previous Year 

4,65,028.37 
4,07,671.98 

17,814.41 
26,037.81 

4,47,213.96 
3,81,634.17 

4,65,028.37 
4,07,671. 98 

2,165.68 
2,861.81 

Total Revenue 
Current Year 
Previous Year 

Less: Inter-segment Revenue 
C11rre11t Year 
Previous Year 

a) Segment Revenue 
(Inclusive of Job work Charges) 
Current Year 
Previous Year 

Rs in OOO's 
33.15 Segment reve ue, Results and Capital Employed 
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Current Year Previous Year 
Deferred Tax Liability 10,471.64 2,465.14 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings . l,392.34 
Provision for Gratuity 4,377.18 2,455.55 
Other Current rabilities . 375.00 

, 14,848.82 6,688.03 
I 

Rs. in OOO's 
a) Unallocated Liab,ities includes; 

s: 
nallocated Asse includes; 

Rs. in OOO's 
Current Year Previous Year 

Plant, property and equipment 23,497.36 32,510.68 
Other intangiblf assets 202.24 398.53 
Other Advances 400.00 . 

Other financial rssets 3,767.12 3,497.49 
Non Current tJ. assets(net) 904.25 510.54 
Cash and cash quivalents 7,709.30 581.04 
Other bank balrces . 170.29 

36,480.27 37,668.57 

There is no significant non-cash expenses, included in segment expenses, other than depreciation 
and amortisation exRei1ses and irrecoverable advances written off. 
Note 
a) U 

c) Segment Assets 
Currl'nl Yeor 6,25,218.07 14,097.44 6,39,315.51 
Previous Yenr 5,23,889.90 16,681.54 5,40,571.44 

Unallocated Assets . 
Current Yenr 36,480.27 
Previous Yenr 37,668.57 
Total Assets 
Current Yenr 6,75,795.78 
Previous Yenr 5, 78,240.0l 

d) Segment Liabilities 
Current Year 6,11,900.29 (263.77) 6,11,636.52 
Preuious Yenr 5,36,789.16 4,380.75 5,41,169.91 

Unallocated Lia~ilities 
14,848.82 Cunwt Year 

Previous Year 6,688.03 

Total Liabilities 
Current Year 6,26,485.34 
Previous Year 5,47,857.94 
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MANAGING DlRECTOR ._/" DIRECTOR 
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33.23 Utilization of borrowed funds 
No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind bf funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries).The Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding Party) with the 
understanding that thl Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified by on on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

33.22 Discrepancy in ufilisation of borrowings 
The company has used lthe borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for 
which it was taken. 

33.20 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) 
All charges or satisfaction are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended 
March 31st, 2025, and March 31st, 2024. No charges or satisfactions are yet to be registered with ROC 
beyond the statutory pjiod. 

33.21 Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The Company has comi;>lied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act 
read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 
2025, and March 31, 2024. 

33.19 Relationship with Struck off Companies 
Company has not entered into any transactions with companies whose names have been struck off under 
section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 in the financial years ended 
March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024. 

33.18 Wilful Defaulter 
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender in the financial years ended March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024 

33.17 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 
The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in 
the name of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024. 
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I 
Year Ended Year Ended 

Particulars 31st March 31st March 
2025 2024 

Not later than l year 3,390.00 2,790.00 

Later than 1 vear and not later than 5 years 10,935.00 9,945.00 

Later than 5 years 15,345.00 17,325.00 

Total Lease Income 29,670.00 30,060.00 

B. Future Minimum L ase Payments Receivable under Non-Cancellable Operating Leases 
(Un discounted) 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 
Rs. in OOO's 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars 31st Mardi 31st March 

2025 2024 

Lease income from Kite,x Limited 810.00 742.50 
Lease income from Anna Aluminium Company Pvt Ltd 1,980.00 - 
Variable lease pavments (if any) 67.50 - 
Total Lease Income l 2,857.50 742.50 

33.26. Lease Income - Operating Lease. Lease Income Recognised During the year, the Company has 
recognised the foUow inj!. income from operating leases: 

I Rs. in OOO's 

33.25 CSR Applicabilit 
ln accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to constitute a CSR 
Committee and underttke CSR activities if it meets the Iinancial criteria prescribed under the Act. The 
Company did not meet any of the criteria specified under Section 135(1) of the Act, as per the audited 
financial statements of ~1e preceding financial year. Accordingly, the provisions related to Corporate Social 
Responsibility are not a plicable to the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 

33.24 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
The Company does not 11old any cryptocurrency or virtual currency as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 
2024. The Company h~s also not received any deposits or advances for the purpose of investing in 
cryptocurrencies or virttlal currencies. 
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DIRECTOR ...,.,...("--;::Jd~l.Q..~ 
DONY DOMINIC (DUIJ:03588411) 

The accounting software used by the company for maintaining its books of account is "SAP ECC 6.0". The 
software has a feature rf audit trial(edit log) facility at the application level for each change made in the 
books of account along with date of such changes made. This feature of audit trial (edit log) facility was 
operated throughout ti e year for all transactions recorded in such software and have not been tampered 
with. 
Direct access to the database of accounting software is available only to database administrator and there 
are appropriate controls to prevent any unauthorised modifications at database layer. 
Additionally, Company has preserved audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended Mardi 
31, 2024, as per the stat tory requirements for record retention. 

C. Nature of Leasing AT.angements 

1. All leases are classified as operating leases, as the Company retains significant risks and rewards of 
ownership. 
2. Lease terms vary between 4 to 15 years with provisions for annual rent collection and defined lease 
durations. 
3. There are no purchase options in any of the agreements. 
4. Leases are cancellable only on terms mutually agreed between the parties. 

5. Rentals from land and building components are charged as a combined lease payment, and the lease is 
treated as a single operating lease. 

33.27. Compliance relaJng to audit trail on accounting software used by U1e company. 

; 

F-95



2 

ss/- 

As per 011r sepnraie report of even date attached 

33.29. The Company has, for the first time, recognised gratuity liability of employees during the quarter and 
six months ended September 30, 2024, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 - 
"Employee Benefits", b1sed on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary. Jn accordance 
with Ind AS 8- Accou+ing Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the Company has made 
retrospective adjustme1ys to reflect the gratuity liability i11 prior periods. The cumulative effect of Rs. 13.15 
Lakhs has been recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (net of deferred 
tax) as of O'J.04.2023, thj earliest prior period presented. Details of restatement each of the affected financial 
statement line items for the prior periods are as follows.: 

33.28.2. The stock of canteen, scrap etc are not considered while giving stock statement to bank. 

Inventory: 
Variations in inventory values are due to the inclusion of labour costs in the valuation of work-in-progress 
and finished goods, after the stock statements were submitted to the bank. 

stock 
Trade Receivables and Payables: 
The differences obser~ed in Trade Receivables and Trade Payables as furnished in the 
returns/statements are Rrimarily attributable to delays in the timely updating of accounting records. 

I (Rs i.n 000') 

I Amount as Reason for 
Amount as reported in the Amount of Material 

Quarter 
per Books quarterly difference discrepancie 

I Statement s 

Ql I 71,483.12 71,351.20 131.92 Refer Note 
Q2 I 91,635.48 91,835.U (199.63) 

32.28.1 
Q3 I 1,29,285.84 1,28,694.49 591.35 

I 7,311.17 
below 

Q4 1,61,542.28 1,54,231.11 

33.28. The company ha~ availed credit facilities from banks during the current year on hypothecation of 
Current assets as state1 in Note 18. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the 
Company wilh said banks are, with all material respects, in agreement with the books of accounts, except as 
follows:- 
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DffiECTOR 
OONY OOMLNIC (DIN:0358841l) 

MANAGlNG DIRECTOR 

K.L.V.NARAYANAN (DIN:012735731~) ~~~~~~::::::: 

33.30. The Company d9es not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 and no proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the Company for holding any benam.i 
property. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the prior yeai· have also been restated. The amount of the 
correction for both basic and diluted earnings per share was a decrease of ~0.20 per share. The correction of 
the error had no impact on previously reported cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities 

I Increase/ 

Statement of Profit and rss 31 March 2024 (as previously (decrease) due 31 March 2024 (restated) 
reported) lo correction 

of error 

Increase in Employee BenWits . 1,049.59 1,049.59 
expense 
Increase in Total Other . 263.19 263.19 

Comprehensive Income 

Decrease in Tax Expenses 3,083.15 264.16 2,818.99 

Decrease in Total Compr,hensive 37,439.02 522.23 36,91£>.78 
Income 

Increase/ 1Aptll2023 
Increase/ 

31 March 2024 
(decrease) due 31 March (decrease) due 1 April 2023 

Balance sheet (as previously 
to correction 2024(Restated) 

(as previously 
to correction (restated) 

reported) 
of error 

reported) 
of error 

Deferred Tax Asset . ' . . . 442.37 442.37 

Total Assets 5,78,240.01 . 5,78,240.01 6,32,090.50 442.37 6,32,532.87 

Provisions- Non- 2,361.04 2,361.04 1,752.68 1,752.68 . . 
current ' 
Provision· Current . 94.51 94.51 . 4.99 4.99 

Deferred Tax liabil 3,0$3.15 (618.02) 2,465.13 . . . 

Total Liabilities 5,46,020.41 l,837.53 5,47,857.94 6,37,309.92 1,757.66 6,39,067.58 

Retained Earnings (\1,02, 780.40) (1,837.53) (1,04,617.93) (1,40,219.41) 1,315.30 (1,41,534.TI) 

Total Equity 32,219.60 (1,837.53) 30,382.07 (5,219.41) 1,315.30 (6,534.71) 

Total Equity 
r.78,240.01 . 5,78,240.01 6,32,090.51 3,072.96 6,32,532.87 

And Liabilities 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 
DONY DOMINIC (DIN:035SS411) K.L.V.NARAYANAN (DIN:01273573) 

33.34 Taxation I {Rs in."000) 
For the Year for the Year 

Particulars 
ended ended 

March 31, March 31, 

I 2025 2024 

Current Tax 
In respect of cm rent y~ar - 
In respect of earlier years (15.30) 
Total (15.30) 

Deferred tax 
In respect of current yiar 8,063.72 2,818.99 
Deferred tax recognised in profit or loss 8,063.72 2,818.99 
Total income tax expenses recognised in the profit or loss 8,048.42 2,818.99 

33.32. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax 1~t, 1961. 

33.33. The Company ~1~s a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts (including derivative 
contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At tile year end, the Company has reviewed and 
ensured that adequate ~rovision as required under any law/accounting standards for material foreseeable 
losses on such long-term contracts(induding derivative contracts) has been made in the books of accounts. 

33.31. Tile Company haf not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), includ ing foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with t~e understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company 
shall:(a) directly or inrirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any maimer 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or(b) provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
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Crcdit/(charge Credi t/(ch~rge As at 31st ) in the 
Movement during the year ended 31st March, 2025 

As at 1st April, 
Statement of 

) in Other March, 
2024 Comprehensi 2025 

l'rofitand 
Loss 

ve Income 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment, Jn vestment 33,834.14 (1,079.02) - 34,913.16 
property and lntangtbleassets 
Total 33,834.14 (1,079.02) - 34,913.1.6 

Deferred tax assets 

Provision for post-retire nent benefits and other 
employee benefits 

618.01 426.41 57.23 1,101.65 

Brought forward Depre iation Loss 30,750.99 (7,430.65) - 23,320.34 
Other temporary differe nces - 19.54 - 19.54 
Total 31,369.00 (6,984.70) 57.23 24,441.53 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 2,465.14 (8,063.73) 57.23 10,471.64 

_..,A ,.. ,,,, 
""' '1 '.) MANAGING DIRECTOR A DIRECTOR ~l ..._G""~' 

- . i '......,;1> ' 
K.L.V.NARAYANAN (DIN:01273573) DONY DOMINIC (01N:035884ll) 

ez-: - <, 

Rs in OOO's 
Movement In Deferred rax Assets And Liabilities 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 
Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 27,146.94 39,472.58 
Income Tax expense calculated at statutory tax rates 6,832.34 9,934.46 

Effect of items that are not deductible/(deductible) in determining 1,231.38 (7,115.47) 

Jn respect of earlier yearf (15.30) - 
1u•\..-, •• ..;. """~ • • (lo;;) .t' ... .._ ...,.,(.~...._._.._j H VI 1· ''" U, '"'' ..... 8,048.42 2,818.99 r 
' - 
Applicable rate of tax a~ per Finance Act 25.168% 25.168% 

(ii) Deferred Tax Expen e 

(I) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as fellows» 
Rs. in OOO's 
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS 

 

The following tables present certain accounting ratios as of respective periods. For details, see “Financial 

Statements” on page 86. 

 

Accounting Ratios  

 

Particulars Based on Unaudited 

Financial Results 

Based on Audited  Financial 

Statements 

As at and for 

the three 

months 

ended June 

30, 2025 

As at and for 

the three 

months 

ended June 

30, 2024 

As at and for the 

year ended March 

31, 2025 

As at and for 

the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Basic earnings per share (₹) 0.65 0.16 1.41 2.73 

Diluted earnings per share (₹) 0.65 0.16 1.41 2.73 

Return on Net Worth (%) N.A. N.A. 38.73% 120.64% 

Net Asset Value per Equity 

Share (₹) 

N.A. N.A. 3.65 2.25 

EBITDA (₹ in Lakhs) 245.25 150.62 631.59 927.92 

 

The formula used in the computation of the above ratios are as follows:  

 

Basic earnings per 

share 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 

Shareholders (after adjusting non-controlling interest) from continued operations after 

exceptional item, as applicable/Weighted Average number of Equity Shares. 

Diluted earnings per 

share 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity 

Shareholders (after adjusting non-controlling interest) from continued operation after 

exceptional item, as applicable/Weighted Average number of Equity Shares (including 

convertible securities). 

Return on net worth 

(in %) 

Profit/(Loss) for the period/year as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to 

Equity Shareholders from continued operations and discontinued operations (prior to 

other comprehensive income)/Net worth at the end of the period/year 

Net Worth as per 

2(1) (hh) SEBI 

(ICDR) 

Regulation,2018 

Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves 

created out of the profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance of 

profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, 

deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the audited 

balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write 

back of depreciation and amalgamation.  

Net asset value per 

Equity Share 

Net Worth at the end of the period or year/number of Equity Shares at the end of the 

period or year. 

EBITDA Profit/(Loss) for the period before finance costs, tax, depreciation, amortization and 

exceptional items from continued operations and discontinued operation as presented 

in the statement of profit and loss. 
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Calculation of Return on Net Worth 

 

Particulars Based on Unaudited Financial 

Results 

Based on Audited Financial 

Statements 

As at and for 

the three 

months ended 

June 30, 2025 

As at and for 

the three 

months ended 

June 30, 2024 

As at and for 

the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

As at and for the 

year ended March 

31, 2024 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 

from continued operations 

and discontinued operations 

(before OCI) (A) 

87.37 N.A. 190.98 366.53 

Net Worth (B)* N.A. N.A. 493.10 303.82 

Return of Net Worth (A/B) 

(%) 

N.A. N.A. 38.73% 120.64% 

*Net worth as per 2(1)(hh) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 

 

Calculation of Net asset value per Equity Share 

 

Particulars Based on Unaudited Financial 

Results 

Based on Audited Financial 

Statements 

As at and for the 

three months 

ended June 30, 

2025 

As at and for the 

three months 

ended June 30, 

2024 

As at and for 

the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

As at and for 

the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Net Worth (A) (₹ in Lakhs) N.A. N.A. 493.10 303.82 

No. of shares (B)(in 

numbers) 

N.A. N.A. 1,35,00,000 1,35,00,000 

Net Assets Value (₹) [(A x 

100,000) / B] 

N.A. N.A. 3.65 2.25 

 

Calculation of EBITDA 

 

Particulars Based on Unaudited Financial Results Based on Audited Financial 

Statements 

As at and for the 

nine months 

ended June 30, 

2025 

As at and for the 

three months 

ended June 30, 

2024 

As at and for the 

year ended March 

31, 2025 

As at and for the 

year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Net Profit/ Loss 

after Tax 
87.37 22.13 190.99 366.53 

Add: Taxes 

[Short/(Excess) 

provision for 

income tax of 

earlier years] 

29.89 - 80.48 28.19 

Add: Finance Cost 69.47 66.64 264.39 286.16 

Add: Depreciation 

and Amortisation 

Expense 

58.52 61.85 312.33 247.04 

Less: Exceptional 

Items 
- - 216.59 - 

EBITDA 245.25 150.62 631.59 927.92 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATIONS 

 

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our 

Unaudited Financial Results for the three months period ended June 30, 2025and Audited Financial Statements 

as of and for the Financial years 2024-2025, all prepared in accordance with the Companies Act and Ind AS, 

including the schedules, annexures and notes thereto and the reports thereon, included in the section titled 

“Financial Information” on page 86. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this chapter is 

derived from the Audited Financial Statements and Unaudited Financial Results of our Company.  

 

This discussion contains forward-looking statements and reflects our current views with respect to future events 

and financial performance. Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking 

statements as a result of certain factors such as those set forth in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Forward-

Looking Statements” on pages 20 and 15, respectively.  

 

Our financial year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular “financial year” and “Fiscal” 

are to the twelve (12) month period ended March 31 of that year. References to the “Company”, “we”, “us” and 

“our” in this chapter refer to Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited, as applicable in the relevant period, unless 

otherwise stated. For further information, see “Financial Statements” beginning on page 86. 

 

OVERVIEW OF OUR BUSINESS 

 

Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited is a well-established, public listed company on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange, trading under the code: SCOOBEEDAY. The company operates across two key business segments: 

the manufacturing of apparel and ready-made garments, and roofing solutions. With a commitment to growth and 

diversification, Scoobee Day has strategically expanded its operations to meet the evolving demands of both 

domestic and international markets. 

 

The company's roofing solutions division was introduced in 2018, marking its foray into the building materials 

sector. This division primarily focuses on supplying high-quality aluminium and galvanized iron (GI) sheets, 

which are in high demand for roofing projects throughout the state of Kerala. By providing durable and reliable 

roofing materials, Scoobee Day has positioned itself as a key player in the region's construction and infrastructure 

development industry. 

 

In 2019, Scoobee Day expanded its portfolio by entering the garment manufacturing sector. This strategic move 

allowed the company to cater to the growing needs of large international export buyers while also maintaining a 

significant presence in the domestic market. The garment manufacturing division focuses on producing a wide 

range of apparel and ready-made garments with main concentration in Baby Garments ensuring high-quality 

standards and timely delivery to meet the demands of global clients. 

 

With its dual business focus on both roofing solutions and garment manufacturing, Scoobee Day Garments (India) 

Limited continues to strengthen its position in the marketplace, fostering growth and innovation while contributing 

to the economic development of the region. 

 

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING OUR BUSINESS, FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 

OF OPERATIONS 

 

To the knowledge of our Company and except as disclosed herein, since the date of the last balance sheet contained 

in this Letter of Offer i.e. June 30, 2025, no other circumstances have arisen which would materially and adversely 

affect or which would be likely to affect, our operations or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to 

pay our material liabilities within the next 12 (twelve) months. 

 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Unaudited Financial Results 

and Audited Financial Statements. For details of our significant accounting policies, please refer chapter titled 

“Financial Statements” on page 86 of this Letter of Offer.   
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RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, MATTER OF EMPHASIS AND ADVERSE 

REMARKS/OTHER OBSERVATION IN CARO 

 

The following is the summary of qualification/reservations/emphasis of matters/adverse remarks/other 

observations in CARO (as applicable) in the Audited Financial Statements for the FY 2023-24 and for the three 

months period ended June 30, 2025. 

 

Period Nature of 

Financials 

Qualifications/Reservations/Matter of 

Emphasis/Adverse Remarks/Other Observations in 

CARO 

Three months period ended June 

30, 2025 

Standalone Qualification/Reservations/Adverse Remarks: 

Nil 

 

Matter of Emphasis: 

Nil 

FY 

2024-25 

Standalone  Qualification/Reservations/Adverse Remarks: 

Nil 

 

Matter of Emphasis: 

Nil 

FY  

2023-24 

Standalone Qualification/Reservations/Adverse Remarks: 

Nil 

 

Matter of Emphasis: 

Nil 

 

Other Observations in CARO: 

Nil 

 

PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  

 

Revenue  

 

Our revenue comprises of: 

 

Revenue from operations 

Revenue from Operations primarily comprises of Sale of Products i.e., Garments and Aluminium Roofing Sheets 

and Other Operating Revenue, that includes Job work charges received from garment business. 

Other income  

 

Other income primarily comprises interest income from banks and others, duty drawback, net gain on sale of 

property, plant and equipment, gain from exchange rate fluctuation, and other miscellaneous income. 

 

Expenses 

 

Our expenses primarily comprise cost of material consumed, changes in inventories of finished goods and work 

in progress, employee benefit expenses, finance costs, depreciation and amortization expenses and other expenses. 

 

Employee benefit expenses 

 

Employee benefit expenses include salaries, wages and bonus, contribution to provident and other funds, 

contribution to employees state insurance corporation and staff welfare expenses. 

 

Finance costs 

 

Finance costs include interest on term loan, cash credit and others. 
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Other expenses 

 

Other expenses include processing charges, packing material consumed, power and fuel, Freight, Store and spares 

consumed, rent, rate and taxes, Repair and maintenance of Plant and Machinery, Building, Vehicle, and others, 

travelling and Conveyance, advertisement and sales promotion, postage and stationary, insurance, payment to 

auditors and expenses, professional charges, bank charges, loss on sale of MEIS licenses, Irrecoverable advance 

written off, CSR expenditure, general charges and other miscellaneous expenses. 

 

Tax expenses 

 

Tax expenses include current tax and deferred tax expenses.  
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Results of our Operations 

 

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our results of operations for the periods indicated: 

(₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars As on 

June 30, 2025 

As on 

June 30, 2024 

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Amount % of Total 

Revenue 

Amount % of Total 

Revenue 

Amount % of 

Total 

Revenue 

Amount % of Total 

Revenue 

Revenue from Operation   1,554.14  98.52%        726.04  100.00%    4,650.28  98.72% 4,076.72  99.45% 

Other Income          23.38  1.48%                -    0.00%          60.42  1.28% 22.41  0.55% 

Total Income    1,577.53  100.00%       726.04  100.00%   4,710.70  100.00% 4,099.13  100.00% 

Cost of Material Consumed        424.53  26.91%        244.30  33.65%    2,374.49  50.41% 1,544.29  37.67% 

Change in Inventory of finished goods and WIP        246.71  15.64%          19.25  2.65%     (344.01) -7.30% 19.51  0.48% 

Employee Benefit Expenses        446.73  28.32%        229.43  31.60%    1,314.38  27.90% 1,090.05  26.59% 

Other Expenses        214.30  13.58%          82.44  11.35%       734.23  15.59% 517.36  12.62% 

EBITDA       245.25  15.55%       150.62  20.75%       631.59  13.41% 927.92  22.64% 

Finance Cost         69.47  4.40%        66.64  9.18%       264.39  5.61% 286.16  6.98% 

Depreciation and Amortisation          58.52  3.71%        61.85  8.52%       312.33  6.63% 247.04  6.03% 

Total Expense 1,460.27  92.57%       703.91  96.95%    4,655.82  98.84% 3,704.41  90.37% 

Profit before exceptional items and tax        117.25  7.43%          22.13  3.05%         54.88  1.16% 394.72  9.63% 

- Exceptional Item                  -    0.00%                -    0.00%       216.59  4.60%                  -    0.00% 

Profit before tax        117.25  7.43% 
         22.13  3.05% 

     271.47          

5.76%  
394.72             0.10  

- Tax Expense                

Current Tax                -    0.00%                 -    0.00%                 -    0.00%                  -    0.00% 

Deferred Tax          29.89  1.89%                 -    0.00%          80.64  1.71% 28.19  0.69% 

Tax Adjustment of previous year                 -    0.00%                 -    0.00%        (0.15) 0.00%                  -    0.00% 

Net Tax Expense          29.89  1.89%                 -    0.00%          80.48  1.71% 28.19  0.60% 

Profit/(Loss) for the period          87.37  5.54%          22.13  3.05%       190.98 4.05% 366.53  8.94% 
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Three months period ended June 30, 2025 compared to June 30, 2024 

 

Total Revenue 

 

Our total revenue for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025 was ₹ 1,577.53 lakhs as compared to ₹ 726.04 

for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024 representing an increase of 117.28%. Total revenue comprises 

of: 

 

Revenue from Operations 

 

Our revenue from operations for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025 was ₹ 1.554.14 lakhs as compared 

to ₹ 726.04 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 114.06%. The 

increase was primarily due to increase of garment domestic sales. 

 

Other Income 

 

Other income for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 23.38 Lakhs as compared to Nil for the 

three-months period ended June 30, 2024. The increase in other income was primarily due to Lease Rent income 

and Exchange Gain. 

  

Expenses 

 

Our total expenditure for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 1,460.27 lakhs as compared to ₹ 

703.91 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing a increase of 107.45%. Total 

expenditure comprises of:- 

 

Cost of Material Consumed  

 

Our Cost of  Material Consumed for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 424.53 lakhs as compared 

to ₹ 244.30 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 73.77%. This 

increase was primarily due to increase on sales. 

 

Employee benefit expenses 

 

Employee benefit expense for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 446.73 Lakhs as compared to 

₹ 229.43 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 94.71%. The increase 

in employee benefit expense was primarily because we have taken new employees to meet our future production 

needs. 

 

Change in Inventory of finished goods and WIP 

 

Change in Inventory of finished goods and WIP for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 246.71 

Lakhs as compared to ₹ 19.25 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing a increase of 

1181.63%. The increase in change in inventory of finished goods and WIP was primarily because of increase in 

sales. 

 

Other expenses  

 

Other expenses for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 214.30 Lakhs as compared to ₹ 82.44 

lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 159.95%. The increase in other 

expense was primarily due to increase on processing charges as our sales has been increased. 

 

Finance cost 

 

Finance cost for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 69,47 Lakhs as compared to ₹ 66.64 lakhs 

for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 4.25%. The increase in finance cost 

was primarily due to interest on intercorporate loan. 
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Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 58.52 Lakhs as 

compared to ₹ 61.83 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing a decrease of 5.38%. 

The decrease in depreciation and amortisation expense was primarily because because of WDV method. 

 

Profit before Exceptional Items and tax 

 

Profit/Loss before exceptional items and Tax for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 117.25 

Lakhs as compared to ₹ 22.13 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 

429.84%. The increase in profit before exceptional items and tax was primarily due to increase in sales. 

 

Exceptional Items 

 

NIL 

 

Profit/Loss before Tax 

 

Profit/Loss before Tax for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 117.25 Lakhs as compared to ₹ 

22.13 lakhs for the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 429.84%. The increase 

in profit/loss before tax was primarily due to increase in sales. 

 

Taxation 

 

Taxation for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025, was ₹ 29.89 Lakhs as compared to nil for the three-

months period ended June 30, 2024. The increase in taxation was primarily due to computation of deferred tax. 

 

Profit/Loss after Tax 

 

Profit/Loss for the three-months period ended June 30, 2025 was ₹ 87.37 Lakhs as compared to ₹ 22.13 Lakhs for 

the three-months period ended June 30, 2024, representing an increase of 294.79%. The increase in profit/loss 

after tax was primarily due to increase in sales. 

 

FY 2024-25 compared to FY 2023-24 

 

Total Revenue  

 

Our total revenue for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 4,710.70 lakhs as compared to ₹ 4,099.13 

for the financial year ended March 31,2024 representing an increase 14.92%. Total revenue comprises of: 

 

Revenue from operations 

 

Our revenue from operations for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 4650.28 lakhs as compared to ₹ 

4,076.72 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing an increase of 14.07%. The increase was 

primarily on account of increase in domestic and export sales. 
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Other income 

 

Our other income for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 60.42 lakhs as compared to ₹ 22.41 lakhs for 

financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing an increase of 169.59%. The increase was primarily on account 

of increase of rental income received. 

 

Expenses 

 

Our total expenses for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 4,655.82 lakhs as compared to ₹ 3,704.41 

for the financial year ended March 31,2024 representing an increase of 25.68%. Total expenses comprises of: 

 

Cost of Raw Material Consumed 

 

Our cost of raw material consumed for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 2,374.49 lakhs as compared to 

₹ 1,544.29 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing an increase of 53.76%. The increase in 

cost of raw material consumed was primarily on account of increase of sales. 

 

Change in Inventory of finished goods and WIP 

 

Our change in inventory of finished goods and WIP for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ (344.01) lakhs 

as compared to ₹ 19.51 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a decrease of 1863.23%. The 

decrease in change in inventory of finished goods and WIP was primarily on account of decrease in opening stock 

of work in progress and closing stock of finished goods. 

 

Employee benefit expenses 

 

Our employee benefit expenses for financial year ended March 31,2025 was ₹ 1314.38 lakhs as compared to ₹ 

1090.05 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a increase of 20.58%. The increase in 

employee benefit expense in primarily due to increase of our employees in order to meet future orders. 

 

Other expenses 

 

Our other expenses for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 734.23 lakhs as compared to ₹ 517.36 lakhs 

for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing an increase of 41.92%. The increase in other expenses was 

primarily on account of increase of processing charges and other production related expenses due to increase of 

sales. 

 

Finance cost 

  

Our finance cost for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 264.39 lakhs as compared to ₹ 286.16 lakhs for 

financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a decrease of 7.61%. The decrease in finance cost was primarily 

on account of decrease in the interest income on term loan, cash credit, and others. 

 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

 

Our depreciation and amortisation expense for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 312.33 lakhs as 

compared to ₹ 247.04 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing an increase of 26.43%. The 

increase in depreciation and amortisation expense was primarily on account of increase in the depreciation of 

tangible assets and amortisation of intangible assets. 

 

Profit before Exceptional Items and tax 

 

Our Profit/Loss before exceptional items and Tax for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 54.88 lakhs as 

compared to ₹ 394.72 lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a decrease of 86.10%. The 

decrease in profit before exceptional items and tax was primarily due to increase of depreciation and also due to 

increase on employee welfare expenses. 

 

Exceptional Items 
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Our Exceptional Items for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 216.59 Lakhs as compare to Nil for financial 

year ended March 31, 2024. The increase in the exceptional item was primarily on account of profit on sale of 

land. 

 

Profit/Loss before Tax 

 

Our profit/loss before tax for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 271.47 lakhs as compared to ₹ 394.72 

lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a decrease of 31.22%. The decrease in profit/loss 

before tax was primarily due to increase of depreciation and also due to increase on employee welfare expenses. 

 

Taxation  

 

Our taxation for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 80.48 lakhs as compared to ₹ 28.19 Lakhs for financial 

year ended March 31, 2024. The increase in profit/loss before tax was primarily on account of increase in the 

deferred tax liability. 

 

Profit/Loss after Tax 

 

Our profit/loss after tax for financial year ended March 31, 2025 was ₹ 190.98 lakhs as compared to ₹ 366.53 

lakhs for financial year ended March 31, 2024, representing a decrease of 47.89%. The decrease in profit/loss 

after tax was primarily due to increase of depreciation and also due to increase on employee welfare expenses and 

increase in the tax liability. 

 

In light of the above discussion, our Company earned a profit for FY 2024-25 of ₹ 190.98 lakhs as compared to ₹ 

366.53 lakhs for the FY 2023-24, representing a decrease of 47.89%. 

 

Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on sales, 

revenue or income from continuing operations 

 

Other than as described in the chapter titled “Risk Factors” and chapter titled “Management Discussion and 

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on pages 20 and 89 respectively, of this 

Letter of Offer, to our knowledge, there are no known trends or uncertainties that have or are expected to have a 

material adverse impact on our income from continuing operations. 

 

Related Party Transactions  

 

For details, please see the chapter titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 86. 

 

Significant developments after June 30, 2025 that may affect our future results of operations 

 

Other than as disclosed in this Letter of Offer, there have been no significant developments after June 30, 2025 

that may affect our future results of operations.  
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SECTION VII – LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 

 

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND OTHER DEFAULTS 

 

Except as stated in this section, there are no outstanding litigation proceedings with respect to (i) issues of moral 

turpitude or criminal liability on part of our Company; (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our 

Company; (iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company; (iv) any pending 

matters which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or 

our financial position: and (v) other litigation, including civil or tax litigation proceedings, which involves an 

amount in excess of  the Materiality Threshold (as defined below) considered material in terms of (a) the “Policy 

for Determination of Materiality of Events and Information” adopted by our Board, in accordance with the 

requirements under Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and (b) the materiality policy as adopted by 

the Board in November 2021, for the purpose of litigation disclosures in this Letter of Offer (“Materiality 

Policy”). 

 

For the purposes of (v) above, in terms of the Materiality Policy adopted by our Board pursuant to a resolution 

dated May 08, 2025, any pending litigation/arbitration proceedings involving the Company shall be considered 

“material” for the purposes of disclosure in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, if:  

 

(a) the monetary amount of the claim made by or against the Company in any such pending litigation is 

equal to or in excess of (i) 2 (two) per cent of turnover, as per the last audited financial statements; 

(amounting to ₹ 80.42 lakhs) (ii) 2 (two) per cent of net worth, as per the last audited financial statements 

as per the last restated financial statements of the Company (amounting to ₹ 6.44 lakhs) or (iii) 5 (five) 

per cent of the average absolute value of profit or loss after tax, as per the last three audited consolidated 

financial statements (amounting to ₹ 25.18 lakhs); whichever is lower for a complete financial year, as 

included in the Issue Documents; or 

 

(b) where the decision in one case is likely to affect the decision in similar cases, even though the amount 

involved in an individual litigation does not exceed the amount determined as per clause (a) above, and 

the amount involved in all of such cases taken together exceeds the amount determined as per clause (i) 

above; and 

 

(c) any such litigation which does not meet the criteria set out in (a) above and an adverse outcome in which 

would materially and adversely affect the operations or financial position of the Company. 

 

It is clarified that for the purposes of the above, pre-litigation notices received by any of the Relevant Parties, 

from third parties (other than show cause notices issued by statutory/regulatory/tax authorities or notices 

threatening criminal action or the first information reports) have not, and shall not, unless otherwise decided by 

our Board, be considered as material litigation until such time that such Relevant Party, as the case may be, is 

impleaded as a defendant/s in proceedings before any judicial/arbitral forum. 

 

All terms defined herein in a particular litigation disclosure pertain to that litigation only. A summary of legal 

proceedings involving our Company, which we consider material, is set forth below: 

 

1. Litigations involving our Company  

 

A. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability initiated against our Company  

 

As on date of filing of this letter of offer, there are no proceedings initiated against our company involving 

issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability.  

 

B. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability initiated by our Company  

 

As on date of filing of this letter of offer, there are no proceedings initiated by our company involving 

issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability. 

 

C. Proceedings involving material violations of statutory regulations by our Company  
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As on date of filing of this letter of offer, there are no proceedings involving material violations of 

statutory regulations by our Company.  

 

D. Economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company  

 

As on date of filing of this letter of offer, there are no proceedings initiated against our company for 

economic offences.  

 

E. Other proceedings involving our Company which if they result in an adverse outcome, would 

materially and adversely affect the operations or financial position of our Company  

 

As on date of filing of this letter of offer, there are no other proceedings involving our company which 

involve an amount exceeding the materiality threshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Material 

Policy and other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and 

adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company. 

 

F. Tax Proceedings  

 

Below are the details of the pending tax cases involving our Company, specifying the number of cases 

pending and the total amount involved:  

(₹ in lakh) 

Particulars Number of Cases Amount involved lakh 

Our Company   

Direct Tax Nil Nil 

Indirect Tax Nil Nil 

Total Nil Nil 
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS 

 

Our Company is required to obtain consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from various governmental and 

regulatory authorities that are required for carrying on our present business operation. The requirement for the 

Approvals may vary based on factors such as the legal requirements in the jurisdiction, in which the Projects are 

located. Further, our obligation to obtain and renew such approvals arises periodically and applications for such 

approvals are made at the appropriate stage.  

 

Material pending government and regulatory approvals pertaining to the Objects of the Issue: 

 

We are not required to obtain any licenses or approvals from any government or regulatory authority for the 

objects of this Issue. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” at page 48 of this 

Letter of Offer. 
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

 

Authority for the Issue 

 

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on March 27, 2024,  

to raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for an aggregate amount of up to ₹5,000.00 Lakhs 

(Rupees Five Thousand Lakhs only), to all the eligible equity shareholders of the Company, as on the record date 

(to be notified later) on a rights basis (“Rights Issue”) on such terms as may be decided by the Board of Directors. 

subject to receipt of regulatory/statutory approvals, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended, 

SEBI Listing Regulations, and the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, as amended from time to 

time. 

 

The Draft Letter of Offer has been approved by our Board of Directors, at a meeting held on May 08, 2025. 

 

Our Board in its meeting held on August 26, 2025 has resolved to issue the Equity Shares on rights basis to the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders, at ₹ 90 per Equity Share (including a premium of ₹ 80 per Equity Share) aggregating 

up to ₹ 4,050.00 lakhs. The Issue Price is ₹ 90 per Equity Share and has been arrived at by our Company in 

consultation with the Advisor to the Issue prior to determination of the Record Date. 

 

The Letter of Offer has been approved by our Board of Directors, at meeting held on August 26, 2025 2025. 

 

Our Company has received in-principle approvals from BSE in accordance with Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations for listing of the Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue pursuant to letter dated August 14, 

2025. Our Company will also make applications to BSE to obtain their trading approvals for the Rights 

Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars. 

 

Our Company has been allotted the INE962E20015 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective 

demat accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see “Terms of the Issue” beginning on 

page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities 

 

Our Company, the Promoters, the Directors and persons in control of our Company have not been or are not 

prohibited from accessing or operating in the capital markets, or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in 

securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any jurisdiction or 

any authority/court as on date of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Neither our Company nor our Promoters have been penalized by SEBI for violations of provisions of SEBI LODR 

Regulations and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 in the last 5 years. There are no 

outstanding SEBI actions against our Company or our Promoters as on the date of this Letter of Offer. For details, 

see chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Other Defaults” on page 97 in the chapter titled Outstanding 

Litigations and Other Defaults. 

 

None of our Promoters, the Directors, persons in control of our Company or the persons in control of our 

Promoters was or is a promoter, director or person in control of any other company which has been restrained, 

prohibited or debarred from accessing or operating in the capital markets, or restrained from buying, selling or 

dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI.  

 

None of the Directors of our Company are associated with the capital market in any manner. SEBI has not initiated 

action against any entity with which our Directors are associated. 

 

Neither our Promoters nor our Directors are declared as Fugitive Economic Offenders under Section 12 of Fugitive 

Economic Offenders Act, 2018. 

 

Association of our Directors with the securities market  

 

None of our Directors are associated with the securities market. 
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Prohibition by RBI  

 

Neither our Company, our Promoters nor our Directors have been or are identified as Willful Defaulters or 

Fraudulent Borrower by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines 

on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 

Eligibility for the Issue 

 

Applicability of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

 

The present Issue being of less than ₹5,000 Lakhs, our Company is in compliance with the first proviso to 

Regulation 3 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and our Company shall file the copy of the Letter of Offer prepared 

in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations with SEBI for information and dissemination on the website of 

SEBI, i.e. www.sebi.gov.in.  

 

SEBI, vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Amendment) Regulations, 2025 dated March 04, 2025, and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-

1/P/CIR/2025/31 dated March 11, 2025 on “Faster Rights Issues with flexibility of allotment to specific 

investor(s)”, amended the provisions governing rights issues to provide that every rights issue, irrespective of 

issue size, for which the board meeting approving the issue is held on or after April 07, 2025, shall fall under the 

amended framework. 

 

Since the Board of Directors of our Company approved the Rights Issue at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, 

i.e., prior to the applicability date of the aforesaid amendments, the present Rights Issue continues to be governed 

by the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as applicable prior to such amendments. 

 

Compliance with Regulation 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations  

 

Our Company is in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations to 

the extent applicable. Our Company undertakes to make an application for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to 

be Allotted pursuant to the Issue. BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for the purpose of the Issue. 

 

Compliance with Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

 

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations as explained below: 

 

a) Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, as applicable, for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this 

Letter of Offer with the BSE Limited; 

 

b) The reports, statements and information referred to in sub-clause (a) above are available on the website 

of the BSE; and  

 

c) Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, an appropriate delegation of power by the 

Board as regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory 

redressal of investor grievances. 

 

As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations and given that the conditions specified in Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations are not applicable to our Company, the disclosures in this Letter of Offer are in terms of Clause (4) 

of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

  

http://www.sebi.gov.in/
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DISCLAIMER CLAUSES  

 

1. Disclaimer clause of SEBI 

 

The present issue, being less than ₹5,000 lakhs, our company is in compliance with first proviso to 

Regulation 3 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and our company shall file a copy of the letter of 

offer prepared in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations with SEBI for information and 

dissemination on the website of SEBI for informative purposes.  

 

2. Disclaimer from our Company 

 

Our Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in 

the advertisement or any other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance 

of our Company and that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so 

at their own risk. 

 

Investors who invest in the Issue will be deemed to have been represented by our Company and respective 

directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, 

rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Rights Equity Shares of our Company and are 

relying on independent advice/evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue. 

 

Cautions 

 

Our Company shall make all relevant information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and no selective or additional information would be 

available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever, including at 

presentations, in research or sales reports, etc., after filing this Letter of Offer. 

 

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not 

contained in this Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. 

This Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity Shares and the Rights Entitlements, but only 

under circumstances and in the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information 

contained in this Letter of Offer is current only as at its date. 

 

3. Disclaimer with respect to jurisdiction 

 

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian laws and the applicable rules and 

regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the 

appropriate court(s) in Ernakulam, Kerala, India only. 

 

4. Disclaimer Clause of the Stock Exchange 

 

“BSE Limited ("the Exchange") has given vide its letter dated August 14, 2025, permission to this Company to 

use the Exchange's name in this Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company's securities are 

proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this letter of offer for its limited internal purpose of deciding 

on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any manner: 

 

• Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Letter of Offer; 

• Warrant that this Company's securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or 

• Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its management 

or any scheme or project of this Company. 

 

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this letter of offer has been cleared or approved by 

the Exchange. Every person who desi res to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may 

do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the 

Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection 

with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any 

other reason whatsoever.” 
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Designated Stock Exchange 

 

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is BSE Limited. 

 

Filing  

 

This Letter of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE as per the provisions of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. Further, in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will simultaneously do an online filing 

with SEBI through the SEBI intermediary portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.inin terms of the circular (No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011) dated January 19, 2018, issued by the SEBI for record purposes only. 

 

Selling Restrictions 

 

This Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the Registrar. 

This Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person. 

 

The distribution of the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Entitlement 

Letter, and the Application Form (“Issue Material”) and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity 

Shares, to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those 

jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Issue Material may come are required to inform themselves about 

and observe such restrictions.  

 

We are making this Issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send/ 

dispatch the Issue Material only to such Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to 

our Company/Registrar. 

 

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or 

distribution of the Issue Material or any other material relating to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights 

Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer 

has been filed with the Stock Exchange. 

 

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this 

Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights Entitlement may 

not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such 

jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be 

illegal to make such an offer. 

 

This Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information and 

may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in 

whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do 

so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek 

to subscribe to the Equity Shares, or the Rights Entitlement referred to in this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised 

to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any 

provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity 

Shares or Rights Entitlement. 

 

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Entitlement Letter 

and the Application Form nor any sale or offer hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication 

that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or that the information contained 

herein is correct as at any time subsequent to this date or the date of such information. Each person who exercises 

Rights Entitlements and subscribes for Equity Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares 

shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below. 

 

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS BUSINESS, 

LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO 

ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF 

BUYING OR SELLING OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. AS A 
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RESULT, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND 

TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING 

THE OFFER OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. IN ADDITION, 

NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE AFFILIATESARE MAKING ANY 

REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE 

RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS BY SUCH OFFEREE OR 

PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 

 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 

 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 

REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 

“SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, 

RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A 

TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THIS LETTER OF OFFER ARE 

BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS 

LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, 

AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED 

STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. 

ACCORDINGLY, THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN 

OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME. 

 

Accordingly, the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter and the Application Form should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. 

 

Neither our Company nor any person acting on behalf of our Company will accept subscriptions or renunciation 

from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on 

behalf of our Company will accept subscriptions or renunciation from any person, or the agent of any person, who 

appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on behalf of our Company has reason to believe, is in 

the United States when the buy order is made. No payments for subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares shall be 

made from US bank accounts and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such 

Rights Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for registration of the Rights Equity Shares in 

India. 

 

We, the Registrar, or any other person acting on behalf of us, reserve the right to treat as invalid any 

Application Form which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form to the effect 

that the subscriber does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States 

and is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all 

applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or its agents to have been executed in, electronically 

transmitted from or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not 

provided; or (iv) where we believe that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application 

Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and we shall not be bound to allot or issue 

any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form. 

 

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States. 

 

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA 

 

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARESIS 

BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED 

TOAUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA, HONG 

KONG,INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND, SULTANATE OF 

OMAN,PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE, SOUTH AFRICA, 

SWITZERLAND,THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM AND THE 

UNITED STATES.THE OFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER 

NOCIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES 
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ORRIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A 

SOLICIATIONTHEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, 

THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO 

ANYOTHER JURISDICTION AT ANY TIME. 

 

Investor Grievances and Redressal System 

 

In compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular for Online Dispute Resolution 

(“ODR”) bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (“SEBI 

ODR Master Circular”) we have completed the registration process of our Company on the Smart Market 

Approach for Resolution through ODR Portal (‘SMART ODR’). Further we undertake to resolve and take action 

on the complaints received in respect of the Issue expeditiously and satisfactorily and in accordance with the 

timelines provided under the SEBI ODR Master Circular and Securities and Exchange Board of India Circular 

bearing reference number SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/CIR/P/2023/156 dated September 20, 2023. The Company has 

authorized its Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer to redress all complaints in relation to the Issue 

including any complaints regarding the post–issue activities of the Issue such as allotment, refund, and dispatch.  

 

Our Company has adequate arrangements for the redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI 

Listing Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System(“SCORES”), as 

required by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/ OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011. Consequently, investor grievances are 

tracked online by our Company. 

 

Our Company has a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when 

required, to deal with and monitor redressal of complaints from shareholders. Its terms of reference include 

considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to transfer of shares and effective exercise of 

voting rights.  

 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited is our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All investor grievances received 

by us have been handled by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in consultation with the Company Secretary 

and Compliance Officer. 

 

Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 21 days from the receipt of the 

complaint. 

 

Investor Grievances arising out of the Issue 

 

Any investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by the Registrar to the Issue. The agreement 

between the Company and the Registrar to the Issue provides for a period for which records shall be retained by 

the Registrar to the Issue in order to enable the Registrar to the Issue to redress grievances of Investors. 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue, or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any Issue 

related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with 

a copy to the SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail ID of 

the sole / first holder, folio number or demat account number, serial number of the Application Form, number of 

the Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the 

SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the 

Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. For details on the ASBA process, see “Terms of 

the Issue” on page 107. 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue at: 

 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 

Subramanian Building, No. 1, Club House Road, 

Mount Road, Chennai 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India. 

Tel. No.: +91 44 4002 0700 / 2846 0390 

Email:  rights@cameoindia.com  

Website: www.cameoindia.com / https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday 

Investor grievance email: investor@cameoindia.com  

mailto:rights@cameoindia.com
http://www.cameoindia.com/
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
mailto:investor@cameoindia.com
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Contact person: Ms. K. Shreepriya – Executive Vice President & Company Secretary  

Sebi Reg. No.: INR000003753 

CIN: U67120TN1998PLC041613 

 

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below 

mentioned address for any pre-Issue/ post -Issue related matters such as non-receipt of Allotment Advice/demat 

credit/refund orders etc.  

 

Alphonsa Jose,  

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

666/12, Anna Aluminium Building Kizhakkambalam, Ernakulam, Aluva, Kerala, India, 683562. 

Telephone: 0484 2680701  

Email: cs@annagroup.net  

Website:www.scoobeedaygarments.com 

 

 

  

mailto:cs@annagroup.net
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
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SECTION VIII – ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION 

 

TERMS OF THE ISSUE 

 

This section is for the information of the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply in this Issue. The Eligible 

Equity Shareholders should carefully read the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of 

Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, before submitting the Application Form. Our 

Company is not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which 

may occur after the date of the Letter of Offer. The Eligible Equity Shareholders are advised to make their 

independent investigation and ensure that the Application Form is accurately filled up in accordance with 

instructions provided therein and the Letter of Offer. Unless otherwise permitted under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply in 

this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in the Letter of Offer. 

 

The Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to note that application in this issue can only be made through 

ASBA. 

 

OVERVIEW 

 

The Rights Entitlement on the Equity Shares, the ownership of which is currently under dispute and including any 

court proceedings or are currently under transmission or are held in a demat suspense account and for which our 

Company has withheld the dividend, shall be held in abeyance and the Application Form along with the Rights 

Entitlement Letter in relation to these Rights Entitlements shall not be dispatched pending resolution of the dispute 

or court proceedings or completion of the transmission or pending their release from the demat suspense account. 

On submission of such documents/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of the securities with 

regard to these cases on or prior to the Issue Closing Date, to the satisfaction of our Company, our Company shall 

make available the Rights Entitlement on such Equity Shares to the identified Eligible Equity Shareholder. The 

identified Eligible Equity Shareholder shall be entitled to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the 

Issue during the Issue Period with respect to these Rights Entitlement and subject to the same terms and conditions 

as the Eligible Equity Shareholder. 

 

This Issue and the Right Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions 

contained in the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, 

the Application Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our Company, the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing 

Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other 

statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from the RBI or other regulatory 

authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the BSE and the terms and 

conditions as stipulated in the Allotment Advice. 

 

Dispatch and availability of Issue Materials  

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/ dispatched only to the 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have 

provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the 

Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian 

addresses provided by them. 

 

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian 

address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their 

valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible 

Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a 

reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.  
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Shareholders can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that 

the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable laws) on the 

websites of: 

 

(i) our Company at www.scoobeedaygarments.com; 

(ii) the Registrar at https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday; 

(iii) the Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com; and 

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 

of the Registrar at https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio 

Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) and PAN. 

The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company at www.scoobeedaygarments.com.  

 

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have 

provided their Indian address through other means, as may be feasible. 

 

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for non-dispatch of physical 

copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter and the Application Form or delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non-availability of the e-mail 

addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application 

Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit. 

 

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of 

Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal 

requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit the Issue in any 

jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer is being filed with 

SEBI and the Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may not be offered 

or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, 

the Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be 

distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as permitted under the legal requirements applicable 

in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or 

the Application Form (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or 

solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation 

is unlawful or not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or 

solicitation. In those circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter 

or the Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making an 

Application and should not be copied or re-distributed.  

 

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Issue Materials should not, in connection with the issue of the Equity 

Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might, contravene 

local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates to any filing or registration 

requirement (other than in India). If the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter 

or the Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they 

must not seek to make an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, the 

Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person who makes an 

application to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares offered in the Issue, will be deemed to have 

declared, represented and warranted that such person is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the 

Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s jurisdiction and 

India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in 

India). 

 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES  

 

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL 

NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR 

SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A 

http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
http://www.bseindia.com/
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
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TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. 

SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS 

ENTITLEMENTS (INCLUDING THEIR CREDIT) AND THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ARE ONLY 

BEING OFFERED AND SOLD OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN “OFFSHORE TRANSACTIONS” 

AS DEFINED IN AND IN RELIANCE ON REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND 

THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION WHERE THOSE OFFERS AND SALES OCCUR.  

 

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation 

from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on 

behalf of our Company, has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order is made. No Application 

Form should be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other 

jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under the Letter of Offer or where any action would be 

required to be taken to permit the Issue. Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the Issue Materials only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided 

an Indian address to our Company.  

 

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have represented, 

warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of this Letter of Offer, that it is not and that at the time of 

subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States and is 

authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlement and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws 

and regulations.  

 

Our Company, reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or 

its agents to have been executed in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States or other 

jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions 

; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including that such person is 

submitting and/ or renouncing the Application Form is outside the United States and such person is eligible to 

subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions 

applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, among others; or (iii) where our Company believes 

acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements, including in the 

United States; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or Allot any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any 

such Application Form. 

 

PROCESS OF MAKING AN APPLICATION IN THE ISSUE  

 

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the 

ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in the Issue are mandatorily required to use 

the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before 

making their Application through ASBA.  

 

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to make 

Applications in the Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat accounts or demat escrow 

account, as applicable. For further details on the Rights Entitlements and demat escrow account, see “Terms of 

Issue- Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders” on page 110. 

 

Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Investors to make Applications for all Rights 

Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights Entitlements in the 

demat escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form, as 

applicable, as on Record Date and applying in the Issue, as applicable. In case of Investors who have provided 

details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for 

the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in 

case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat 

account.  
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a) Facilities for Application in this Issue:  

 

ASBA facility 

 

Investors can submit either the Application Form in physical mode to the Designated Branches of the 

SCSBs or online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such 

SCSB) authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in an ASBA Account maintained with the 

SCSB. Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs 

who provide such facility.  

 

Investors applying through the ASBA facility should carefully read the provisions applicable to such 

Applications before making their Application through the ASBA process. For details, please refer to 

Paragraph titled “Procedure for Application through the ASBA process” beginning on page 119 of this 

Letter of Offer.  

 

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI circular bearing reference 

number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024, within the periods 

stipulated therein, Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Further, it 

is clarified that for making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such 

SCSB should have a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such 

account shall be used solely for the purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated 

funds should be available in such account for such an Application. 

 

b) Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders:  

 

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue 

Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in 

dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights 

Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity 

Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat escrow account (namely, “SCOOBEE DAY 

GARMENTS (INDIA) LIMITED”) opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which 

would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account 

pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of 

IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen 

or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) 

credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares 

currently under dispute, including any court proceedings; or (f) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity 

Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, as on Record Date where details of 

demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (g) 

non-institutional equity shareholders in the United States.  

 

c) Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form:  

 

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI 

Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made 

in dematerialised form only. 

 

Such Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form, as applicable, can update the details 

of their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar at 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday.  Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity 

Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are 

advised to furnish their relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and details of address proof 

by way of uploading on Registrar website the records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of 

their respective Equity Shares) along with the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our 

Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights 

Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable 

such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in the Issue, and this communication shall 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
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serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective 

demat accounts.  

 

Such Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details 

of which have been provided to the Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the 

aforementioned transfer.  

 

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold 

Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat 

account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date shall 

not be eligible to make an Application for Rights Equity Shares against their Rights Entitlements with 

respect to the equity shares held in physical form. 

 

d) Application for Additional Equity Shares:  

 

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI 

Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made 

in dematerialised form only. 

  

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, 

provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for 

all the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in 

part. Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for 

Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the 

Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment 

shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of 

Allotment” beginning on page 134 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Equity 

Shares. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional 

Equity Shares.  

 

Investors kindly note that after purchasing the Rights Entitlements through On Market Renunciation / Off Market 

Renunciation, an Application has to be made for subscribing to the Rights Equity Shares. If no such Application 

is made by the Renouncee on or before Issue Closing Date, then such Rights Entitlements will get lapsed and shall 

be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date and no Rights Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will 

be credited. For procedure of Application by shareholders who have purchased the Right Entitlement through On 

Market Renunciation / Off Market Renunciation, please refer to the heading titled “Procedure for Application 

through the ASBA process” beginning on page 119 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Renouncees 

 

All rights or obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds relating to the 

Issue shall, unless otherwise specified, apply to the Renouncee(s) as well. 

 

Authority for the Issue 

 

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on March 27, 2025, 

under Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Board of Directors has in their meeting held on August 26, 2025 approved the Letter of Offer. The Board of 

Directors have in their meeting held on August 26, 2025 determined the Issue Price at ₹ 90 per Equity Share 

(including a premium of ₹ 80 per Equity Share), the Rights Entitlement as 1 Rights Equity Share for every 3 fully 

paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date. Our Company has received in-principle approval from BSE in 

accordance with Regulation 28 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be 

allotted in the Issue pursuant to letter dated August 14, 2025. Our Company will also make application to BSE to 

obtain its trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars. The 
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Issue Price is ₹ 90 per Equity Share and has been arrived at by our Company prior to determination of the Record 

Date.  

 

Our Company has been allotted the ISIN: INE962E20015 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the 

respective demat accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. The said ISIN shall remain frozen (for 

debit) until the Issue Opening Date. For details, please refer to the section entitled “Terms of the Issue” beginning 

on page 113 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Basis for the Issue 

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose 

names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of the Equity 

Shares held dematerialized form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares 

held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date, decided in consultation with the 

Designated Stock Exchange, but excludes persons not eligible under the applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

Rights Entitlement (“REs”) (Rights Equity Shares)  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear as a beneficial owner in respect of the Equity Shares held in 

dematerialized form or appear in the register of members as an Equity Shareholder of our Company in respect of 

the Equity Shares held in physical form as on the Record Date, i.e., September 02, 2025, are entitled to the number 

of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Application Form / in the Rights Entitlement Letter.  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 

of the Registrar to the Issue at https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday by entering their DP ID and Client ID 

or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for 

the same shall also be available on the website of our Company: www.scoobeedaygarments.com.  

 

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for crediting of the Rights 

Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized form. A separate ISIN 

for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is ISIN: INE962E20015. The said ISIN shall remain 

frozen (for debit) until the Issue Opening Date. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer by the Depositories 

post the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat accounts 

of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat escrow account to the Stock Exchange after completing the 

corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be 

accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar after keying in their 

respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat.  

 

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before the 

Issue Opening Date in dematerialised form only. Further, if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders or the Renouncee of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements 

shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Rights Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights 

Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market or off-market and 

purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights 

Entitlements are required to make an Application and apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue, if they 

want to apply for Rights Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Rights Equity Shares 

offered under Issue.  

 

If the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not provided 

the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, shall not be eligible to make an Application 

for Rights Equity Shares against their Rights Entitlements with respect to the equity shares held in physical form. 

Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their 

respective demat accounts. 

 

 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
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PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ISSUED UNDER THIS ISSUE  

 

Face Value  

 

Each Rights Equity Share will have the face value of ₹ 10.  

 

Issue Price  

 

Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of ₹ 90 per Rights Equity Share including a premium of ₹80/- 

(Rupees Eighty Only) per Rights Share in the Issue. 

 

On Application, Investors will have to pay the entire Issue Price i.e., ₹90 (Rupees Ninety Only) per Rights Share. 

 

The Issue Price for Rights Equity Shares has been arrived at by our company and has been decided prior to the 

determination of the Record Date.  

 

Rights Entitlement Ratio  

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 1 

Rights Equity Share for every 3 Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date. 

 

Separate ISIN for Rights Equity Shares  

 

In addition to the present ISIN for the existing Equity Shares, our Company would obtain a separate ISIN for the 

Rights Equity Shares. The Rights Equity Shares offered under this Issue will be traded under a separate ISIN. On 

payment of the Issue Price in respect of the Rights Equity Shares, such Rights Equity Shares would be merged 

with the existing ISIN of our Equity Shares. 

 

Rights of instrument holder  

 

Each Rights Equity Share shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company, once fully paid-

up.   

 

Terms of Payment  

 

The entire Issue Price of ₹90 per Rights Equity Share (including premium of ₹80 per Rights Equity Share) shall 

be payable at the time of Application. 

 

Fractional Entitlements  

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 1 

Rights Equity Share for every 3 Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date. For Rights Equity Shares being offered 

on a rights basis under the Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 3 

Equity Share(s) or not in the multiple of 3, the fractional entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall 

be ignored in the computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose 

fractional entitlements are being ignored as above will be given preferential consideration for the Allotment of 

one Additional Rights Equity Share each if they apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their 

Rights Entitlement, if any.  

 

For example, if an Eligible Equity Shareholder holds 3 Equity Shares, such Shareholder will be entitled to 1 Rights 

Equity Shares on a rights basis and will also be given a preferential consideration for the Allotment of one 

Additional Rights Equity Share if the Shareholder has applied for Additional Rights Equity Share if such Eligible 

Equity Shareholder has applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares, over and above his/her Rights Entitlements, 

subject to availability of Equity Shares in the Issue post allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for.  

 

Also, those Equity Shareholders holding less than 3 Equity Shares and therefore entitled to ‘Zero’ Rights Equity 

Share under this Issue shall be dispatched an Application Form with ‘Zero’ entitlement. Such Eligible Equity 

Shareholders are entitled to apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares and would be given preference in the 
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Allotment of 1 (one) Additional Rights Equity Share, if such Equity Shareholders have applied for the Additional 

Rights Equity Shares. However, they cannot renounce the same to third parties. Application Forms with zero 

entitlement will be non-negotiable/non-renounceable. OR 

 

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of One 

Rights Equity Share for every One Equity Share held on the Record Date. Thus, fractional entitlements shall not 

arise in the Issue. 

 

Ranking  

 

The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to the Issue shall be subject to the provisions of this 

Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and 

Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued 

by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, the terms of 

the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchange and the terms and conditions as 

stipulated in the Allotment Advice. The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to the Issue shall 

rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of our Company, in all respects including dividends. 

 

Mode of payment of dividend 

 

In the event of declaration of dividend, our Company shall pay dividend to the Eligible Equity Shareholders as 

per the provisions of the Companies Act and the provisions of the Articles of Association. 

 

Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue 

 

As per the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN would be credited to the 

demat account of the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date. On the Issue Closing 

Date, the Depositories will suspend the ISIN of Rights Entitlements for transfer and once the Allotment is done 

post the Basis of Allotment approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the separate ISIN no. INE962E20015 

for Rights Entitlements so obtained will be permanently deactivated from the Depository system. 

 

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed and traded under the ISIN: INE962E01015 on BSE (Scrip 

Code: 531234). The Investors shall be able to trade their Rights Entitlements either through On Market 

Renunciation or through Off Market Renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market 

Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism.  

 

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights 

basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange. Our Company has received in-principle 

approval from BSE through a letter dated August 14, 2025. All steps for completion of necessary formalities for 

listing and commencement of trading in the equity shares will be taken within 7 working days from the finalization 

of the Basis of Allotment. Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the 

Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained 

trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will 

trade after the listing thereof. 

 

The temporary ISIN shall be kept blocked till the receipt of final listing and trading approval from the BSE. Upon 

receipt of such listing and trading approvals, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue 

shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN and thereafter be available for trading 

under the existing ISIN as fully paid-up Equity Shares of our Company and the temporary ISIN shall be 

permanently deactivated in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL.  

 

Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue 

will be listed as soon as practicable and all steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and 

commencement of trading of the Rights Equity Shares shall be taken within the specified time prescribed under 

the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue shall 

be based on the current regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime 

would affect the listing and trading schedule. If permissions to list, deal in and for an official quotation of the 
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Rights Equity Shares is not granted by BSE, our Company shall within four days of receipt of intimation from the 

Stock Exchange, rejecting the application for listing of the Rights Equity Shares, forthwith refund through 

verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire monies received/blocked, without interest, all 

moneys received from the Applicants in pursuance of the Letter of Offer. If such money is not refunded/ unblocked 

within four days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, then our Company and every Director who is an 

officer in default shall, on and from such expiry of fourth day, be jointly and severally liable to repay the money, 

with interest at rates prescribed under applicable law. For details of trading and listing of Rights Equity Shares, 

please refer to the heading “Terms of Payment” beginning on page 113 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Subscription to the Issue by our Promoters and Promoter Group  

 

For details of the intent and extent of the subscription by our Promoters and Promoter Group, please refer to 

“Capital Structure – Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group in the Issue” 

beginning on page 46 of this Letter of Offer  

 

Rights of holders of Equity Shares  

 

Subject to applicable laws, the Equity Shareholders who have been Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the 

Issue shall have the following rights:  

• The right to receive dividend, if declared;  

• The right to vote in person, or by proxy;  

• The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;  

• The right to receive surplus on liquidation;  

• The right of free transferability of Equity Shares;  

• The right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers in accordance with law, unless 

prohibited/restricted by law; and  

• Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies 

Act, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.  

 

General terms of the Issue  

 

Market Lot  

 

The Equity Shares of our Company are tradable only in a dematerialized form. The market lot for Equity Shares 

in dematerialized mode is one Equity Share.  

 

Joint Holders  

 

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold such 

Equity Share as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in the Articles 

of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in physical mode to the 

Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the same order as 

appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for allotment of Equity Shares offered in the 

Issue. 

 

Nomination  

 

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Rights Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of Section 

72 of the Companies Act read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. An 

Investor can nominate any person by filling the relevant details in the Application Form in the space provided for 

this purpose.  

 

Since the Allotment of Rights Equity Shares is in dematerialized form only, there is no need to make a 

separate nomination for the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue. Nominations registered with 

respective Depository Participant of the Investor would prevail. Any Investor holding Equity Shares in 

dematerialised form and desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its respective 

Depository Participant.  



 

116 

 

Arrangements for disposal of Odd Lots  

 

Our Equity Shares are traded in dematerialized form only and therefore the marketable lot is one Equity Share 

and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.  

 

New Financial Instruments  

 

There are no new financial instruments like deep discount bonds, debentures with warrants, secured premium 

notes etc. issued by our Company. 

 

Restrictions on transfer and transmission of shares and on their consolidation/splitting  

 

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares issued pursuant 

to this Issue.  

 

However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with effect from 

April 01, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, the request for transfer of securities 

shall not effected unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository.  

 

Notices  

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Master Circulars on ICDR and MCA General Circular No. 

21/2020, our Company will send, through email and registered/speed post, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of 

Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other Issue Material only to the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have 

provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case 

the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be 

dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.  

 

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have 

provided their Indian address through other means, as may be feasible.  

 

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for not sending the physical 

copies of Issue Materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 

Letter and the Application Form or delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, 

the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non-availability of the e-mail 

addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application 

Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.  

 

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one 

English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi language national daily newspaper 

with wide circulation and a Malayalam language daily newspaper (Malayalam being the regional language in the 

place where our Registered Office is located).  

 

This Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with the Stock 

Exchange for making the same available on their websites. 

 

Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Investors:  

 

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, the RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue rights equity 

shares to non-resident shareholders including additional rights equity shares. Further, as per the Master Direction 

on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018, as amended from time to time issued by the RBI, non-

residents may, amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; 

(ii) renounce the shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) 

apply for the shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment 

of Rights Equity Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the 

RBI under FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Rights Equity Shares 
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and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-resident or NRI Investor 

has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose 

a copy of such approval with the Application details and send it to the Registrar by email on 

rights@cameoindia.com  or physically/postal means at the address of the Registrar Cameo Corporate Services 

Limited. It will be the sole responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or 

the governmental authority is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue and our Company will not be 

responsible for any such allotments made by relying on such approvals.  

 

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Common Application Form shall be 

sent/dispatched to the email addresses and Indian addresses of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a 

reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company and are located in jurisdictions 

where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and does not 

result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. Investors can access the Letter of 

Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Common Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity 

Shareholder is eligible to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites 

of the Registrar, our Company and the Stock Exchange. Our Board may at its absolute discretion agree to such 

terms and conditions as may be stipulated by the RBI while approving the Allotment. The Rights Equity Shares 

purchased by non-residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to their 

patriation as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Rights Equity Shares are issued on rights 

basis.  

 

In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be opened. 

Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant is liable to be 

rejected at the sole discretion of our Company.  

 

Please also note that pursuant to Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003, issued by RBI, OCBs have been 

derecognized as an eligible class of investors and RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management 

(Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Any Investor being 

an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and to obtain prior approval from RBI for applying 

in this Issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and FEMA 

Rules. 

 

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION  

 

How to Apply  

 

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA 

Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA 

process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their 

Application through ASBA. 

  

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to make 

Applications in the Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat accounts or demat escrow 

account, as applicable. For further details on the Rights Entitlements and demat escrow account, see “Terms of 

Issue- Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders” on page 110.  

 

Further, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date 

can apply for this Issue through ASBA facility. For details of procedure for application by the resident Eligible 

Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date, please refer to “Procedure 

for Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” beginning 

on page 110 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Investors to make Applications for all Rights 

Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights Entitlements in the 

demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form, 

as applicable, as on Record Date and applying in the Issue, as applicable. In case of Investors who have provided 

details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for 

the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in 

mailto:rights@cameoindia.com
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case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat 

account.  

 

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers, and the 

Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc. in relation to 

Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by 

SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.  

 

In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 

such Investors will have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are 

holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a 

separate Application Form for each demat account. Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity 

Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application 

through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block 

Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Prior to making an 

Application, such Investors should enable the internet banking of their respective bank accounts, and such 

Investors should ensure that the respective bank accounts have sufficient funds. Please note that Applications 

made with payment using third party bank accounts are liable to be rejected.  

 

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein, (i) the ASBA 

Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable 

on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB; or (ii) the requisite internet 

banking.  

 

Please note that Applications without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be 

rejected. Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and 

PAN number in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic 

Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Incorrect depository 

account details or PAN number could lead to rejection of the Application. For details please refer to 

“Grounds for Technical Rejection” beginning on page 131 of this Letter of Offer. Our Company, the 

Registrar and the SCSB shall not be liable for any incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants. 

 

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the offer 

to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders 

making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any 

portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, please refer to “Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA 

process” beginning on page 122 of this Letter of Offer.   

 

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders  

 

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Rights Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity 

Shareholder is entitled to. Details of each Eligible Equity Shareholders Rights Entitlement will be sent to the 

Eligible Equity shareholder separately along with the Application Form and other Issue Materials would also be 

available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday and link of the 

same would also be available on the website of our Company at www.scoobeedaygarments.com. Respective 

Eligible Equity Shareholder can check their entitlement by keying their requisite details therein.  

 

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in the Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholders will have the option 

to:  

 

i apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or  

ii apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the 

other part); or  

iii apply for Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other part 

of its Rights Entitlements; or  

iv apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for Additional 

Rights Equity Shares; or  

v renounce its Rights Entitlements in full.  

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
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In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Master Circulars, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity 

Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have furnished the details of their demat account to the 

Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. Wednesday, September 

17, 2025, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period 

through ASBA mode. Such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application in 

“Procedure for Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” 

beginning on page 110  of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Procedure for Application through the ASBA process  

 

An Investor, wishing to participate in the Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA enabled 

bank account with SCSBs, prior to making the Application. Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue 

through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or 

online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing 

such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.  

 

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form and have otherwise provided an 

authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to the 

Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time of submission of the 

Application.  

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks  

 

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer to 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34. For details on 

Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Form, please refer the above-mentioned link. Please 

note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-

1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024, within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications may be 

submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made through ASBA facility. Further, 

it is clarified that for making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such SCSB 

should have a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be 

used solely for the purpose of making an Application in the Issue and clear demarcated funds should be available 

in such account for such an Application.  

 

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers and the 

Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc., in relation 

to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded 

by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.  

 

Investors applying through the ASBA facility should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications 

before making their Application through the ASBA process.  

 

Acceptance of this Issue  

 

Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the 

Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made 

available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in 

their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through ASBA 

process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock 

Exchange.  

 

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB are liable to be rejected.  

 

Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary details as 

mentioned under the section “Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA process” beginning on page 122 of this 

Letter of Offer.  

 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Additional Rights Equity Shares  

 

Investors are eligible to apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, 

provided that they are eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for 

all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in 

part. Applications for Additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and allotment shall be made at the sole 

discretion of the Board, subject to applicable sectoral caps, and in consultation if necessary with the BSE in the 

manner prescribed under the section titled “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 107 of this Letter of Offer. 

Applications for Additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered, and Allotment shall be made in accordance 

with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section “Basis of Allotment” beginning 

on page 134 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for Additional Rights 

Equity Shares.  

 

Applications by Overseas Corporate Bodies  

 

By virtue of the Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, Overseas Corporate Bodies 

(“OCBs”), have been derecognized as an eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the 

Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to OCBs) Regulations, 2003.  

 

Accordingly, the existing Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company who do not wish to subscribe to the Rights 

Equity Shares being offered but wish to renounce the same in favour of Renouncee shall not be able to renounce 

the same (whether for consideration or otherwise), in favour of OCB(s). The RBI has however clarified in its 

circular, A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 44, dated December 08, 2003, that OCBs which are incorporated and are 

not and were not at any time subject to any adverse notice from the RBI, are permitted to undertake fresh 

investments as incorporated non-resident entities in terms of Regulation 5(1) of RBI Notification No.20/2000-RB 

dated May 03, 2000, under the foreign direct investment scheme with the prior approval of Government of India 

if the investment is through the government approval route and with the prior approval of RBI if the investment 

is through automatic route on case by case basis. Any Investor being an OCB is required not to be under the 

adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for the Issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance 

with the FDI Policy and FEMA Rules. Further, while investing in the Issue, the Investors are deemed to have 

obtained the necessary approvals, as required, under applicable laws and the obligation to obtain such approvals 

shall be upon the Investors. Our Company shall not be under an obligation to obtain any approval under any of 

the applicable laws on behalf of the Investors and shall not be liable in case of failure on part of the Investors to 

obtain such approvals. Eligible Equity Shareholders renouncing their rights in favour of such OCBs may do so 

provided such Renouncee obtains a prior approval from the RBI. On submission of such RBI approval to our 

Company at our Registered Office, the OCB shall receive the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form.  

 

RENUNCIATION AND TRADING OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT  

 

Renouncees  

 

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds pertaining 

to the Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.  

 

Renunciation of Rights Entitlements  

 

The Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights Entitlements 

credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.  

 

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall be 

subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry 

of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour 

of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA 

Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time.  
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The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of such Rights 

Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange or through an off-market transfer. In 

accordance with SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 06, 2020 read with SEBI circular 

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity 

Shares in physical form, as applicable, as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat 

account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, will not be 

able to renounce their Rights Entitlements  

 

Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements  

 

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat 

accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange (the “On 

Market Renunciation”); or (b) through an off–market transfer (the “Off Market Renunciation”), during the 

Renunciation Period. The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own 

demat account prior to the renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation 

will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism.  

 

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity 

Shares in physical form as on Record Date shall be required to provide their demat account details to our Company 

or the Registrar to the Issue for credit of REs not later than two working days prior to issue closing date, such that 

credit of REs in their demat account takes place at least one day before issue closing date, thereby enabling them 

to renounce their Rights Entitlements through Off Market Renunciation.  

 

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading in the 

Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their tax advisor or 

stock broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied 

for trading in Rights Entitlements.  

 

Our Company accepts no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses 

(including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Investors.  

 

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on 

or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.  

 

A. On Market Renunciation  

 

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective 

demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through 

a registered stock-broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.  

 

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, 

the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders 

shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange under ISIN INE962E20015 subject to requisite 

approvals. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain the approval from the Stock 

Exchange for trading of Rights Entitlement. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained 

On Market Renunciation or the price at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. The details for trading 

in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchange from time to time.  

 

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights 

Entitlements is 1 (one) Rights Entitlements.  

 

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market 

Renunciation, i.e., Friday, September 12, 2025 to Tuesday, September 16, 2025 (both days inclusive).  

 

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to 

do so through their registered stock-brokers by quoting the ISIN INE962E20015 and indicating the 

details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can place order for sale of Rights 

Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.  
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The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE under 

automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+1 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers to the date 

of trading. The transactions will be settled on a trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the 

stock-broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange and 

the SEBI.  

 

B. Off Market Renunciation  

 

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective 

demat accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a Depository Participant. The Rights 

Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised form only.  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is 

completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the 

Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable Renouncees to subscribe to the Rights Equity 

Shares in the Issue.  

 

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have 

to do so through their Depository Participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN 

INE962E20015, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. 

The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has to 

issue a receipt instruction slip to their Depository Participant. The Investors can transfer Rights 

Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.  

 

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the 

depository participants. The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer 

shall be as specified by the NSDL and CDSL from time to time. 

 

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa 

shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI 

or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available 

to or operate in favour of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in 

compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the 

Ministry of Finance from time to time.  

 

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on 

or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA process  

 

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an Application to 

subscribe to this Issue on plain paper in case of non-receipt of Application Form as detailed above and only such 

plain paper applications which provide all the details required in terms of Regulation 78 of SEBI ICDR 

Regulations shall be accepted by SCSBs.  

 

Alternatively, Eligible Equity Shareholders may also use the Application Form available online on the websites 

of our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, the Stock Exchange to provide requisite details.  

 

An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB 

for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. 

Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.  

 

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be 

entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose 

including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.  
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The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in the same 

order and as per specimen recorded with his bank, must reach the office of the Designated Branch of the SCSB 

before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:  

 

➢ Name of our Issuer, being Scoobee day Garments (India) Limited;  

➢ Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as 

per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);  

➢ Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client ID No.;  

➢ Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;  

➢ Allotment option preferred - only Demat form;  

➢ Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;  

➢ Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;  

➢ Number of Additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;  

➢ Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements;  

➢ Total amount paid at the time of application of ₹ 90 per Rights Equity Share;  

➢ Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant 

SCSB;  

➢ In case of NR Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address, details of the 

NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB with 

which the account is maintained;  

➢ Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and 

officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity 

Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for 

pursuant to the Issue. Documentary evidence for exemption to be provided by the Applicants;  

➢ Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application 

Money in the ASBA Account;  

➢ Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence); 

➢ Additionally, all such Applicants are deemed to have accepted the following:  

 

“I/We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, and will be, 

registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“US Securities Act”) or any United States 

state securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to 

the territories or possessions thereof (“United States”) or to, or for the account or benefit of a United States person 

as defined in the Regulation S of the US Securities Act (“Regulation S”). I/ we understand the Rights Equity Shares 

referred to in this application are being offered in India but not in the United States. I/ we understand the offering 

to which this application relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights 

Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any 

of the said Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in the United States. Accordingly, I/ we understand this 

application should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or to the United States at any time. I/ we confirm that I/ 

we are not in the United States and understand that neither us, nor the Registrar, or any other person acting on 

behalf of us will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who we, 

the Registrar, or any other person acting on behalf of us have reason to believe is a resident of the United States 

“U.S. Person” (as defined in Regulation S) or is ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of 

their jurisdiction. 

 

I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any 

jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it 

is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except under circumstances that will result in compliance with 

any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability 

standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed to herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our residence.  

 

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, 

pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise 

pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US 

Securities Act.  

 

I/We (i) am/are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement, and/or 

the Equity Shares, is/are outside the United States or a Qualified Institutional Buyer (as defined in the US 
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Securities Act), and (ii) is/are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/or the Equity Shares in an offshore transaction 

meeting the requirements of Regulation S or in a transaction exempt from, or not subject to, the registration 

requirements of the US Securities Act.  

 

I/We acknowledge that the Company, its affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing 

representations, warranties and agreements set forth therein.”  

 

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights Entitlements 

credited to the same demat account or in demat escrow account, including cases where an Investor submits 

Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications shall be liable to be rejected.  

 

Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an Application being 

rejected, with our Company and the Registrar not having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application 

format will be available on the website of the Registrar at https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday.  

 

Our Company and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds 

are not blocked in the Investors’ ASBA Accounts on or before the Issue Closing Date.  

 

Last date for Application  

 

The last date for submission of the duly filled in Application Form or a plain paper Application is September 19, 

2025, Issue Closing Date. Our Board or Rights Issue Committee may extend the said date for such period as it 

may determine from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, and subject to the Issue 

Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).  

 

If the Application together with the amount payable is either (i) not blocked with an SCSB; (ii) not received by 

the Bankers to the Issue on or before the close of banking hours on the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be 

extended by our Board or any committee thereof; or (iii) not uploaded with Stock Exchange, the invitation to offer 

contained in the Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof 

shall be at liberty to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as provided under “Terms of the Issue - Basis of 

Allotment” beginning on page 134 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date for Applications through ASBA process shall be uploaded until 5:00 

p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange. Please ensure that the 

Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application number, Investors can mention the 

reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing about their Rights Entitlement or last eight 

digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal reference number in place of 

application number. 

 

Modes of Payment  

 

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will not 

accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility.  

 

In case of Application through ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the entire amount payable on 

Application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent 

to the amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s ASBA Account.  

 

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the 

Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the 

Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from the Registrar, of 

the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment as approved by the 

Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar’s instruction from the 

ASBA Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a separate bank account maintained by our Company, 

other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. The balance 

amount remaining after the finalization of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the 

SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective SCSB.  

 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
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The Investors would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable 

on their Application at the time of the submission of the Application Form.  

 

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account, details 

of which have been provided by the Investor in the Application Form does not have sufficient funds equivalent to 

the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent to the acceptance of the 

Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the Application on technical grounds as set 

forth hereinafter. 

 

Mode of payment for Resident Investors  

 

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will not 

accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility. 

Applicants are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. 

 

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Investors  

 

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Equity Shares 

to non-resident shareholders including additional Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master Direction on Foreign 

Investment in India dated January 4, 2018, as amended from time to time issued by RBI, non-residents may, 

amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; (ii) renounce 

the shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for the 

shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Right Equity 

Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA 

in the matter of Application, Allotment of Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of 

Allotment/Allotment Advice. If a non-resident or NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI, in connection 

with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application 

details and send it to the Registrar.  

 

As regards Applications by Non-Resident Investors, the following conditions shall apply: 

 

• Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by 

applicable local securities laws can obtain Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar or our 

Company.  

 

Note: In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter and the Application Form shall be sent to their email addresses if they have provided 

their Indian address to our Company or if they are located in certain jurisdictions (other than the United 

States and India) where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such 

jurisdictions and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdiction. 

The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company or 

the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are 

located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of 

such jurisdictions and does not result in and may not be construed as , a public offering in such 

jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. 

 

• Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the offer 

or sale of the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities 

laws.  

 

• Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts in 

accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI.  

 

Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a repatriation basis by using the Non-Resident 

Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non-Resident External (“NRE”) accounts, or Foreign 

Currency Non-Resident” (“FCNR”) Accounts, and Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying 

on a non-repatriation basis by using Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non- 

Resident Ordinary”“ (“NRO”) accounts for the full amount payable, at the time of the submission of the 
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Application Form to the SCSB. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of the 

Rights Equity Shares shall be inter alia, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI 

under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of Rights Equity Shares and 

issue of letter of allotment. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval from RBI, in connection with 

his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form.  

 

• In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the 

investment in Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the 

Income-tax Act. In case Equity Shares are allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale 

proceeds of the Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India. Non-resident Renouncees who are not 

Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for applying for additional Equity Shares 

in the Issue.  

 

• In case of an Application Form received from the non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other 

distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by the RBI as 

applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals. In the 

case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE Accounts, refunds and 

other disbursement, if any shall be credited to such account.  

 

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form  

 

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights 

Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in 

dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as 

on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in the Issue are advised to furnish the details 

of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing 

Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before 

the Issue Closing Date.  

 

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those Eligible Equity Shareholders, among others, 

who hold Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, and whose demat account details are not available with 

our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat escrow account opened by our Company.  

 

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, as on Record Date and who 

have opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in 

the Issue:  

 

1) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send form ISR-1, SH-13 (which can be download from website 

i.e., https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday) and ISR-2 (if signature does not match with RTA record) 

the Registrar either by email (with digital sign), post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery so as to reach 

to the Registrar no later than 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date; 

 

2) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements of 

such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least 1 (One day before the Issue Closing 

Date;  

 

3) The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in “Application on Plain Paper under 

ASBA process” on page 122.  

 

4) In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold 

Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date shall be required to provide their demat account details 

to our Company or the Registrar to the Issue for credit of REs not later than two working days prior to 

issue closing date, such that credit of REs in their demat account takes place at least one day before issue 

closing date, thereby enabling them to renounce their Rights Entitlements through Off Market 

Renunciation.  

 

  

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
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PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD EQUITY SHARES 

IN PHYSICAL FORM, AS APPLICABLE, AS ON RECORD DATE AND WHO HAVE NOT 

FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT ACCOUNTS TO THE REGISTRAR 

OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE, 

SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES 

AGAINST THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUITY SHARES HELD IN 

PHYSICAL FORM, AS APPLICABLE. 

 

Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form  

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE 

ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT 

IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE. FOR 

DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO “ALLOTMENT ADVICES/ REFUND ORDERS/ UNBLOCKING OF 

ASBA ACCOUNTS” BEGINNING ON PAGE 135 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.   

 

General instructions for Investors  

 

1) Please read this Letter of Offer and Application Form carefully to understand the Application process 

and applicable settlement process. 

 

2) In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold 

Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat 

account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall 

not be eligible to make an Application for Rights Equity Shares against their Rights Entitlements with 

respect to the equity shares held in physical form. 

 

3) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. 

 

4) The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees. 

 

5) Application should be made only through the ASBA facility. 

 

6) Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to 

any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with 

the terms of this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the 

Application Form are liable to be rejected. 

 

7) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all 

necessary details as mentioned under the section “Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA process” 

beginning on page 122 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

8) In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and 

ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to 

use the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications 

before making their Application through ASBA. 

 

9) An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA 

enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. 

 

10) Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic 

through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block 

Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on 

the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian 

Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the BSE. 

 

11) Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue, our Company or the Registrar. 
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12) In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, 

including details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the 

Application Money in the ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form. 

 

13) All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention 

their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for 

Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials 

appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be 

rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have 

not been verified shall be “suspended for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares 

pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the accounts of such Investors. 

 

14) In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the amount 

in the ASBA Account. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay order or NEFT or 

RTGS or through any other mode is not acceptable for application through ASBA process. In case 

payment is made in contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid. 

 

15) For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either 

in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. 

Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or 

a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per 

the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB. 

 

16) In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the 

relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded 

with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant’s name 

and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant. 

 

17) All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change 

in address, contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior 

to the Date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, folio numbers (for 

Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, as on Record 

Date)/DP ID and Client ID and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in address, 

contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send the 

intimation for such change to the respective Depository Participant, or to our Company or the Registrar 

in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable. 

 

18) Only persons outside restricted jurisdictions and who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and 

Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws are eligible to participate.  

 

19) Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024 within the periods stipulated therein, 

applications made through ASBA facility may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. 

Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who 

provide such facility.  

 

20) It has also been clarified that for making applications by banks on their own account using ASBA facility, 

SCSBs should have a separate account in own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such 

account shall be used solely for the purpose of making an application in public/ rights issues and clear 

demarcated funds should be available in such an account for ASBA applications.  

 

21) In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be 

opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant 

is liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company. 
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Additional general instructions for Investors in relation to making of an Application 

 

1) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should be complete in all 

respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be 

given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer, the 

Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected. 

The Application Form must be filled in English.  

 

2) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all 

necessary details as mentioned under the section entitled “Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA 

process” beginning on page 122 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

3) Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, folio number, bank account 

details and occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects. Investors 

applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, DP ID and Client ID 

provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the 

Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Therefore, Investors applying under this 

Issue should carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the Application. These Demographic 

Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including mailing of the letters 

intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic 

Details given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the 

Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their 

Depository Participants. The Allotment Advice and the e-mail intimating unblocking of ASBA 

Account or refund (if any) would be e-mailed to the address of the Investor as per the e-mail 

address provided to our Company or the Registrar or Demographic Details received from the 

Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA 

Account to the extent Equity Shares are not Allotted to such Investor. Please note that any such 

delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the SCSBs or Registrar 

or shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or be liable 

to pay any interest for such delay. In case no corresponding record is available with the 

Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Investors (including the order of names 

of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c) Client ID, then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.  

 

4) By signing the Application Forms, Investors would be deemed to have authorised the Depositories to 

provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.  

 

5) Investors are required to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them does not exceed 

the prescribed limits under the applicable law.  

 

6) Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your 

jurisdiction.  

 

7) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this 

ground.  

 

8) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical 

Application.  

 

9) Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.  

 

10) Do not submit multiple Applications.  

 

11) No investment under the FDI route requiring government approval will be allowed in the Issue unless 

such application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from 

the government. It will be the sole responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval or 

the pre-existing approval from the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. Our 

Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such approvals.  
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12) An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply 

for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and 

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules, 2019.  

 

Do’s: 

 

1) Ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. 

 

2) Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of Sikkim 

and the officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the 

Income-tax Act.  

 

3) Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and 

occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects.  

 

4) Investors should provide correct DP ID and client ID/ folio number while submitting the Application. 

Such DP ID and Client ID/ folio number should match the demat account details in the records available 

with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Investor will be 

solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company, the 

SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable for any such rejections.  

 

Don’ts:  

 

1) Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your 

jurisdiction. 

 

2) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this 

ground.  

 

3) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical 

Application.  

 

4) Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.  

 

5) Do not submit multiple Applications. 

 

 

 

Do’s for Investors applying through ASBA:  

 

1) Ensure that the necessary details are filled in the Application Form including the details of the ASBA 

Account. 

 

2) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the 

beneficiary account is activated as the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form 

only.  

 

3) Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the 

correct bank account have been provided in the Application.  

 

4) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares (including Additional 

Rights Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Rights Equity Shares}) available in ASBA 

Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective 

Designated Branch of the SCSB. 

 

5) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on 

application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in 

the Application and have signed the same.  
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6) Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the 

Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such a location.  

 

7) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your 

submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application.  

 

8) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the 

beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application Form is submitted in 

joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names are in 

the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter.  

 

9) Ensure that your PAN is linked with Aadhaar, and you are in compliance with CBDT notification dated 

Feb 13, 2020, and press release dated June 25, 2021, and September 17, 2021.  

 

Don’ts for Investors applying through ASBA  

 

1) Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a Designated 

Branch of the SCSB or vice versa. 

 

2) Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated 

Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.  

 

3) Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws applicable to your 

jurisdiction.  

 

4) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process.  

 

5) Do not submit Application Form using third party ASBA account.  

 

Grounds for Technical Rejection 

 

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds: 

 

1) DP ID, folio number and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID, folio 

number and Client ID records available with the Registrar. 

 

2) Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available with the 

Registrar. 

 

3) Sending an Application to our Company, the Registrar, to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated 

Branch of the SCSB. 

 

4) Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application 

Money. 

 

5) Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been frozen 

pursuant to regulatory orders. 

 

6) Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein. 

 

7) Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat 

account. 

 

8) Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a 

plain paper Application. 
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9) Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State 

Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts). 

 

10) Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except 

Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided by the 

Depositories. 

 

11) Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any 

other SCSB. 

 

12) Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed in the 

Application Form and the Letter of Offer. 

 

13) Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors, as applicable. 

 

14) Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, money order, 

postal order or outstation demand drafts. 

 

15) If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim 

relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights 

Entitlements. 

 

16) Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically 

transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons in the United States who 

are U.S. QIBs and QPs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Equity Shares is not 

permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the 

Application Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application 

Form is (a) both a U.S. QIB and a QP, if in the United States or a U.S. Person or (b) outside the United 

States and is a non-U.S. Person, and in each case such person is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares 

under applicable securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in 

connection with this Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in 

respect of any such Application Form. 

 

17) Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities 

laws. 

 

18) Application from Investors that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository records (other than in 

reliance with Reg S). 

 

19) Applicants not having the requisite approvals to make application in the Issue. 

 

20) IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO 

APPLY THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES 

IN DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ 

CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR 

AS ON THE RECORD DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD 

MENTION THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP ID AND BENEFICIARY 

ACCOUNT NUMBER/ FOLIO NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST 

ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE 

SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE 

APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT 

THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN 

THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE APPLICATION FORM OR 

PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE.  

 

21) Our Company, the Registrar, or any other person acting on behalf of us reserves the right to treat any 

Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form 

to the effect that the subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement 
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in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or our agents to have been 

executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; 

or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such 

Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not 

be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such 

Application Form. 

 

22) Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, Depository 

Participant’s name and identification number and beneficiary account number provided by them in the 

Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain 

Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors applying under this Issue should carefully 

fill in their Depository Account details in the Application.  

 

23) These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including mailing 

of the letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The 

Demographic Details given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other 

purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided 

to their Depository Participants. By signing the Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to 

have authorised the Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic 

Details as available on its records.  

 

24) The Allotment Advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA Account would be emailed to the 

address of the Investor as per the email address provided to our Company or the Registrar or 

Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs 

for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not Allotted to such 

Investor. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our 

Company, the SCSBs or the Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused 

due to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay.  

 

25) In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names 

of the Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary 

account number, then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.  

 

Multiple Applications  

 

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account in respect of the same Rights Entitlement, 

such Applications shall be liable to be rejected. A separate Application can be made in respect of Rights 

Entitlements in each demat account of the Investors and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple 

applications. Similarly, a separate Application can be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and 

Equity Shares held in physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Further 

supplementary Applications in relation to further Rights Equity Shares with/without using Additional Rights 

Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application. A separate Application can be made in respect of each 

scheme of a Mutual Fund registered with the SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple 

applications. For details, please refer to “Investment by Mutual Funds” beginning on page 139 of this Letter of 

Offer.  

 

In cases where multiple Applications are submitted, including cases where an (a) Investor submits Application 

Forms along with a plain paper Application, or (b) multiple plain paper Applications, or (c) multiple applications 

through ASBA, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications and are liable to be rejected (other than 

multiple applications that may be submitted by any of the Promoters or members of the Promoter Group as 

described in “Capital Structure – Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group 

in the Issue” beginning on page 46 of this Letter of Offer. 

 

Underwriting  

 

The Issue is not underwritten.  
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Withdrawal of Application  

 

An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their Application at any time during Issue Period by 

approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor, may withdraw their Application 

post 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Issue schedule 

 

Event Indicative Date 

Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements (On or 

before) 

Thursday, September 11, 2025 

Issue Opening Date Friday, September 12, 2025 

Last Date for On Market Renunciation Rights# Tuesday, September 16, 2025 

Issue Closing Date* Friday, September 19, 2025 

Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) Friday, September 26, 2025 

Date of Allotment (on or about) Monday, September 29, 2025 

Date of credit (on or about) Friday, October 03, 2025 

Date of listing (on or about) Wednesday, October 08, 2025 
#Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the 

Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 

*Our Board, or a Rights Issue Committee thereof, will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not 

exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted 

by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date. 

 

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, as on 

Record Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are 

required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two clear Working 

Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Wednesday, September 17, 2025 to enable the credit of the Rights 

Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one 

day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Thursday, September 18, 2025. If demat account details are not provided 

by the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form to the Registrar or our Company by 

the date mentioned above, such shareholders will not be allotted any Rights Equity Shares, nor such Rights Equity 

Shares be kept in suspense account on behalf of such shareholder in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders 

are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the 

Registrar, is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares 

in physical form can update the details of their demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e., 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only 

after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts. Eligible Equity Shareholders can 

obtain the details of their Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar (i.e., 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall also 

be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.scoobeedaygarments.com). 

 

Basis of Allotment  

 

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the 

Rights Entitlement Letter, the Articles of Association of our Company and the approval of the Designated Stock 

Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of priority: 

 

1) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlement either 

in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has/have applied for Rights Equity Shares renounced 

in its/their favor, in full or in part, as adjusted for fractional entitlement.  

 

2) Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Equity 

Shareholders with zero entitlement, would be given preference in allotment of one Additional Rights 

Equity Share each if they apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares. Allotment under this head shall be 

considered if there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after allotment under (a) above. If number 

of Rights Equity Shares required for Allotment under this head are more than the number of Rights 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
http://www.scoobeedaygarments.com/
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Equity Shares available after Allotment under (1) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and 

equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange and will not be a preferential 

allotment.  

 

3) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for the full extent of their Rights Rights 

Equity Shares shall be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of 

Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there are unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares 

after making full Allotment under (1) and (2) above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the 

sole discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of the Issue, 

and will not be a preferential allotment.  

  

4) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour 

and also have applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after 

making full Allotment under (1), (2) and (3) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares shall be 

made on a proportionate basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as part of the Issue 

and will not be a preferential allotment.  

 

5) Allotment to any other person that our Board may deem fit provided there is surplus available after 

making Allotment under (1), (2), (3) and (4) above, and the decision of our Board in this regard shall be 

final and binding.  

 

6) After taking into account Allotment to be made under (1) to (5) above, if there is any unsubscribed 

portion, the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’ for the purpose of Regulation 3(1)(b) of the SEBI 

Takeover Regulations.  

 

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the 

Controlling Branches, a list of the ASBA Investors who have been Allotted Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, 

along with: 

 

1) The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our 

Company for the Issue, for each successful ASBA Application; 

2) The date by which the funds referred to above shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and  

3) The details of rejected ASBA Applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA 

Accounts.  

 

Further, the list of Applicants eligible for refund with corresponding amount will also be shared with Banker to 

the Issue to refund such Applicants. 

 

In the event of over subscription, Allotment shall be made within the overall size of the Issue. 

 

Allotment Advices/Refund Orders/ Unblocking of ASBA Accounts 

 

Our Company will issue and send/dispatch Allotment Advice, refund intimations/instructions, if applicable or 

demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret, by e-mail or registered post or speed post, only to the Eligible 

Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address; along with crediting the allotted Rights Equity Shares to 

the respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialised mode or in a demat suspense account (in respect of 

Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form, as applicable, on the Allotment Date) or 

issue instructions for unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days 

from the  finalization of basis of allotment. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at 15% p.a. 

and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 days’ period.  

 

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the depository 

system and the Allotment Advice shall be sent, through a mail, to the Indian mail address provided to our Company 

or at the address recorded with the Depository.  

 

In the case of non-resident Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE or the FCNR 

Accounts, unblocking and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, shall be credited to 

such accounts.  
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Where an Applicant has applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares in the Issue and is allotted a lesser number 

of Rights Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked. 

The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds/unblocking of fund beyond such 

period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such a rate as prescribed 

under applicable law.  

 

The allotment advice or refund order (if any) or unblocking advice would be sent by e-mail or registered post or 

speed post to the sole/ first Investor’s address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company but 

the Applicant’s Depository Participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity 

Shares to the Applicant’s depository account. Such refund orders would be payable at par at all places where the 

Applications were originally accepted. The same would be marked ‘Account Payee only’ and would be drawn in 

favor of the sole/ first Investor. Adequate funds would be made available to the Registrar for this purpose. 

 

Payment of Refund  

 

Mode of making refunds 

 

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would be 

done through unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.  

 

Refund payment to Non-residents  

 

The Application Money will be unblocked in the FCNR/NRE Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of 

which were provided in the Application Form.  

 

Allotment Advice or Demat Credit of Securities 

 

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account (pending with 

IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date or such other 

timeline in accordance with applicable laws.  

 

Receipt of the Right Equity Shares in Dematerialised Form  

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE 

ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY 

ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH 

INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH 

HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO CLEAR 

WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY 

SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM, AS APPLICABLE, AS ON THE 

RECORD DATE, OR (C) DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT PENDING RECEIPT OF DEMAT 

ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY 

SHARES FORM/ WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS 

RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED.  

 

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form only. Our Company has 

signed two agreements with the respective Depositories and the Registrar to the Issue, which enables the Investors 

to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company in a dematerialized form, instead of holding the Equity 

Shares in the form of physical certificates:  

 

(a) Tripartite Agreement between our Company, National Securities Depository Limited and the Registrar 

to the Company dated January 30, 2002 

(b) Tripartite Agreement between our Company, Central Depository Service India Limited and the Registrar 

to the Company dated January 08, 2002. 
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INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY CAN BE 

TRADED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE ONLY IN THE DEMATERIALISED FORM. 

 

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the Issue in the electronic form is 

as under: 

 

• Open a beneficiary account with any Depository Participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary 

account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our 

Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of 

the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our Company). In case of Investors having 

various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate 

accounts for each such holding. Those Investors who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) 

need not adhere to this step.  

 

• It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are in 

the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.  

 

• The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a-vis such 

information with the Investor’s Depository Participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors should 

ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in the Application Form should 

be the same as registered with the Investor’s Depository Participant.  

 

• If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the Investor will 

not get any Rights Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.  

 

• The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly 

credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat suspense. 

 

• Shares are with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). The allotment advice or refund order (if any) or 

unblocking advice would be sent by e-mail or registered post or speed post to the sole/ first Investor’s 

address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company but the Applicant’s Depository 

Participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the 

Applicant’s depository account.  

 

• Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment 

of Rights Equity Shares in the Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is 

liable to be rejected.  

 

• Non-transferable Allotment Advice/ refund orders will be sent directly to the Investors by the Registrar 

to the Issue.  

 

• Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form would be paid 

to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository 

Participant to our Company as on the date of the book closure.  

 

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form and who have not 

furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days 

prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall not be able to apply in this Issue for further details, please refer to 

“Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” beginning 

on page 126 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

Procedure for Applications by certain categories of Investors 

 

Investment by FPIs  

 

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity Shares is 

subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its investor group (which means multiple 
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entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and directly and indirectly having common ownership of more 

than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue Equity Share capital. In case the total holding 

of an FPI or investor group increases beyond 10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a 

fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share 

warrants that may be issued by our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or investor group will be re-

classified as FDI subject to the conditions or restrictions as specified by SEBI and RBI in this regard.  

 

FPIs are permitted to participate in the Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be 

specified by the GoI from time to time. The FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are advised to use the ASBA 

Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and 

approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, only Category I FPIs, may issue, subscribe to 

or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, 

by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against securities held by it that are listed or proposed 

to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event 

(i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons registered as Category I FPI under the SEBI 

FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are eligible for 

registration as Category I FPIs (where an entity has an investment manager who is from the Financial Action Task 

Force member country, the investment manager shall not be required to be registered as a Category I FPI); (iii) 

such offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iv) 

compliance with other conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI.  

 

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore derivative 

instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following conditions:  

1) such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI FPI 

Regulations; and  

2) prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the offshore 

derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre – approved by the FPI.  

 

No investment under the FDI route will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied with 

necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval. 

 

All non-resident investors should note that refunds, dividends and other distributions, if any, will be payable in 

Indian Rupees only and net of bank charges and commission. 

 

Investment by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC – SI)  

 

In case of an application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (a) the certificate of 

registration issued by the RBI under Section 45 –IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificate from its 

statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is 

required to be attached to the application. 

 

Investment by AIFs, FVCIs, VCFs and FDI route  

 

The SEBI (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended (“SEBI VCF Regulations”) and the SEBI 

(Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, as amended (“SEBI FVCI Regulations”) prescribe, among 

other things, the investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI (Alternative 

Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012 (“SEBI AIF Regulations”) prescribe, among other things, the investment 

restrictions on AIFs.  

 

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCIs are not permitted to 

invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCIs will not 

be accepted in this Issue.  

 

Venture capital funds registered as Category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to 

invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered 

as category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of 

AIFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations.  
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Such AIFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities/centres where such AIFs are 

located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable 

for rejection.  

 

Applications will not be accepted from FPIs in restricted jurisdictions.  

 

FPIs which are QIBs, Non-Institutional Investors or whose application amount exceeds ₹2 lakhs can participate 

in the Rights Issue only through the ASBA process. Further, FPIs which are QIB applicants and Non-Institutional 

Investors are mandatorily required to use ASBA, even if application amount does not exceed ₹2 lakhs.  

 

Investment by NRIs  

 

Investments by NRIs are governed by Rule 12 of FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs in 

Restricted Jurisdictions.  

 

NRIs may please note that only such Applications as are accompanied by payment in free foreign exchange shall 

be considered for Allotment under the reserved category. The NRIs who intend to make payment through NRO 

counts shall use the Application form meant for resident Indians and shall not use the Application forms meant 

for reserved category.  

 

As per Rule 12 of the FEMA Rules read with Schedule III of the FEMA Rules, an NRI or OCI may purchase or 

sell capital instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India, 

subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the 

total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of 

debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company and the total holdings of all NRIs 

and OCIs put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not 

exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants.  

 

However, in compliance with the FEMA Rules, the aggregate ceiling of 10% has been raised to 24%, by a special 

resolution to that effect passed by members of the Company, at their meeting held on July 05, 2024. 

 

Further, in accordance with Press Note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy (“Press Note”) has been recently amended to 

state that all investments by entities incorporated in a country which shares land border with India or where the 

beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted 

Investors”), will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the Press Note whether or 

not an issuance of the Right Shares to Restricted Investors will also require a prior approval of the Government 

of India and each Investor should seek independent legal advice about its ability to participate in the Issue. In the 

event such prior approval of the Government of India is required, and such approval has been obtained, the 

Investor shall intimate our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the Issue Period.  

 

Investment by Mutual Funds  

 

Applications made by asset management companies or custodians of Mutual Funds should clearly and specifically 

state names of the concerned schemes for which such Applications are made.  

 

In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of the Mutual Fund 

registered with SEBI and such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual Fund will not be 

treated as multiple Applications provided that the Applications clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which 

the Application has been made.  

 

No Mutual Fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in equity shares or equity-related 

instruments of any single company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be applicable for investments in case 

of index funds or sector or industry specific schemes. No Mutual Fund under all its schemes should own more 

than 10% of any company’s paid-up share capital carrying voting rights.  

 

Procedure for applications by Systemically Important NBFCs  
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In case of application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (i) the certificate of 

registration issued by the RBI under Section 45 –IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (ii) networth certificate from its 

statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is 

required to be attached to the application.  

 

Payment by stock invest  

 

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 05, 2003, the stock invest 

Scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue.  

 

Impersonation  

 

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of Section 38 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:  

 

“Any person who:  

i makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing 

for, its securities; or  

ii makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different 

combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing to its securities; or  

iii otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, 

or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447. “  

 

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least 

₹ 10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which 

shall not be less than six months extending up to ten years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, 

such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, 

extending up to three times of such amount. Where such fraud (i) involves an amount which is less than ₹ 10 lakhs 

or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such 

fraud is punishable with imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or fine of an amount extending up to 

₹ 50 lakhs or with both. 

 

Disposal of Applications and Application Money  

 

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the 

Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by stamping and 

returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form. Our Board reserves its full, 

unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without 

assigning any reason thereto.  

 

In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the respective 

ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an Application is rejected in part, the balance 

of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be unblocked 

in the respective ASBA Accounts of the Investor within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date and 

refunded in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money was received on or beforeT+1 day (T 

being the date of finalisation of Basis of Allotment)In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at 

such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law.  

 

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.  

 

Utilization of Issue Proceeds  

 

Our Board of Directors declares that:  

 

(i) All monies received out of the Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;  
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(ii) Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue referred to in clause (i) above shall be disclosed, and shall 

continue to be disclosed until the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, under an 

appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such 

monies have been utilized;  

 

(iii) Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue referred to in clause (i) above, if any, shall be disclosed 

under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which 

such unutilized monies have been invested; and  

 

(iv) Our Company may utilize the funds collected in the Issue only after final listing and trading approvals 

for the Rights Equity Shares Allotted in the Issue is received.  

 

Undertakings by our Company  

 

Our Company undertakes the following:  

 

(i) The complaints received in respect of the Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and 

satisfactorily. 

  

(ii) All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock 

Exchange where the Rights Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken within the time prescribed by the 

SEBI.  

 

(iii) The funds required for unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made 

available to the Registrar by our Company.  

 

(iv) Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to 

the Investor within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be 

credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.  

 

(v) No further issue of securities shall be made until the Rights Equity Shares are listed or until the 

Application Money is refunded on account of non-listing, under subscription, etc. other than as disclosed 

in accordance with Regulation 97 of SEBI ICDR Regulations .  

 

(vi) In case of unblocking of the application amount for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the application 

amount in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Applicants.  

 

(vii) Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications.  

 

(viii) At any given time, there shall be only one denomination for the Rights Equity Shares of our Company.  

 

(ix) As on date our Company does not have any convertible debt instruments.  

 

(x) Our Company shall comply with all disclosure and accounting norms specified by the SEBI from time 

to time.  

 

(xi) Our Company accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of information given in this Letter of Offer and 

confirms that to the best of its knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which makes 

enquiries to ascertain such facts. 

 

Minimum Subscription  

 

The objects of the Issue do not involve financing of capital expenditure. Further, Our Promoters and Promoter 

Group have undertaken that they shall subscribe to the full extent of their Rights Entitlements and that they shall 

not renounce their Rights Entitlements (except to the extent of renunciation by any of them in favour of any other 

Promoters or member of the Promoter Group) subject to the aggregate shareholding of our Promoters and 

Promoter Group being compliant with the minimum public shareholding requirements under the SCRR and the 

SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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In terms of Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription of 90% is 

not applicable to the Issue. 

 

Filing  

 

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth 

Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the 

threshold for filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights 

issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees One Thousand 

Lakhs to Rupees Five Thousand Lakhs. Since the size of this Issue falls above this threshold, this Letter of Offer 

has been filed with BSE and with SEBI.  

 

Withdrawal of the Issue  

 

Subject to provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act and other applicable laws, Our Company 

reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the Issue Opening Date without assigning any 

reason thereof.  

 

If our Company withdraws the Issue any time after the Issue Opening Date, a public notice within two (2) Working 

Days of the Issue Closing Date or such other time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not 

proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same 

newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisement has appeared, and the Stock Exchange will also be informed 

promptly.  

 

The Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within one (1) working Day 

from the day of receipt of such instruction. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock Exchange.  

 

If our Company withdraws the Issue at any stage including after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides 

to proceed with an Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock 

exchange where the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.  

 

Investor Grievances, Communication and Important Links  

 

Please read this Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the Application 

Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the conditions of the 

Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed otherwise the Application is liable to be rejected. It is to be 

specifically noted that this Issue of Rights Equity Shares is subject to the risk factors mentioned in “Risk Factors” 

beginning on page 20 of this Letter of Offer.  

 

All enquiries in connection with the Draft Letter of Offer, this Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or 

Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number or 

the DP and Client ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder 

as mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed “Scoobee Day Garments (India) Limited – Rights Issue” 

on the envelope to the Registrar at the following address: 

 

  



 

143 

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 

Address: C Subramanian Building, No. 1, Club House Road, Mount Road, Chennai 600 002, Tamil Nadu, India.  

 

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated 

investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors will 

be available on the website of the Registrar of the Issue i.e. https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday. Further, 

the helpline number provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of 

difficulties is +91 -44-40020700 / 2846 03.  

 

The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes: 

 

• Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the 

Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday. 

 

• Updating of Indian address/ email address/ mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar to 

the Issue i.e. Cameo Corporate Services Limited: https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday.  

 

• Updating of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form, as 

applicable: https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday ; and  

 

• Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident Eligible 

Shareholders: rights@cameoindia.com. 

  

The Issue will remain open for minimum period of 7 days. However, our Board will have the right to extend the 

Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date 

(inclusive of the Issue Closing Date). 

 

 

https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
https://rights.cameoindia.com/scoobeeday
mailto:rights@cameoindia.com
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SECTION IX – OTHER INFORMATION 

 

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 

 

The following material documents and contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of 

business carried on by our Company or entered into more than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) 

which are or may be deemed material have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. These 

contracts and also the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, will be available for inspection on the 

website of the Company from the date of the Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date. 

 

A. Material contracts for inspection:  

 

1. The Registrar Agreement dated May 06, 2025 entered into amongst our Company and the 

Registrar to the Issue. 

2. Banker to the Issue Agreement dated August 26, 2025 entered amongst our Company, Registrar 

to the Issue and Banker to the Issue. 

 

B. Material documents for inspection: 

 

1. Certified copies of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our 

Company as amended from time to time. 

2. Certificate of incorporation dated August 17, 1994, and certificate of commencement of 

business dated September 23, 1994. 

3. Resolution of the Board of Directors dated March 27, 2025, in relation to the Issue authorization. 

4. Annual Reports of the Company for the last five years. 

5. Certificate dated May 02, 2025 certified by the previous Statutory Auditor, Anil K. Nayar 

certifying that the loan has been used for the purpose of setting up a new unit at Karur, Tamil 

Nadu. 

6. Certificate dated August 05, 2025 certified by the Statutory Auditor, certifying that the total 

amount received, repayed and amount outstanding as on date. 

7. Resolution of the Board of Directors dated May 08, 2025 approving and adopting the Draft 

Letter of Offer. 

8. Resolution of the Board of Directors dated August 26, 2025 finalizing the terms of the Issue 

including Issue Price and the Rights Entitlement Ratio. 

9. Resolution of the Board of Directors dated August 26, 2025 approving and adopting the Letter 

of Offer. 

10. Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated May 05, 2025 available to our Company and its 

shareholders under the applicable laws in India issued by our Statutory Auditor. 

11. Tripartite Agreement dated January 18, 2002 between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar 

to the Company. 

12. Tripartite Agreement dated January 03, 2002 between our Company, CDSL and the Registrar 

to the Company. 

13. In principle listing approval dated August 14, 2025 issued by BSE. 

 

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if so 

required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the Equity 

Shareholders, subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes. 
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DECLARATION 

 

 

I hereby certify that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies 

Act and the rules made there under. I further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue as 

also the regulations, guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, the Government of India and any other 

competent authority in this behalf, have been duly complied with.  

 

I further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct. 

 

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY 

 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Kalpathy Lekshmi Venkitanarayanan Narayanan 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01273573 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Dony Dominic 

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

DIN: 03588311 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Jeff Jacob 

Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 

DIN: 08652962 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Satheesh Kumar Gopa Kumar 

Independent Director 

DIN: 03425296 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Elsamma Mathew Titus 

Independent Director 

DIN: 09712874 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Augustine Antony 

Independent Director 

DIN: 09710570 

 

SIGNED BY OUR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 

Sd/- 

_________________ 

Thottathikudiyil Fareed Zaphia  

 

 

Date: August 26, 2025. 

Place: Ernakulam, Kerala. 


